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Letter of the President of the Management Board of

TAURON Polska Energia S.A.

Ladies and Gentlemen,

on behalf of TAURON Group | have the pleasure to present to you the Consolidated Annual
Report of TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group for 2019, that provides our financial
and operating results, as well as the highlights of last year.

TAURON Group was operating in a favorable macroeconomic environmentin 2019. The Polish
economy stood out positively against the background of most European Union countries, and
the main factor behind the growth of the Polish economy was a relatively rapid rise of the
domestic demand. Unfavorable trends grew stronger in the second half of the year.

The change of Poland’s GDP growth rate had an impact on the volume of electricity
consumption. Last year was the first in a number of years when domestic electricity
consumption declined. As a consequence, electricity production fell 3.9 percent, mainly due to
the fast growing net electricity imports coming in at more than 10 TWh. Electricity imports,
combined with a significant increase in electricity production from wind farms and gas, caused
a drop in electricity production from conventional generating units.

The macroeconomic situation and the above mentioned market trends had a significant impact
on the operations of electric utilities last year. TAURON Group continued to maintain its stable
financial position under such external conditions, while taking a number of actions aimed at
increasing profitability in the following years.

TAURON Group posted good financial results in 2019. Sales revenue and recompensations
came in at PLN 20.5 billion, which meant a 13 percent rise, as compared to 2018. Higher
revenues are primarily the result of the situation on the power market, i.e. an increase of
wholesale electricity prices. EBITDA stood at PLN 3.6 billion, i.e. up 3 percent year on year.
The net result achieved was significantly affected by the impairment charges related to the
Mining and Generation segments’ assets.

I would like to highlight that last year we intensified activities that would lead to a significant
increase in the production of electricity from zero-emission sources, such as wind and solar,
in the coming years. We define our efforts aimed at implementing the Group’s transition as the
Green Turn of TAURON, as outlined in TAURON Group’s strategic directions updated last
year. We are planning to invest in on-shore wind farms and solar farms as well as get involved
in the construction of off-shore wind farms by 2025. These investment projects and the
commissioning of the 910 MW unit in Jaworzno, that meets stringent environment protection
standards, will allow the Group to reduce its emissions by more than 20 percent by 2025, and
by more than 50 percent by 2030.

The acquisition of five wind farms with the total capacity of 180 MW was a confirmation of the
efficient implementation of the strategic goals set. As a result of this investment, TAURON
Group almost doubled its installed capacity in wind technology and came in second among
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Polish energy groups in terms of the generation capacity in wind sources. What is particularly
important — the new assets will be generating EBITDA of more than PLN 100 million per
annum.

In addition, in December last year TAURON Group signed a contract for the purchase of a
photovoltaic farm construction project in Choszczno, with a planned capacity of 6 MW. | would
also like to assure you that we are analyzing, on an ongoing basis, opportunities to acquire
wind and solar projects offered on the market, as well as developing our own green projects,
in particular on TAURON Group’s land.

It is worth noting that TAURON Group is actively participating in the transition of the domestic
energy sector towards the development of zero emission sources. The Group connected a
record number of more than 30 000 micro-installations to its distribution grid, with the total
capacity of 206 MW, in 2019. Almost four times more than in 2018.

In addition to the investment outlays related to the implementation of the Green Turn of
TAURON, we were also working on improving the reliability of our distribution grid and
developing modern energy sources. TAURON Group’s total capital expenditures clocked in at
PLN 4.1 billion in 2019.

We commenced the process of optimizing our investment portfolio related to the mining and
heat assets in 2019. As part of these activities, bidders interested in the acquisition of these
assets conducted a due diligence process at TAURON Ciepto sp. z o.0.

Traditionally, TAURON Group was very active with respect to research, development and
innovations. 18 projects were launched in all lines of business. As of the end of last year, 67
projects were underway, as part of four research and innovation portfolios. TAURON Group
obtained funding from external sources to implement some of these projects. It is worth
emphasizing that these efforts are already bringing measurable effects - thanks to the
introduction of new sorbents into the electricity generation process, the Group will reduce its
capital expenditures related to the adaptation of the 460 MW unit at Lagisza Power Plant to
the so-called BAT conclusions, by more than PLN 100 million.

Similar as in the previous years, also in 2019 TAURON Group undertook a number of initiatives
aimed at guaranteeing the funds required for the sustainable growth. At this point, | would like,
first and foremost, to mention the successful capacity market auctions. As a result, TAURON
Group will receive a total of PLN 5.5 billion in additional funds in 2021-2037.

Secondly - we concluded a loan agreement worth PLN 750 million with Intesa Sanpaolo to
finance expenditures in renewable energy and distribution grid related investment projects as
well refinance the existing debt.

Thirdly - under the 2014-2020 financial plan, we obtained EU funds in the amount of PLN 195
million for the construction and modernization of the medium and low voltage distribution grids.
The above mentioned steps guarantee ensuring the Group’s financial stability, as confirmed
by the “BBB" rating with a stable outlook, granted by the Fitch rating agency.

| am also pleased to see that our activities with respect to the relations with the stakeholders
have once again been appreciated by the experts’ communities. In the "The Best Annual
Report" competition, we were awarded, for the third time, "The Best of the Best" prize, a special
award for the best integrated report and an honorable mention for the best statement on the
application of corporate governance.
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Ladies and Gentlemen,

in spite of numerous challenges facing the Polish energy sector, | am convinced that the
comprehensive transition and steadfast implementation of the projects related to the Green
Turn of TAURON will have a positive impact on TAURON Group’s further development. |
believe that high competence and extensive experience of the Group's employees will be
skillfully used to shore up the key segments of the business operations. We are the leader of
change in the Polish energy sector. On the other hand, our initiatives with respect to social
dialogue contribute to building long term, partnership based relations with all stakeholder
groups.

On behalf of the Management Board of TAURON Polska Energia S.A. | would like to thank all
stakeholders, especially Members of the Supervisory Board and the entire Group’s personnel,
for effective and professional performance of their responsibilities, that allows us to build
TAURON Group’s value together.

Yours respectfully,

Filip Grzegorczyk
President of the Management Board of TAURON Polska Energia S.A.
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TAURON

in PLN ‘000 in EUR ‘000
2019 2018 2019 2018
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA from 01.01.2019to  from 01.01.2018 to from 01.01.2019to  from 01.01.2018 to
31.12.2019 31.12.2018 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

(adjusted data)

Selected consolidated financial data of TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group

(adjusted data)

Sales revenue 19 558 292 18 121 748 4546 537 4247 052
Compensations 952 650 - 221 454 -
Operating profit (EBIT) 295 454 790 729 68 681 185 317
Pre-tax profit (loss) (15 368) 504 647 (3572) 118 270
Net profit (loss) (11 683) 207 045 (2 716) 48 524
Net profit (loss) attributable to shareholders of the parent entity (10 908) 204 880 (2 536) 48 016
Net profit (loss) attributable to non-controlling stakes (775) 2165 (180) 508
Other net comprehensive income (101 853) (24 522) (23 677) (5747)
Total comprehensive income (113 536) 182 523 (26 393) 42 776
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders of the

parent entity (112 530) 180 398 (26 159) 42 278
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling (1 006) 2125 (234) 498
stakes

Profit (loss) per share (in PLN / EUR) (basic and diluted) (0.01) 0.12 (0.00) 0.03

Weighted average number of shares (pcs.) (basic and diluted)

1752 549 394

1752 549 394

1752 549 394

1752 549 394

Cash flows from operating activities 2035575 2222621 473 191 520 898
Cash flows from investing activities (4 534 738) (3387 402) (1 054 149) (793 879)
Cash flows from financing activities 2894 792 1171 400 672 926 274 532
Increase/(decrease) in net cash and equivalents 395 629 6619 91 968 1551

As of 31.12.2019

As of 31.12.2018
(adjusted data)

As of 31.12.2019

As of 31.12.2018
(adjusted data)

Fixed assets 35 052 287 32 596 304 8231135 7 580 536
Current assets 6 865 478 4501173 1612 182 1046 784
Total assets 41 917 765 37097 477 9843 317 8 627 320
Share capital 8762 747 8762 747 2 057 707 2037 848
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent entity 18 192 226 18 295 824 4271 980 4 254 843
Equity attributable to non-controlling stakes 900 434 132 657 211 444 30 850
Total equity 19 092 660 18 428 481 4483 424 4285 693
Long term liabilities 14 963 274 11 382 254 3513743 2647 036
Short term liabilities 7861831 7286 742 1846 150 1694 591
Total liabilities 22825105 18 668 996 5359 893 4341 627

The above financial data was converted to EUR according to the following principles:

— individual items of the statement of financial position — at the average exchange rate of NBP announced as of December 31, 2019 — 4.2585
PLN/EUR (as of December 31, 2018 — 4.3 PLN/EUR),

— individual items of the statement of comprehensive income and the statement of cash flows - at the exchange rate that is an arithmetic mean
of the average exchange rates of NBP announced as of the last day of each month of the financial year running from January 1, 2019 to
December 31, 2019 — 4.3018 PLN/EUR (for the period from January 1, 2018, to December 31, 2018 — 4.2669 PLN/EUR).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE AUDIT
To the General Meeting and Supervisory Board of TAURON Polska Energia S.A.
Audit report on the annual consolidated financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the annual consolidated financial statements of TAURON Polska
Energia S.A. Group (the ‘Group‘), for which the holding company is TAURON Polska
Energia S.A. (the ‘Company‘) located in Katowice at Ks. Piotra Skargi 3 street, containing:
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019, the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 and
additional information to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies (the ‘consolidated financial statements’).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019 and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019
in accordance with required applicable rules of International Accounting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards approved by the European Union and the
adopted accounting policies,

- are in respect of the form and content in accordance with legal regulations governing
the Group and the Company’s Statute.

The opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee issued on
31 March 2020.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing
in the version adopted as the National Auditing Standards by the National Council
of Statutory Auditors (“NAS”) and pursuant to the Act of 11 May 2017 on Statutory
Auditors, Audit Firms and Public Oversight (the ‘Act on Statutory Auditors’)
and the Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council
of 16 April 2014 on specific requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest
entities and repealing Commission Decision 2005/909/EC (the ‘Regulation 537/2014").

ERNST & YOUNG IN POLAND IS A MEMBER OF ERNST & YOUNG GLOBAL
District Court for the City of Warsaw, Economic Dept. XII of the National Court Register, KRS: 0000481039
Tax Identification Number (NIP): 526-020-79-76
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Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of ethics for professional
accountants, published by the International Federation of Accountants (the ‘Code
of ethics’), adopted by the National Council of Statutory Auditors and other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with required applicable rules of the audit of financial
statements in Poland. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of ethics. While conducting the audit, the key certified
auditor and the audit firm remained independent of the Group in accordance
with the independence requirements set out in the Act on Statutory Auditors
and the Regulation 537/2014.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
They include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement, including
the assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we have summarized our reaction to these risks
and in cases where we deemed it necessary, we presented the most important observations
related to these types of risks. We do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment of assets analysis

Why the issue is a key audit matter

As at December 31, 2019, the Group, in
the consolidated financial statements,
presented within significant asset items:

o fixed assets including property,
plant and equipment with a
carrying amount of approximately
PLN 31 099 million;

e right of use assets with a carrying
amount of approximately PLN
1 773 million;

e goodwill with a carrying amount
approximately PLN 26 million;

e other intangible assets with a
carrying amount of approximately
PLN 478 million;

e investments in joint ventures with
a carrying amount of
approximately PLN 559 million;

e loans receivable from joint
ventures with a carrying amount
of approximately PLN 243 million;

constituting in total approximately 82% of
the Group's consolidated balance sheet.

Audit approach

Our procedures, in relation to the key audit
matter described, included, among others:

Overview of the process and
identification of control mechanisms
operating in the Group related to

impairment tests of assets, as well as an
understanding of the applied accounting
policies and procedures, including
internal control environment related to
the process of assessing impairment
indicators and performing of impairment
tests,

Assessment of the assumptions made

with regard to the grouping of assets into

cash-generating units (CGU),

Assessment (with the assistance of

valuation specialists) of estimates and

assumptions made by the Group in order
to determine the assets recoverable
amount, including:

- the key macroeconomic assumptions
adopted by the Group for future years
(including: discount rates, projected
growth rate) by comparing them to
market data and available external
data;

- arithmetical correctness of the
discounted cash flows model, and

- assumptions made to determine cash
flows and residual values after the
period covered by a detailed strategy;

Inquiries to employees of the financial
department and the Management Board
of the Parent Company referring to the
status of implementation of the adopted
assumptions, including the validity of key
estimates,
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According to International Financial
Reporting Standards the Management of
the entity is obliged to determine the
appropriate valuation method of loans
receivable from joint ventures and,
depending on the valuation method, to
determine the fair value of these loans or
determine the value of expected credit
losses that may occur in the period of 12
months or remaining period of existence
of loans depending on classification of
assets to the brackets and for fixed
assets, right of use assets, goodwill,
other intangible assets and investments
in joint ventures as a result of the
identified assets impairment premise for
performing the impairment test.

The issue was identified as key audit
matter in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements due to the value of
the assets listed above, which is
significant for the consolidated financial
statements, as well as due to the element
of professional judgment of the Group
management regarding the valuation of
loans receivable from joint ventures and a
complex element of the professional
judgment of the Management Board of
Parent Company regarding identifying
cash-generating units and the estimation
of the recoverable amount of fixed
assets, right of use assets, goodwill,
other intangible assets and investments
in joint ventures.

The valuation of loans receivable from
joint ventures requires the application of
appropriate valuation model, depending
on the classification of assets, in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standard 9 Financial
Instruments.

Analysis of external sources of
information such as industry press and
evaluation of potential risk related to the
implementation of the assumptions with
the support of valuation specialists;
Analysis of impairments indicators and
reconciliation of source data used in
impairment test models and assessment
of impairment triggers for financial
forecasts approved by the Management
Board of the Parent Company;

Obtaining detailed statements of Parent
Company Management's regarding the
completeness and correctness of the
data and significant assumptions
provided to us;

Assessment of the classification of the
loans receivable from joint ventures;
Assessment of the Parent Company's
Management Board's judgment
regarding the valuation models used for
loan receivables to joint ventures and the
existence of objective events affecting
the impairment of loans;

Assessment of the correctness of
recognition of results of impairment
tests of assets and the valuation of
loans receivable from joint venture in
the books;

Assessment of the valuation models of
loans receivable from joint venture
adopted by the Group, including
reconciliation of source data being the
basis for valuation of loans;
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Estimation of the recoverable amount of
fixed assets, right of use assets, goodwill,
other intangible assets and investments
in joint ventures require the Management
Board of Parent Company to adopt a
number of assumptions regarding future
market and economic conditions, such as,
future changes in the prices of raw
materials, electricity, property rights
arising from certificates of origin of
energy, CO2 emission rights and future
revenues, costs and cash flows, weighted
average cost of capital ("WACC"), as well
as the impact of potential and already
approved Polish and European regulatory
changes, including environmental
protection and the anticipated
macroeconomic situation.

A reference to disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements

The Group disclosed information
regarding impairment indicators,
estimates of the impairment test, as well
as impairment losses on intangible assets
in note 10 of the explanatory the notes to
the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2019.

The disclosure regarding the valuation of
loans receivables from joint ventures and
investments in join venture was included
by the Group respectively in note 25 and
24 of the explanatory notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Assessment of the completeness of
disclosures, in accordance with the
International Accounting Standard 36
Impairment of assets, the International
Accounting Standard 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements and the
International Financial Reporting
Standard 7 Financial Instruments -
disclosure of information in the Group's
consolidated financial statements
regarding impairment and valuation of
assets.
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Claims, lawsuits and contingent
liabilities

Why the issue is a key audit matter

The Group is a party to many significant
claims and court cases which, depending
on the Parent Company Management's
assessment, are recognized as provisions
or contingent liabilities. Significant in
terms of value are potential and
submitted claims identified by the Group
related to the termination of long-term
contracts for the purchase of electricity
and property rights arising from
certificates of origin of energy generated
in renewable energy sources.

The basis for recognizing provisions and
contingent liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements are the Parent
Company Management's judgments
regarding the likelihood of adverse
effects of the claims and court cases that
may cause an outflow of economic
benefits from the Group. The results of
these claims and lawsuits are beyond the
Group's control.

The issue was identified as key audit
matter in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements due to the
significance of the claims and lawsuits, as
well as due to the complex element of the
professional judgment of the
Management regarding their impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

Audit approach

Our procedures, in relation to the key audit
matter described, included, among others:

e Obtaining an understanding of the
process of making judgments by the
Parent Company Management's
regarding claims and lawsuits;

e Monitoring of public information to

identify a violation or potential violation

of laws and regulations by the Group
and to assess the completeness of the

effects of identified violations, as well as

to assess the completeness of

disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements;
e Analysis of the documentation

regarding court cases presented for the

audit purposes and discussion of
significant court cases with the Legal

Project Management Team of the Group
and external lawyers significant claims

and lawsuits;
e Analysis of the costs of legal services
incurred during the year including the

identification of entities providing legal

services to the Group;

e Obtaining written explanations from the

lawyers serving the Group with regard
to the court and dispute cases

conducted by them, and the analysis of

the provided explanations;

e Analysis and assessment of the level
and completeness of provisions for
litigation in the context of the existing
legal documentation;
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A reference to disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements

The Group disclosed information
regarding claims and court cases in note
50 of the explanatory notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2019.

Analysis and assessment of disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements
regarding contingent liabilities and
changes in the value of provisions for
claims and lawsuits;

Discussion of the selected claims and
court cases with internal specialists in
the field of law;

Obtaining detailed statements of the
Parent Company Management Board
regarding the completeness and
correctness of the data and significant
assumptions provided to us;

Review of minutes of meetings of the
legal bodies of the Parent Company
Management Board as well as control
reports of supervisory authorities and
correspondence with these authorities.
Analysis of the adequacy of disclosures
in relation to court and out-of-court
proceedings, related provisions and
contingent liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements.
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First application of IFRS 16 “Leasing”

Why the issue is a key audit matter

International Financial Reporting
Standard 16 Leasing ("IFRS 16") requires
an analysis of contracts and business
relationships, as well as a number of
judgments and estimates related to
determining, whether the contract is
within a scope if IFRS 16 and how it
should be covered in accordance with
that standard (i.a. determine the scope of
application new standard, lease periods,
minimum leasing payments or discount
rates).

The issue was identified as key audit
matter in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements due to quantity and
variety of contracts and the fact that the
Group applied IFRS 16 to prepare the
attached consolidated financial
statements for the first time.

The Parent Company’s Management
Board decided to implement IFRS 16
using a modified retrospective approach.

As a result of the recognition of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities recognized
by the Group as part of debt liabilities, in
connection with the first adoption of IFRS
16, there was an increase in the Group’s
assets reported in the statement of
financial position by PLN 918 million as
at 1%t January 2019 compared to data
presented in consolidated financial
statements for the previous financial
year.

Audit approach

Our procedures, in relation to the key audit
matter described, included, among others:

e Analysis of the accounting policies
regarding the recognition of contracts
and business relationships falling within
the scope of IFRS 16 and related
significant judgments and estimates in
particular regarding:

- determination of the scope of
contracts and business relationships
subject to recognition in accordance
with IFRS 16;

- determination of minimum lease
payments;

- determination of term of leasing
periods;

- determination of discount rates;

e Obtaining an understanding of the
process and the control environment
implementing IFRS 16, including
understanding of the procedures to
ensure the completeness of the review
of contracts and business relationships;

e Performing tests of controls for
selected control mechanisms in relation
to the recognition of contracts and
business relationships in accordance
with IFRS 16;

e Performing test of details for a sample
of contracts and business relations to
verify the accuracy of the parameters
used to calculate the leasing liability and
the right-of-use assets;




EY

Building a better
working world

A reference to disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements

Disclosures regarding the right of use
assets and lease liabilities related to the
application of IFRS 16 are presented in
note 8.1 of the explanatory notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2019.

Disclosures regarding accounting policies
for leasing, including key judgments and
estimates, were included in notes 8.1 and
20 of the explanatory notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2019.

Analysis of the completeness and
correctness of the recognition of
contracts and business relationships
identified by the Group as falling within
the scope of IFRS 16;

Analysis and assessment of the
arithmetical correctness of the lease
liabilities valuation model and the right-
of-use assets used by the Group;
Obtaining detailed statements of the
Parent Company Management Board
regarding the completeness and
correctness of the data and significant
assumptions provided to us;
Assessment the adequacy of disclosures
in consolidated financial statements
with regard to the guidelines contained
in IFRS 16, as well as on key judgments
in the recognition of lease contracts,
business relationships and the impact of
the implementation of the new standard
on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Significant one-off transaction - the
acquisition of wind farms from in.ventus
Group

Why the issue is a key audit matter

On September 3, 2019 through a
specially created for this purpose
subsidiaries the Group acquired:

- five wind farms belonging to the
in.ventus Group and

e financial claims due to Hamburg
Commercial Bank AG against
companies managing these wind
farms.

Transaction was executed through the
acquisition of Polish private companies
owning these wind farms and German
partnerships being their limited partners.

The total value of funds transferred in
connection with the transaction was PLN
580 million, which represents 1% of the
Group's balance sheet total.

Audit approach

Our procedures, in relation to the key audit
matter described, included, among others:

Analysis of the accounting policies
regarding the recognition of business
combination;

Obtaining an understanding of the
process and the control environment in
the area of identifying significant one-
off transactions, including
understanding procedures to ensure
completeness in identifying key aspects
of such transactions;

Assessment, with the support of
valuation specialists, of the assumptions
and estimates adopted by the Group to
determine the fair value of the acquired
assets and assumed liabilities, as well as
the assessment of the accounting for
the acquisition, including:

- key assumptions and methodologies of
fair value adopted by the Group's
external specialists;

- the arithmetical correctness of the
models used to value the acquired
assets, and

Assessment of the analysis of
contractual provisions made by the
Parent's Company Management Board
regarding a significant one-off
transaction, as well as independent
analysis of this contract and assessment
of the completeness and correctness of
the analysis performed by the Parent's
Company Management Board;

10




EY

Building a better
working world

The issue was identified as key audit
matter in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements due to the value of
the transaction, which is significant for
the consolidated financial statements, as
well as due to the complex element of the
Parent Company's Management Board's
professional judgment regarding:

e determining the acquisition date;
e identification and measurement of
the acquired identifiable assets,

liabilities assumed;

e valuation of the payment
transferred;

e recognition and measurement of
the profit from a bargain
purchase;

e recognition of the transaction and
its effects in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

As a result of the transaction, the Group
recognized a profit on a bargain purchase
of PLN 120 million, which was presented
in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income under other
operating income, in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting
Standard 3 Business combinations.

Discussing with the Parent's Company
Management Board the assessment of
the correctness of identification and
completeness of acquired assets and
assumed liabilities;

Obtaining written explanations from
lawyers serving the Group regarding
their litigation and disputes, evaluation
of completeness and analysis
Management's estimates related to
recognizing the impact of litigation and
claims for the settlement of the
transaction;

Assessment of key judgments and
estimates of the Parent’'s Company
Management Board regarding the
implementation of contractual
provisions that affect the determination
of the purchase price in relation to the
significant one-off transaction;
Performing test of details on the sample
of acquired assets and assumed
liabilities acquired as part of the
transaction in order to assess the
completeness and correctness of
recognition of these assets as part of
the transaction settlement;

Assessment of impairment triggers with
respect to assets acquired as part of the
one-off transaction and reconciliation of
source data used in impairment tests to
the financial forecasts adopted by the
Parent Company;

11




EY

Building a better
working world

A reference to disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements

Disclosures regarding the settlement of
the transaction and adopted judgments of
the Parent's Management Board
regarding the transaction were presented
in Note 2.1 to the explanatory notes to
the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2019.

Obtaining detailed statements of the
Parent Company Management Board
regarding the completeness and
correctness of the data and significant
assumptions provided to us;

Analysis and assessment of the
adequacy of disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in
relation to the guidelines contained in
the International Financial Reporting
Standard 3 Business combinations,
International Financial Reporting
Standard 13 Determination of fair value,
as well as disclosures regarding key
judgments of the Parent's Company
Management Board regarding the
settlement of acquisitions.

12
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Legislative and regulatory changes
regarding electricity sales prices in
2019 and in subsequent years

Why the issue is a key audit matter

On December 31, 2018, the Act of
December 28, 2018 amending the Act on
excise duty and certain other acts came
into force (the "Act"). The Act was
amended twice:

e on March 20, 2019, the Act of
February 21, 2019 amending the
Act amending the Act on excise
tax and certain other acts, the Act
- Environmental Protection Law,
the act on the system of managing
greenhouse gas emissions and
other substances, the Act
amending the Act on
biocomponents and liquid biofuels
and some other acts and the Act
on the promotion of electricity
from high-efficiency cogeneration;

e onJune 29, 2019, the Act of
June 13, 2019 amending the Act
amending the Act on excise duty
and certain other acts, the Act on
energy efficiency and the Act on

(hereinafter together as: "Electricity
Act").

The Electricity Act imposed on electricity
trading companies, and therefore
companies belonging to the Group, the
obligation to use the prices of June 30,
2018 during 2019 in the scope and in a
manner that is described in detail by the
Group in Note 12 of explanatory notes to
consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2019.

biocomponents and liquid biofuels.

Audit approach

Our procedures, in relation to the key audit
matter described, included, among others:

Analysis of the accounting policies
relating to the identification,
recognition and measurement of
provisions for onerous contracts and
accounting policies relating to
recognition and measurement of
Compensation;

Obtaining the understanding of the
process and the control environment of
identifying legal and regulatory changes
as well as business relationships that
may create encumbrances or give rights
to contingent assets;

Assessment of the correctness and
completeness of the analysis of the
provisions of the Electricity Act made by
the Management Board of the Parent
Company and comparison of the results
of the analysis of the Management
Board of the Parent Company to our
analysis of this Act;

Assessment of key judgments and
estimates of the Parent Company's
Management Board in the scope of
assessing the likelihood of receiving
Compensation;

Assessment of key judgments and
estimates of the Parent’'s Company
Management Board in the scope of
valuation and recognition of onerous
contracts provisions;
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At the same time, the Electricity Act
provides for two forms of compensation
for trading enterprises in the form of a
price difference amount for the period
from January 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019
for all customer groups, and in the form
of financial compensation for the period
from July 1, 2019 to December 31,
2019. with respect to final recipients
specified in the Electricity Act and
described by the Group in Note 12 to the
explanatory notes to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2019 ("Compensation™).

As a result of the entry into force of the
Electricity Act, the Group recognized the
received and due compensation regarding
sales in 2019 in the amount of PLN 953
million. Compensations were presented in
the Compensation line of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

On December 17, 2019, the President of
the Energy Regulatory Office approved
the electricity tariff for consumersin G
tariff groups ("G tariff") for the Group's
subsidiary applicable in 2020. The
amount of electricity sales prices
approved under the G tariff caused the
necessity to create and recognize in the
consolidated statements of financial
position a provision for onerous contracts
in the amount of PLN 237 million.

Performing test of details in relation to
onerous contracts provisions to assess
the correctness of the measurement of
recognition and presentation of these
provisions in the consolidated financial
statements;

Performing test of details in respect of
compensation received and due;
Assessment of the arithmetical
correctness of the models used by the
Group for the valuation of
Compensation due and an assessment
of the input parameters, which are part
of the professional judgment, used in
these models;

Obtaining detailed statements of the
Parent Company Management Board
regarding the completeness and
correctness of the data and significant
assumptions provided to us;

14




EY

Building a better
working world

The issue was identified as key audit
matter in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements due to the significant
impact of the Electricity Act and
approved for the year 2020 tariff G for
the consolidated financial statements, as
well as due to a complex element of
professional judgment of the
Management of the Group and adopted
significant assumptions in regard to
recognition and measurement of
provisions for onerous contracts and
compensation in accordance with the
International Accounting Standard 37
Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

A reference to disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements

Disclosures regarding the entry into force
of the Electricity Act and its impact on
the consolidated financial statements
were presented in Note 12 of the
explanatory notes to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2019.

Disclosure regarding the provision for
onerous contracts in relation to the G
tariff in force in 2020 was presented in
note 39.2 of the explanatory notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2019.

Analysis and assessment of the
adequacy of disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in
relation to the guidelines contained in
the International Accounting Standard
37 Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets, as well as disclosures
regarding the key judgments of the
Parent’s Company Management Board
in recognizing the impact of the entry
into force of the Electricity Act.
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Responsibilities of the Company’s Management and members of the Supervisory Board
for the financial statements

The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position and the
consolidated financial performance in accordance with required applicable rules of
International Accounting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards approved
by the European Union, the adopted accounting policies, other applicable laws, as well as
the Company’s Statute, and is also responsible for such internal control as determined is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, The Company’s Management
is responsible for assessing the Group’s (the holding company and significant components’)
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless The Company’s
Management either intends to liquidate the Group (the holding company or significant
components) or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Management and the members of the Company’s Supervisory Board are
required to ensure that the consolidated financial statements meet the requirements of the
Accounting Act dated 29 September 1994 (the ‘Accounting Act’). The members of the
Company’s Supervisory Board are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error,
and to issue an independent auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with NAS will always detect material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements may arise as a result of fraud or error and are considered material if it can
reasonably be expected that individually or in the aggregate, they could influence
the economic decisions of the users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

In accordance with International Auditing Standard 320, section 5, the concept
of materiality is applied by the auditor both in planning and performing the audit, and in
evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on the audit and of uncorrected
misstatements, if any, on the consolidated financial statements and in forming the opinion
in the auditor’s report. Hence all auditor’s assertions and statements contained in the
auditor’s report are made with the contemplation of the qualitative and quantitative
materiality levels established in accordance with auditing standards and auditor’s
professional judgment.
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The scope of the audit does not include assurance on the future profitability of the Group
nor effectiveness of conducting business matters now and in the future by the Company’s
Management.

Throughout the audit in accordance with NAS, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism and we also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or override of internal
control,

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control,

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Company’s Management,

- conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s Management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our independent auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our independent auditor’s report, however, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation,

- we obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of entities and business activities within the Group for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are solely responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the Group
and we remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate to them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated to the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other information, including the Directors’ Report

The other information comprises the Directors’ Report for the period from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2019, the representation on the corporate governance and the
representation on preparation of the statement on non-financial information, mentioned in
article 55, section 2b of the Accounting Act as a separate element of the Directors’ Report
(jointly ‘Other Information’).

Responsibilities of the Company’s Management and members of the Supervisory Board

The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation the Other Information
in accordance with the law.

The Company’s Management and members of the Company’s Supervisory Board are
required to ensure that the Directors’ Report (with separate elements) meets the
requirements of the Accounting Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not include the Other
Information.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether it is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other information,
we are required to report that fact in our independent auditor’s report. Our responsibility
in accordance with the Act on Statutory Auditors is also to issue an opinion on whether the
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Directors’ Report was prepared in accordance with relevant laws and that it is consistent
with the information contained in the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, we are required to inform whether the Company has prepared
the representation on non-financial information and to issue an opinion on whether the
Company has included the required information in the representation on application of
corporate governance.

Opinion on the Directors’ Report
Based on the work performed during our audit, in our opinion, the Directors’ Report:

- has been prepared in accordance with the article 49 of the Accounting Act
and paragraph 71 of the Decree of the Minister of Finance dated 29 March 2018
on current and periodic information published by issuers of securities and conditions
for recognition as equivalent the information required by laws of non-EU member
states (the ‘Decree on current and periodic information’),

- is consistent with the information contained in the consolidated financial statements.

Moreover, based on our knowledge of the Group and its environment obtained during
our audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors’ Report.

Opinion on the corporate governance application representation

In our opinion, in the representation on application of corporate governance, the Group
has included information stipulated in paragraph 70, section 6, point 5 of the Decree
on current and periodic information.

Moreover, in our opinion, the information stipulated in paragraph 70, section 6, point 5
letter c-f, h and i of the Decree included in the representation on application of corporate
governance is in accordance with applicable laws and information included in the
consolidated financial statements.

Information on non-financial information

In accordance with the requirements of the Act on Statutory Auditors, we inform that the
Company has included in Directors’ Report information on the preparation of a separate
report on non-financial information, referred to in art. 55 par. 2c of the Accounting Act and
that the Company has prepared such a separate report.

We have not performed any attestation procedures in respect to the separate report on non-
financial information and do not express any assurance in its respect.
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Representation on the provision of non-audit services

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we represent that services other than audits
of the financial statements, which have been provided to the Group, are compliant with the
laws and regulations applicable in Poland, and that we have not provided non-audit services,
which are prohibited based on article 5 item 1 of Regulation 537/2014 and article 136
of the Act on Statutory Auditors. The non-audit services, which we have provided
to the Group in the audited period, have been disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

Appointment of the audit firm

We were appointed for the audit of the Group's consolidated financial statements initially
based on the resolution of Supervisory Board from 15 March 2017 and reappointed based
on the resolution from 28 November 2018. The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been audited by us uninterruptedly starting from the financial year ended on
31 December 2017, i.e. for the past three consecutive years.

Warsaw, 31 March 2020

Key Certified Auditor

Leszek Lerch
Certified auditor
no in the register: 9886

on behalf of:
Ernst & Young Audyt Polska
spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia sp. k.
Rondo ONZ 1,
00-124 Warsaw
no on the audit firms list: 130

20



p
\ '@ N
y 4

TAURON

CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards, as
endorsed by the European Union for the
year ended 31 December 2019

TAURON.PL




TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group

Consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards,
as endorsed by the European Union

for the year ended 31 December 2019



TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU

(in PLN thousand)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ........cooiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 4
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ...ttt ettt ettt e et e e 5
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - CONtINUEA ......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiei e 6
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ..ottt ettt e et e s nee e e 7
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ... ..ottt ettt e et e e et ee e st e e e enseeaesnnaeaesnsbeeeeanaeeeennees 8
INFORMATION ABOUT THE CAPITAL GROUP AND BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
L 0 L I N I | 9
1. General information about the TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group and its Parent.............cccccoiiieeiiieennns 9
2. Composition of the TAURON Capital Group and jOiNt VENTUMES ..........ooccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 9
2.1.  Assuming control over companies operating wind farms owned by the in.ventus group............cccccceeiiiinneen. 11
2.2.  Other changes in the TAURON GrOUP ........ccoiiuuiiiiieeees ittt e e e e e ettt e e e e s e et eaeaeseesataeaeaaesaessnsaaeeeaeesannnseeees 13
3. Statement Of COMPIANCE ... et e e e e e e st e e e e e e e et eeaeeaeee s atssseeaaeessannsssseeaeeeas 14
S € To] [ To 001 g Tot =Y o o HE SO PPRRP PP 14
5. Functional and Presentation CUIMTENCY ...........oiiiii ittt e e e e st e e e e e e st e e e e e e essetsareeaeeeseennnsreeeaaesas 14
6. Accounting principles (policy) and material values based on professional judgment and estimates ................c......... 15
7. Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations which have been published but are not yet effective....... 16
8. Changes in the aCCOUNLING POICIES .......ceiiiiiiieiie ettt e et e e s e e e nre e e e areeeenaas 16
8.1.  Application of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretation ............cccccooiriinii e, 17
8.2.  Other changes in accounting and presentation principles applied by the Group............cc.cccoeeviiiiiiiieeiine. 19
BUSINESS SEGIMIENTS ........ceiiiiiiiiieiceersssiessssnessssseesssmeessssssesssssne s sessmeessssnneaesasnessesnnnenssnssesassnnessesnneenssnneesensnnensssnnenes 21
9. Information 0N OPErating SEGMENTS ..........uuiiiiiii i e e e e e e et e e e e e e e s tb e e e eaaeeeseatssbeeaeeeesannnrreneaaeean 21
S T I O o T=Y = [ To JET=Yo 40 1T o | PSSP 23
9.2. GeographiC areas Of OPEIAtIONS ...........ciiiiuiiiiiie ettt e e ettt e e st e e aa b e e e entee e e sneeeeeannbeeessnseeeesnneeeas 24
IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS ......ooiiiiiiiiiieiiiisseessssssessssssesssssssessssssesssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssessessssessssnnenes 24
10. Impairment of NON-FIiNAnCIal ASSELS.........coii it e e s e e e e s 24
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME............ccccoiioimreerneee e e 28
11. Salesrevenue ......................
12. Recompensation revenue
13. Cost of goods, products, materials and services sold (COst 0f SAIES) .........uuviiiiiiiiiiiiii e 32
S T B (o 1= ) EY Lo o)V 1Y o 1= RSP UPPPPPPRN 33
13.2. EMPIOYEE DENETITS EXPENSES ...ooviiiiiiiiiiiie et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e et b e e e eaeeeesntsaeeeaeeeaannnes 34
13.3. Depreciation and amortization charges and impairment [0SSES .............ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 34
14. Other operating reVeNUE @Nd EXPENSES .........uvviiiieeieiiiiiieiee e e e aereeeeeeeeeeeteaaeeaeaesaa e saaeeeaeesaaasssbaeaeaessaanssseareaeseasssrenes 35
15. FiNANCE INCOME @NA COSES .....eiiiii ittt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e aaeeeeeae e e e e saeteeeaaaeaannnsseeeeaeaeaannsbneeaaaeaanannneeean 35
16. COStS AriSING FrOM IEASES ...t ettt e et e e e et e e e s e e e s et e e enn et e nnn e e e s enneeens 36
L oo T3 g -1 = USSR 36
17.1. Tax expense in the statement of comprehensive INCOME ...........ccooiiiii i 37
17.2. Reconciliation of the effective TaX Fate...........c.oii i e e e 37
LA B B =Y (=14 (=T N aTeTo) o TN = b G PP SPPTRR 38
18. EQrnings (I0SS) PEI SNATE ......eciiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e bb e e eeeee e st aaaeeeaeeseaassssaeeaaeeeaasnsbeeeeaeeeesnssnneas 38
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION .......cccociiiiererieeesseresee s sseesse e sseesnes 39
19. Property, plant and EQUIPMENT ..........ooiiiii e e e et e e e e e e e et e e e s e e — e e e e e e ea et —eaaaaeaeeaarranes
20. RiIGhT-0Of-USE @SSELS. ...ttt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e et e eeeee e e e s st baaeeeeeessasaesseeeeeeeansnsbeeeeeeeeeannrsnees
240 T € o T T A1/ | USRS
22. Energy certificates and CO2 emiSSIiON @llOWANCES.........ccccuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt et e e e e e naes
22.1. Long-term energy certificates and CO2 emission allowances
22.2. Short-term energy certificates and CO2 emission allowances
22.3. Balance of CO2 emission allowances recorded in the Union Registry ...........cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 44
23. Other INtANGIDIE ASSEIS .....oviiiiii ittt e ettt e e e e e et eeee e e e s atbsaeeeae e s s saaeseeaeeeeasnnbeeeaeeeenanssnees 44
24, INVESIMENLES IN JOINT VENTUMES ...ttt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e eaabeeeeeaeessasaeseeeeaeseansseeeaaeseeannssaeeas 46
25. Loans granted t0 JOINT VENTUIES .........coiiii oottt e e e ettt e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e sastaaaeeeeeeseeasnseseeaeaesansnnrenees 48
26. Other fINANCIAI @SSEIS ... .. ittt oottt e e e e et et ettt eee e e e e anbeeeeeae e easaeeeeeaeaeaannnseeeaaaeaeannnrnneas 48
27. Other NON-fINANCIAL @SSEES ....oiii ittt e oo ettt e e e e e s e teeeeeea e e e e naeeeeeaaesaaannsbeeeaaeseeannnreneas 49
27.1.  Other non-current NON-fINANCIAl ASSELS ........ooiiu it e e e e e e e e 49
27.2. Other current NON-fINANCIAI @SSELS ..........eiiiiiiiiii ettt e e et e e e e e e e e e snnnbe e e e e e e e e e nneneeas 50
B4 T 10 1Y7= 01 () 4 = SRR RSR PR 50
29. RECEIVADIES frOM DUYETS .....coiiiiiiieeeeee ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e s e b b e e aeeeee e s st aabeeeaeeseeaanssseeaaeeeensnsrenees 51
30. INCOME TAX FECEIVADIES ...ttt e ettt e e e ettt e ettt e e emt e e e e smbe e e e antbe e e eanneeeeambeeeeanteeeennnnes 52
31. Receivables arising from other taxes and Charges..........cooocuuiiiiiio i e 53
32. Cash and Cash QUIVAIENTS ...........ooiiii e et e e re e e e et e e s e e e s e e e enn e 53
K3 T o U1 PP PPPPU PP PRPP 54
331 ISSUEA CAPILAL ...ttt et e e e e b e as 54
K T - T =T g Lo (o =T o L £ PSPPSR P PP R SPPPP PRI 55
33.3. RESEIVE CAPILAl .....eeeiiiitiie etttk e e e E e et e nnn e e e e e e r e e e narree s 55
33.4. Retained earnings and accumulated losses and restrictions on dividend payment.............cuvvevviiiiiiiiiiieineennns 55
2

This is a translation of the document originally issued and signed in Polish



TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU

(in PLN thousand)
33.5. Revaluation reserve from valuation of hedging iNStruments............c.ccooociiiiiiii e 55
33.6. NON-CONLrOIING INTEIEST ......eeiiieiiiee et e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e e eeeessesaeaeeaeeaesennnsaeeeeaeaas 55
B B 11V, To [=Ya o I3 o X o H PP 56
BT TR I T o ) PR 56
35.1.  LO@ANS @NA DOITOWINGS ....ceeiiiiiietee ettt ettt et e e seb et e e aa e e e e e se e e e sar e e e e aan e e e e earn e e e nareeeas 57
KT = T Lo 3N 1] U= ST 60
35.3. Debt agreemeENnt COVENANTS ..........oiiiiiiiiieii et e e ettt e s st e st e e et e e snn e e e s neee s 62
B S - 1T | = o 11 Y USRI 62
36. Provisions for emMployee DENETILS. ........ccoi it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aarrrraaaaean 63
36.1. Provisions for post-employment benefits and jubilee bONUSES............ccccuviiiiiiiiiiiii e 64
36.2. Provisions for employment termination benefits and other provisions for employee benefits.......................... 65
37. Provisions for dismantling fixed assets, restoration of land and other proviSions............cccccvieieiiiiciiieee e 65
37.1. Provision for mine deComMmISSIONING COSES.........uuiiiiiiiiiiiie it 66
37.2. Provision for restoration of land and dismantling and removal of fixed assets ...........ccccccoeieiiiiiiic e, 67
38. Provisions for liabilities due to CO2 emission allowances and energy certificates...........ccoviviiiiiiiiiicec e 67
38.1. Provision for CO2 emisSion Habilities ..........o et e e e e e e 67
38.2. Provision for the obligation to surrender energy certificates.........ccccccoeiiiiiiiiii i 68
RS B @i o = g o] o )Y/ =1 o o - PSPPSR 68
39.1. Provision for use of real estate WithOUt CONIraCt.............cciiiiiiii i 69
39.2. Provisions fOr ONEIOUS CONTFACES .........uiiiiiiiieeiieie ettt ettt e et e e e et e e s saee e s sane e e e enbeeeesnneeesnneeeas 69
39.3. Provisions for counterparty claims, court disputes and other proviSions ...........ccccveveiiee e, 70
40. Accruals, deferred income and goverNmMENt Grants ...........ooii i e e e e e e e e ee e e e e e enneeeeas 71
40.1. Deferred income and goVErNMENT Grants........o o it e et ee e e e e et e e e e e e e e snnneeeeeaeaeaanees 72
40.2.  ACCIUEH EXPENSES. .. . .eiteiieaeeeiaiieeeteae e e e e eeetaeaaaaaataeeeaeaaaaaa neeeaeaaasaaasssteeeaaaeaa nsseeeeaaesaaansssseaaaeaaaasseneeaaeaeaannns 72
I = o[ [T (o BTN o] o] 1= = SRS PRPP PP 72
42, Capital COMMUIMENTS ... st e e e e e e eeeee e s e e etaebeeeeeeeeaasaeeeeaeseessasbsaeaaaesanssaneeaeeeeansssnnes 72
43. Liabilities arising from other taxes and ChargES...........c.uuuiiiiii i e e s e et e e e e e sanraee s 73
Y @) (1= o 1 F= T g Tt = = o 11 PSPPI 73
45. Other current non-financial labIlHIES. ..........o e e e e e e e e e eas 74
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS .......cccoiimmeiiimresnnrmasssenanss 74
46. Significant items of the consolidated statement of cash flOWs ..............ooooiiiiii e 74
46.1. Cash flows from operating aCtiVItIeS ............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e e e e e e e e et be e e e e e e e anees 75
46.2. Cash from/used in iINVEStiNG ACHIVILIES ........cooiuiiiii e 76
46.3. Cash from/used in fiN@NCING ACHVITIES ........ccoiiiiiiii e 76
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT .....cccveuiimmmeniriassrnnsssrnnsss s sssmssssnsnssssees 77
A7, FINANCIAI INSITUMIEBNTS. ...ttt e e e e e ettt e e e e e bbbttt e e e e e e aanbe e e e e e e e aaebeeees 77
47.1. Carrying amount and fair value of financial instrument classes and categories .........ccccocvvrniiie e 78
47.2. Revenue, expenses, gain and loss items included in the statement of comprehensive income by category of
fiNANCIAl INSIFUMENTS ...ttt ettt e e e e e e be e e eea e e e s ntaeaeeaeaeeannnneeaeaeasaannes 80
47.3. Derivative instruments and hedge aCCOUNTING..........coiriii it e e 81
48. Principles and objectives of financial risk Management.............ccuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 82
3 Tt TR O T |1 4 1 -GPSR 83
48.1.1 Credit risk related to receivables from DUYEIS ...........oooiiiiiiiii e 84
48.1.2 Credit risk related to other financial receivables..............oooiiiiiiii e 84
48.1.3 Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and derivatives instruments.............ccccoiiiiiiiiiieee 85
48.1.4 Credit risk related t0 10aNS Granted ...........oooiiiiiiii et 85
A8.2.  LIQUIITY FISK .ottt ekt e et e e e bt e e ek bt e e e st e et e eh e e e ek e e e e n e e e e nan e e e e e e e ea 86
TG T |V = 4 (T A ] PP UPUURPRRN 88
R R I [0 (== = L4 PSRRI 88
A8.3.2 CUITENCY TISK ..rteiiieiiieititeit e e e e eee ettt e et e e ettt e e e e e e et baeeeeeeeesaatasteeeeeeeaaassssseeeeeeaasasbeeeaaes e snsssesaaeeeeanssssneeeaeasannsn 90
48.3.3 Raw material and commodity price risk related to commodity derivative instruments and price risk related to
LU 01 T PSP SPPPP PP 92
49, OPEIALIONAI FISK ...ttt ettt e e et e oo sttt e e b et e ek bt e oo se et e e ess et e e e b et e e e ne et e e b n e e e e aaer e e e e nne e e e nenree s 92
OTHER INFORMATION ... .cceuuiiimusisrrmesrrnnssssrnasssssssa s sssassssrsasssss s ma s s s aasss £ e R o e s £ e R A EE R RR SR £ ERR R AN £ R RRR S EEnRnRRs ERnnsssnsnnns
T 070 )01 o (=Y T [F=T o] 111 = PSPPSR
51. Security for liabilities.............
52. Related-party disclosures
52.1. Transactions With JOINT VENTUIES ........uuiiiiiiie e e e 100
52.2. Transactions with State Treasury COMPANIES. ........oouiii ittt 100
52.3. Compensation Of the EXECULIVES ...........iiiiiiii e e 101
53. Finance and capital ManagemENt ............uuiiiiiii i e e e s e e e e e e e e e e s e et — e e e e e e e nrrraaaaeaan 101
54. Fee of the certified auditor or the entity authorized to audit financial statements ...............cccccovviiiie i 103
55. Other material INTOIME@LION ..........eiiie ettt e e sttt e e ettt e e san e e e s anbeeeeanteeeesnnneeeaanneeeeans 103
56. Events after the end of the reporting PEHOM ............veiiiiii e e e e e e et e e e e e s e nreeaaaaean 104

This is a translation of the document originally issued and signed in Polish



TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU
(in PLN thousand)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 December 2019 31 Decemb.er 2018
(restated figures)
Sales revenue 11 19 558 292 18 121 748
Recompensation revenue 12 952 650 -
Cost of sales, of which: 13 (19 264 536) (16 437 147)
Impairment of non-financial non-current assets 13.3 (1275 480) (815 410)
Profit on sale 1246 406 1 684 601
Selling and distribution expenses 13 (499 171) (477 794)
Administrative expenses 13 (658 664) (631 487)
Other operating income and expenses 14 158 936 160 519
Share in profit/(loss) of joint ventures 24 47 947 54 890
Operating profit 295 454 790 729
Interest expense on debt 15 (250 800) (147 372)
Finance income and other finance costs 15 (60 022) (138 710)
Profit (loss) before tax (15 368) 504 647
Income tax expense 171 3685 (297 602)
Net profit (loss) (11 683) 207 045
Measurement of hedging instruments 33.5 15179 (24 297)
Foreign exchange differences from translation of foreign entity 505 7 240
Income tax 171 (2 884) 4617
Other comprehensive income subject to reclassification to 12 800 (12 440)
profit or loss
Actuarial gains/(losses) 36.1 (140 320) (14 830)
Income tax 171 26 654 2819
Share in other comprehensive income of joint ventures 24 (987) (71)
Otht?r comprehensive income not subject to reclassification to (114 653) (12 082)
profit or loss
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (101 853) (24 522)
Total comprehensive income (113 536) 182 523
Net profit (loss):
Attributable to equity holders of the Parent (10 908) 204 880
Attributable to non-controlling interests (775) 2 165
Total comprehensive income:
Attributable to equity holders of the Parent (112 530) 180 398
Attributable to non-controlling interests (1 006) 2125
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share (in PLN): 18 (0.01) 0.12

Accounting principles (policy) and notes to the consolidated financial statements constitute
an integral part thereof
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TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU
(in PLN thousand)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 Januan{ 2018
(restated figures) (restated figures)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 19 31099 071 29 406 667 28 276 071
Right-of-use assets 20 1773 498 - -
Goodwill 21 26 183 26 183 40 156
Energy certificates and CO, emission allowances for surrender 221 468 197 661 603 303 130
Other intangible assets 23 478 261 1287 703 1254 077
Investments in joint ventures 24 559 144 543 913 499 204
Loans granted to joint ventures 25 238 035 217 402 240 767
Other financial assets 26 235522 254 677 238 354
Other non-financial assets 271 152 288 168 051 202 785
Deferred tax assets 17.3 22 088 30 105 46 122
35 052 287 32 596 304 31 100 666

Current assets -

Energy certificates and CO, emission allowances for surrender 22.2 1285193 201 663 652 260
Inventories 28 684 152 509 801 295 463
Receivables from buyers 29 2290 746 2229 363 2032813
Income tax receivables 30 255702 14 497 2128
Receivables arising from other taxes and charges 31 384714 209 746 241 998
Loans granted to joint ventures 25 4999 5 329 665
Other financial assets 26 599 035 443 033 219933
Other non-financial assets 27.2 100 275 55 629 34 931
Cash and cash equivalents 32 1237 952 823724 909 249
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 22710 13712 15910
6 865 478 4501173 4 734 350

TOTAL ASSETS 41 917 765 37 097 477 35 835 016

Accounting principles (policy) and notes to the consolidated financial statements constitute
an integral part thereof
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TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU
(in PLN thousand)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - continued

As at As at
31 December 2018 1 January 2018
(restated figures) (restated figures)

As at

31 December 2019

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent

Issued capital 331 8762 747 8762747 8762747
Reserve capital 33.3 6 801 584 8511437 7 657 086
Revaluation reserve from valuation of hedging instruments 33.5 15 666 3371 23 051
Foreign exchange differences from translation of foreign entities 14 521 14 016 6776
Retained earnings/(Accumulated losses) 334 2597 708 1004 253 1586 786
18 192 226 18 295 824 18 036 446
Non-controlling interests 33.6 900 434 132 657 31367
Total equity 19 092 660 18 428 481 18 067 813
Non-current liabilities -
Debt 35 11 830 183 8488 210 9501 414
Provisions for employee benefits 36 1313 480 1114 191 1380 650
Prov_lsl|ons for dismantling of fixed assets, land restoration and other 37 663 130 306 513 351138
provisions
Accruals, deferred income and government grants 40 460 003 440 309 541 318
Deferred tax liabilities 17.3 605 285 823 754 871 865
Other financial liabilities 44 79 417 107 770 91879
Other non-financial liabilities 11776 11 507 1588
14 963 274 11 382 254 12 739 852
Current liabilities -
Debt 35 2484 093 2475167 351382
Liabilities to suppliers 41 847 226 1127 738 1042 427
Capital commitments 42 757 943 794 917 797 304
Provisions for employee benefits 36 118 418 117 287 134 273
Provisions for liabilities due to energy certificates and CO, emission 38 1378233 495 472 048 946
allowances
Other provisions 39 563 753 559 365 353 271
Accruals, deferred income and government grants 40 185 544 200 097 296 576
Income tax liabilities 3853 426 38 446
Liabilities arising from other taxes and charges 43 589 001 405 654 411714
Other financial liabilities 44 560 455 773 571 342 162
Other non-financial liabilities 45 364 376 337 048 310 850
Liabilities directly related to non-current assets classified as held for sale 8 936 - -
7 861 831 7 286 742 5027 351
Total liabilities 22 825 105 18 668 996 17 767 203
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 41917 765 37 097 477 35835016

Accounting principles (policy) and notes to the consolidated financial statements constitute
an integral part thereof
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TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU
(in PLN thousand)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent

Revaluation reserve on Fo.reign [CHEN T Reta.ined Non-controlling - .
Issued capital Reserve capital  valuation of hedging d|fferenct.es from earnings/ interests otal equity
instruments tral?slatlorr f’f (Accumulated
foreign entities losses)
31 December 2017 8762 747 7 657 086 23 051 6776 1586 786 18 036 446 31367 18067 813
Impact of IFRS 9 - - - - (100 422) (100 422) (14) (100 436)
Impact of IFRS 15 - - - - 179 426 179 426 411 179 837
As at 1 January 2018 8762 747 7 657 086 23 051 6776 1665 790 18 115 450 31764 18147 214
Dividends 33.6 - - - - - - (879) (879)
Other transactions with non-controlling shareholders 33.6 - - - - (24) (24) 99 647 99 623
Distribution of prior years profits - 854 351 - - (854 351) - - -
Transactions with shareholders - 854 351 - - (854 375) (24) 98 768 98 744
Net profit - - - - 204 880 204 880 2 165 207 045
Other comprehensive income - - (19 680) 7 240 (12 042) (24 482) (40) (24 522)
Total comprehensive income - - (19 680) 7 240 192 838 180 398 2125 182 523
As at 31 December 2018 8 762 747 8 511 437 3371 14 016 1004 253 18 295 824 132 657 18 428 481
Dividends 33.6 - - - - - - (1932) (1932)
33.6 - - - - 8843 8843 771157 780 000
Other transactions with non-controlling shareholders 33.6 - - - - 89 89 (442) (353)
Coverage of prior years loss 33.3 - (1709 853) - - 1709 853 - - -
Transactions with shareholders - (1709 853) - - 1718 785 8 932 768 783 777 715
Net loss - - - - (10 908) (10 908) (775) (11 683)
Other comprehensive income - - 12 295 505 (114 422) (101 622) (231) (101 853)
Total comprehensive income - - 12 295 505 (125 330) (112 530) (1 006) (113 536)
As at 31 December 2018 8762 747 6 801 584 15 666 14 521 2 597 708 18 192 226 900 434 19 092 660

Accounting principles (policy) and notes to the consolidated financial statements constitute an integral part thereof
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TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU
(in PLN thousand)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended Year ended

Note 31 December 2018

31 December 2019 o)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit (loss) before taxation (15 368) 504 647
Share in (profit)/loss of joint ventures (47 947) (54 890)
Depreciation and amortization 1991733 1838 941
Impairment losses on non-financial non-current assets 1310 000 862 209
Exchange differences (35614) 78 542
Interest and commissions 250 571 145 136
Profit on bargain purchase of wind farms (119 515) -
Other adjustments of profit before tax 49 052 24 065

Change in working capital 46.1 (923 601) (783 845)

Income tax paid 46.1 (423 736) (392 184)

Net cash from operating activities 2 035 575 2 222 621

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 46.2 (4 035 132) (3 741 566)

Cash transfer related to the acquisition of wind farms (after deduction of the

acquired cash balance) 46.2 (AR ) )
Loans granted 46.2 (23 225) (52 110)
Purchase of financial assets (17 455) (29 965)
Total payments (4 618 891) (3 823 641)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 28 696 29 000
Repayment of loans granted 15 600 301 225
Dividends received 36 442 23 608
Redemption of investment fund units - 77742
Other proceeds 3415 4 664
Total proceeds 84 153 436 239
Net cash used in investing activities (4 534 738) (3 387 402)
Cash flows from financing activities
Redemption of debt securities 46.3 (2 420 000) -
Repayment of loans and borrowings 46.3 (867 360) (168 874)
Interest paid 46.3 (212 556) (160 170)
Repayment of lease libilities 46.3 (75 047) (23 521)
Grants returned - (10 000)
Other payments (20 914) (18 687)
Total payments (3 595 877) (381 252)
Issue of debt securities 46.3 500 000 1350 000
Proceeds from contracted loans 43.3 5150 000 293
Proceeds from non-controlling interests 43.3 780 000 100 000
Subsidies received 60 669 102 359
Total proceeds 6 490 669 1552 652
Net cash from financing activities 2 894 792 1171 400
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents ( ) 395 629 6619
Net foreign exchange difference (256) (422)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 32 807 972 801 353
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period, of which: 32 1203 601 807 972
restricted cash 32 729 450 231987

Accounting principles (policy) and notes to the consolidated financial statements constitute an integral part thereof
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TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU
(in PLN thousand)

INFORMATION ABOUT THE CAPITAL GROUP AND BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General information about the TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group and its Parent

The TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group (the "Group", the "Capital Group", the "TAURON Group") is composed
of TAURON Polska Energia S.A. (the "Parent", the "Company") and its subsidiaries. TAURON Polska Energia S.A,, is
located in Katowice at ul. ks. Piotra Sciegiennego 3. The Company operates as a joint-stock company incorporated by
a notarized deed on 6 December 2006. Until 16 November 2007 it had operated under the name Energetyka Potudnie
S.A.

The Parent has been entered in the Register of Entrepreneurs of the National Court Register kept by the District Court
for Katowice-Wschéd, Business Division of the National Court Register, under number KRS 0000271562.

The duration of the Parent and the companies in the Capital Group is unlimited. The entities operate based on
appropriate licenses granted to individual companies of the Group.

The core business of the TAURON Group includes the following segments: Mining, Generation (encompassing
generation of electricity from conventional and renewable sources and generation of heat), Distribution, Sales and other
operations, including customer service, which has been discussed in more detail in Note 9 to these consolidated financial
statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and
contain comparative information for the year ended 31 December 2018. Due to a retrospective change in accounting
policy, as presented in note 8.2 of these consolidated financial statements, the opening balance sheet of the earliest
period disclosed is also presented, i.e. as at 1 January 2018.

These consolidated financial statements were approved for publication by the Management Board on 30 March 2020.

Composition of the Management Board

As at 31 December 2019, the composition of the Management Board was as follows:
» Filip Grzegorczyk - President of the Management Board;

» Jarostaw Broda - Vice President of the Management Board;

+ Marek Wadowski - Vice President of the Management Board.

On 21 September 2019, the Supervisory Board of the Company dismissed Kamil Kaminski, Vice President of the
Management Board from the composition of the Management Board and from his function.

After the reporting period there were no changes in the composition of the Company's Management Board.
2. Composition of the TAURON Capital Group and joint ventures

As at 31 December 2019, TAURON Polska Energia S.A. held direct and indirect interest in the following key subsidiaries:
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TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU
(in PLN thousand)

Company name

Registered office

Operating
segment

Interest in the decision-

Interest in the share

capital by TAURON
Polska Energia S.A.

making body held by
TAURON Polska
Energia S.A.

1 TAURON Wydobycie S.A. Jaworzno Mining 100.00% 100.00%
2 TAURON Wytwarzanie S.A. Jaworzno Generation 100.00% 100.00%
Nowe Jaworzno . o o
3 Grupa TAURON Sp. 2 0.0. Jaworzno Generation 84.76% 84.76%
4 TAURON Ekoenergia Sp. z 0.0. Jelenia Géra Generation 100.00% 100.00%
5 Marselwind Sp. z 0.0. Katowice Generation 100.00% 100.00%
6 TAURON Ciepto Sp. z 0.0. Katowice Generation 100.00% 100.00%
7 TAURON Serwis Sp. z 0.0. Katowice Generation 95.61% 95.61%
8 TAURON Dystrybucja S.A. Krakow Distribution 99.75% 99.75%
9 TAURON Dystrybucja Pomiary Sp. z 0.0." Tarnéw Distribution 99.75% 99.75%
10 TAURON Sprzedaz Sp. z 0.0. Krakéw Sales 100.00% 100.00%
11 TAURON Sprzedaz GZE Sp. z 0.0. Gliwice Sales 100.00% 100.00%
Ostrawa, o o
12 TAURON Czech Energy s.r.o. Czech Republic Sales 100.00% 100.00%
13 TAURON Dystrybucja Serwis S.A. Wroctaw Sales 100.00% 100.00%
14 TAURON Obstuga Klienta Sp. z 0.0. Wroctaw Other 100.00% 100.00%
15 Kopalnia Wapienia Czatkowice Sp. z 0.0. Krzeszowice Other 100.00% 100.00%
16 Polska Energia-Pierwsza Kompania Warszawa Other 100.00% 100.00%
Handlowa Sp. z 0.0.
17 Finanse Grupa TAURON Sp. z 0.0. Katowice Other 100.00% 100.00%
18 Bioeko Grupa TAURON Sp. z 0.0. Stalowa Wola Other 100.00% 100.00%
19 Wsparcie Grupa TAURON Sp. z 0.0." Tarnéw Other 99.75% 99.75%
20 TEC1 Sp. zo.0. Katowice Generation 100.00% 100.00%
21 TEC2 Sp. zo.0. Katowice Generation 100.00% 100.00%
22 TEC3 Sp. z o.0. Katowice Generation 100.00% 100.00%
TEC1 spotk i
23 ) §po ? Z ograrflczonq 3 Katowice Generation n/a 100.00%
odpowiedzialnoscig Mogilno | sp.k.
24 TE_C1 .spolk'a Z ograr?lczona 3 Katowice Generation n/a 100.00%
odpowiedzialnoscig Mogilno Il sp.k.
25 TI_EC1 .spolk’a ,Z ogra.nlczona 3 Katowice Generation n/a 100.00%
odpowiedzialnoscig Mogilno IlI sp.k.
26 TI,EC1 .spollfa-z ogra.nlczonq 3 Katowice Generation n/a 100.00%
odpowiedzialnoscig Mogilno IV sp.k.
27 TEC1 -spolk’a _Z ograr-uczonq 3 Katowice Generation n/a 100.00%
odpowiedzialno$cig Mogilno V sp.k.
28 TI,EC1 .spoﬂfa-z ogra.nlczonq 3 Katowice Generation n/a 100.00%
odpowiedzialnoscig Mogilno VI sp.k.
TEC1 spotk i
29 . spo’ 'a z ogran!czona 3 Katowice Generation n/a 100.00%
odpowiedzialnoécig EW Sniatowo sp.k.
TEC1 spotka z ograniczong ) .
30 Katt G t / 100.00%
odpowiedzialno$cig EW Dobrzyn sp.k.’ atowice eneration ne ’
TECH1 spoétka z ograniczong ) .
31 Katt G t 100.00%
odpowiedzialnoscig EW Gotdap sp.k.* atowice eneration n/a 00.00%
TEC1 spotk i
32 spoia z ograniczong Katowice Generation n/a 100.00%

odpowiedzialnoscig Ino 1 sp.k.3

"TAURON Polska Energia S.A. holds indirect interest in TAURON Dystrybucja Pomiary Sp. z o.0. and Wsparcie Grupa TAURON Sp. z o.o. through its
subsidiary, TAURON Dystrybucja S.A. TAURON Polska Energia S.A. uses shares of TAURON Dystrybucja Pomiary Sp. z o0.0.

20n 23 August 2019, a cross-border business-combination of Finanse Grupa TAURON Sp. z o.0. (the acquirer) with TAURON Sweden Energy AB (publ)
(the acquiree) was registered as described in detail in Note 2.2 hereto.
3 The rights and obligations in limited partnerships are held by TAURON Polska Energia S.A. indirectly through its subsidiaries TEC1 Sp. z o.0. and TEC3

Sp. z 0.0. and German partnerships, as described in detail in Note 2.1 hereto.

As at 31 December 2019, TAURON Polska Energia S.A. held direct and indirect interest in the following key jointly-
controlled entities:

Company nhame

Registered office

Operating
segment

Interest in the share
capital and in the
decision-making body
held by TAURON

Polska Energia S.A

1 Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A." Stalowa Wola Generation 50.00%
2 TAMEH HOLDING Sp. z 0.0. 2 Dabrowa Gornicza Generation 50.00%
3 TAMEH POLSKA Sp. z 0.0. 2 Dabrowa Gornicza Generation 50.00%
4 TAMEH Czech s.r.0. 2 Ostrawa, Generation 50.00%

Czech Republic

"TAURON Polska Energia S.A. holds indirect interest in Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A. through a subsidiary, TAURON Wytwarzanie S.A.
2TAURON Polska Energia S.A. holds direct interest in the issued capital and the governing body of TAMEH HOLDING Sp. z o.0., which holds
100% interest in the issued capital and the governing bodies of TAMEH POLSKA Sp. z o.0. and TAMEH Czech s.r.o.

This is a translation of the document originally issued and signed in Polish
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TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU
(in PLN thousand)

2.1. Assuming control over companies operating wind farms owned by the in.ventus group

On 3 September 2019, the transaction documentation regarding TEC1 Sp. z 0.0., TEC2 Sp. z 0.0. and TEC3 Sp. z o.0.
(subsidiaries of TAURON Polska Energia S.A.) purchasing five wind farms owned by the in.ventus group and amounts
owed to Hamburg Commercial Bank AG (formerly HSH Nordbank AG) by wind farm operators was signed.
The transaction involved the following acquisitions:

e TEC1 Sp. z 0.0. - rights and obligations of the general partner of the Polish partnerships owning the wind farms;

e TEC2 Sp. z 0.0. - rights and obligations of the general partner of the German partnerships which are limited partners
of the Polish partnerships,

e TEC3 Sp. z 0.0. - the rights and obligations of the limited partner of the Polish and German partnerships, at the same
time acquiring their debt contracted from Hamburg Commercial Bank AG and amounts owed to their former
shareholders as a result of loans granted to the Polish partnerships.

In order to perform the intended transaction, on 2 September 2019, Extraordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting of
TEC1 Sp. z 0.0., TEC2 Sp. z 0.0.,, TEC3 Sp. z 0.0. decided to increase their issued capital. The Company assumed
the new shares for the total amount of PLN 600 900 thousand. The surplus of the above amount received as part of the
capital increase over the value of cash transferred under the transaction in the amount of PLN 579 661 thousand is
allocated to the companies' operating activities.

The total value of the transferred cash was determined based on the locked box mechanism as at 31 December 2018
and as at the transaction date amounted to PLN 579 661 thousand, including PLN 21 590 thousand of the acquisition
price and PLN 558 071 thousand of the debt repaid to Hamburg Commercial Bank AG. The entire amount was
transferred in cash.

In the Company's opinion, the fair value of the payment made does not differ from its nominal value.

As at
3 September 2019
(unaudited)
Business acquisition price, including: 21 590
Consideration paid for rights and obligations acquired in partnerships 8 490
Consideration paid for amounts owed to former shareholders, arising from contracted loans 13 100
Repayment of debt contracted with Hamburg Commercial Bank AG 558 071
Total value of cash transferred in the transaction 579 661

The Group carried out an analysis, as a result of which it concluded that the transaction is a business combination as
defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations. The acquired wind farms are fully operational. The transaction included the
acquisition of all business processes and operations of the wind farms (except for management-related processes to be
replaced by processes already adopted by the Group), including rent and lease of land on which the generating assets
are located, maintenance and service agreements regarding these assets and power sales contracts. Taking into
account the above, the conditions to qualify the subject of the transaction as a business under IFRS 3 Business
Combinations are met.

In line with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, the transaction was settled using the acquisition method. The day of taking
over control the business was assumed on 3 September 2019. As at 30 September 2019, bearing in mind the short
period that passed after the control assuming date, the Group was unable to obtain all the information necessary to
complete the identification and fair value measurement of the acquired assets and liabilities and made a provisional
settlement of the transaction. As at 31 December 2019, the Group has completed the process of valuation to fair value of
property, plant and equipment, and valuation of provisions for cost of disassembly of non-current wind farm assets, which
are the most significant elements of the net assets of the acquired business combination, performed by an independent
experts. The Company also has identified and valued the remaining acquired net assets to fair value. Therefore, in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group presents the fair values of the acquired assets and liabilities and finally
settles the transaction using the acquisition method.

Fair values of assets and liabilities acquired as at the date of taking over control are presented in the following table:

11
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TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU

(in PLN thousand)
As at As at
3 September 2019 3 September 2019
(unaudited) (unaudited)
ASSETS EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets Non-current liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 712193 Liabilities due to loans granted by Hamburg Commercial Bank AG 558 071
Right-of-use assets 36 163 Lease liabilities 32 964
Other non-financial assets 484 ::’e;ol\::g;z:or costs of disassembly of non-current assets and land 60817
Deferred tax liability 3122
748 840 654 974
Current assets Current liabilities
Inventories 10 579 Lease liabilities 2251
Receivables from buyers 3802 Liabilities to suppliers and other financial liabilities 3459
Other non-financial assets 6 605 Accruals and government grants 606
Cash and cash equivalents 36 582 Liabilities arising from other taxes and charges 4013
57 568 10 329
TOTAL ASSETS 806 408 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 665 303
ACQUIRED NET ASSETS 141 105

Liabilities due to loans granted by Hamburg Commercial Bank AG, acquired with assets in the net amount of PLN
558 071 thousand were repaid when the transaction was concluded. As a result, the portfolio of the acquired companies
does not include financial debt arising from loans contracted from entities outside the TAURON Capital Group.

In relation to the value of net assets presented as provisional settlement of the transaction in the condensed interim
consolidated financial statements for the 9- months ended 30 September 2019 (unaudited), has significantly changed the
value of:

e property, plant and equipment, whose provisional value amounted to PLN 857 797 thousand,

e provisions for costs of disassembly of non-current assets, whose temporary value amounted to PLN 51 258
thousand.

As a result of the above changes, related to the fair value measurement, the amount of the deferred tax liability, whose
provisional value amounted to PLN 31 055 thousand, also changed significantly. The fair value of other net assets does
not differ significantly from their provisional values.

As at the acquisition date, the determined amount of identifiable assets and acquired liabilities exceeds the consideration
transferred by the Group. Therefore, according to the Group, the transaction is a bargain purchase.

As at
3 September 2019
(unaudited)
Acquisition price 21 590
Acquired identifiable net assets 141 105
Gains on bargain purchase 119 515

Considering the specific requirements of IFRS 3 Business Combinations regarding the possibility of recognizing a
possible gains on bargain purchase, the Group reassessed the completeness of identification of the acquired assets and
liabilities and the procedures used to determine their value. As a consequence of the procedures performed, the Group
decided that it is justified to recognized gains on bargain purchase in the above amount as operating activities in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

According to the Group, the bargain purchase gains resulted from a series of circumstances, the key of which were
related to the financial standing of entities disposing of the assets and changes in the market standing of renewable
energy sources that were favorable for the Company. In particular, following the privatization effected in 2018, Hamburg
Commercial Bank AG commenced activities aimed at improvement of its financial standing, among others in the form of
restructuring its loan debt portfolio. It should also be noted, the entities in which the TAURON Group acquired rights and
obligations were in a bad financial standing, among others due to the need to repay their debt, in conditions of falling
prices of green energy certificates, experienced in prior years. A market change involving an increase in the prices of
electricity and of green certificates in the period from the seller’s approval of the binding tender to the transaction closure
date was another aspect contributing to the profitability of the transaction.
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Revenue from the sale of the acquired wind farms from the acquisition to 31 December 2019 amounted to PLN 68 869
thousand and operating profit reached to PLN 37 324 thousand. The Group estimates the revenue from sales of the
acquired wind farms for the year ended 31 December 2019 at PLN 174 862 thousand, and the related operating profit at
PLN 41 958 thousand.

Acquiring control over wind farms formerly owned by the in.ventus group complies with the updated strategic directions
published on 27 May 2019 and supplementing the TAURON Group Strategy for 2016-2025, which provides for
an increase in low- and zero-emission generation installed capacity as described in detail in Note 55 hereto.

In relation to the purchase of the wind farms, on 4 September 2019, in relation to the case filed by Hamburg Commercial
Bank AG against TAURON Sprzedaz Sp. z 0.0. regarding the payment of damages due to the failure to deliver under
contracts on sales of property rights arising from green certificates and liquidated damages charged in relation to
the termination of the above contracts in the total amount of PLN 232 879 thousand with statutory interest for delay,
calculated from the date of filing the case (i.e. 7 March 2019) to the date of payment, the Bank and TAURON Sprzedaz
Sp. z 0.0. (a subsidiary) filed a letter to the District Court in Krakéw in which the Bank withdrew the case and resigned
from the claim. Both parties motioned for dismissing the case and for a decision that each party would cover its own
litigation costs. In a decision of 5 September 2019, the Regional Court in Krakéw dismissed the above proceedings and
mutually canceled the litigation costs incurred by the parties. The decision is binding.

On 24 September 2019 parties to all cases filed by in.ventus group companies against Polska Energia Pierwsza
Kompania Handlowa Sp. z 0.0. and TAURON Polska Energia S.A. motioned for suspension of the cases. The above
cases were suspended by the court.

2.2. Other changes in the TAURON Group

Changes in the share of TAURON Polska Energia S.A. in the capital and body constituting Nowe Jaworzno
Grupa TAURON Sp. z o.0.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the issued capital of the subsidiary Nowe Jaworzno Grupa TAURON
Sp. z 0.0. was increased. In total, issued capital increase by PLN 11 300 thousand was registered. The new shares were
subscribed for by Fundusz Inwestycji Infrastrukturalnych - Kapitatowy Fundusz Inwestycyjny Zamkniety Aktywow
Niepublicznych for the total amount of PLN 440 000 thousand, PFR Inwestycje Fundusz Inwestycji Zamknigetych for the
total amount of PLN 440 000 thousand and the Company for the total amount of PLN 250 000 thousand (of which the
payment for the acquisition of shares in the amount of PLN 100 000 thousand was made in the year ended
31 December 2018). The surplus of the issue price of the shares over their nominal value in the total amount of PLN
1118 700 thousand was transferred to the supplementary capital of Nowe Jaworzno Grupa TAURON Sp. z 0.0. As a
result of the transaction, the Company's interest in the issued capital and in the decision-making body went down from
97.89% to 84.76%

After the reporting period end, on 2 March 2020, the Extraordinary General Shareholders' Meeting of Nowe Jaworzno
Grupa TAURON Sp. z 0.0. adopted a resolution to increase the company's issued capital by PLN 4 551 thousand. All
shares were subscribed for by the Company for the total amount of PLN 455 100 thousand. On 5 March 2020, the
Company provided funds for capital increase. The Company's interest in the issued capital and in votes at the General
Meeting after this transaction will change and will amount to 85.88%

Cross-border business combination of Finanse Grupa TAURON Sp. z o.0. and TAURON Sweden Energy AB
(publ)

On 6 May 2019 Extraordinary General Meeting of Finanse Grupa TAURON Sp. z o.0. with the registered office in
Katowice and on 17 May 2019 Extraordinary General Meeting of TAURON Sweden Energy AB (publ) with the registered
office in Stockholm passed a resolution on cross-border business combination of Finanse Grupa TAURON Sp. z 0.0. (the
acquirer) with TAURON Sweden Energy AB (publ) (the acquiree).

On 23 August 2019 the business combination was registered in the National Court Register kept by the District Court in
Katowice. On 26 August 2019 a Swedish court deleted TAURON Sweden Energy AB (publ) from its register.
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Changes in TAURON Polska Energia S.A. share in the capital of TAURON Dystrybucja S.A.

As a result of the redemption of the shares acquired by TAURON Dystrybucja S.A. from minority shareholders under the
squeeze-out procedure, the company's issued capital was reduced, and as a result, TAURON Polska Energia S.A.'s
interest in TAURON Dystrybucja S.A.'s issued capital increased from 99.74% to 99.75%

As at 31 December 2019, there were no changes in the interest of TAURON Polska Energia S.A. in the issued capital
and decision-making bodies of other material subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities as compared to 31 December
2018.

3. Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), as approved by the European Union ("EU").

The IFRS consist of standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee.

The Group companies and the Parent keep their accounting records and prepare financial statements in compliance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as endorsed by the EU, except for TAURON Czech Energy
s.r.o., which keeps its accounting records and prepares its financial statements in line with accounting policies applicable
in the Czech Republic, limited liability companies TEC1 sp. z 0.0., TEC2 sp. z 0.0.,, TEC 3 sp. z 0.0. and limited
partnerships, which keep their accounting books and prepare financial statements in line with the Polish Accounting Act.

During the year 2019, business combination of Finanse Grupa TAURON Sp. z 0.0. (the acquirer) with TAURON Sweden
Energy AB (publ) (the acquiree) was registered. Until the date of the business combination, TAURON Sweden Energy
AB (publ) kept its accounts and prepared financial statements in accordance with the accounting principles applicable in
Sweden.

The consolidated financial statements contain adjustments which have not been recognized in the accounting records of
the Group companies, introduced in order to achieve compliance of the consolidated financial statements with EU-IFRS.

4. Going Concern

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle regarding the
Group companies. As at the date of approving these consolidated financial statements no circumstances have been
detected that could put the going concern operation of the Group's companies at risk.

The Group identifies and actively manages liquidity risk understood as a possible loss or restriction of its ability to cover
current expenses. Despite negative working capital recognized as at the reporting period end, the Group has retained full
ability to timely pay its liabilities. As at the reporting period end, the Group has available financing under loan
agreements, including overdraft facilities. After the reporting period end, the Company concluded further financing
agreements. The above agreements have been described in detail in Note 48.2 hereto.

After the reporting period end, an epidemic of COVID-19 disease has occurred in the Group's area of operations,
causing disturbances in the economic and administrative system in Poland and causing significant changes in the market
environment that may affect the financial position of the Group, which is described in detail in Note 56 hereto. The
Management Board analyzed the situation in the context of COVID-19 and at this time in the area of liquidity, financing
and hedging of continuing operations, based on the considered scenarios, does not identify any risk for going concern in
the foreseeable future, including the events described in Note 56 hereto.

5. Functional and Presentation Currency

The Polish zloty has been used as the presentation currency of these consolidated financial statements and
the functional currency of the Parent and the subsidiaries included in these consolidated financial statements, except
TAURON Czech Energy s.r.o. The functional currency of TAURON Czech Energy s.r.o. is the Czech koruna (“CZK").
Individual items of the financial statements of TAURON Czech Energy s.r.o. are translated to the presentation currency
of the TAURON Group using applicable exchange rates.

The functional currency of TAURON Sweden Energy AB (publ) until the date of the business combination with Finanse
Grupa TAURON Sp. z 0.0. was the euro ("EUR").

These consolidated financial statements have been presented in the Polish zloty (“PLN”) and all figures are in PLN
thousand, unless stated otherwise.
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6. Accounting principles (policy) and material values based on professional judgment and estimates

Accounting principles (policy)

Significant accounting principles are presented in notes to these consolidated financial statements, except consolidation
principles and the methods of accounting for business acquisitions (including jointly-controlled entities), which have been
presented below.

Consolidation principles and the methods of accounting for business acquisitions (including jointly-
controlled entities)

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Parent directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated using the full method from the date of assuming to the date of losing control. Financial
statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as those of the Parent, using consistent
accounting principles. Balances and transactions between the Group entities, including unrealized gains and losses (if
not indicating impairment) which result from transactions within the Group, are eliminated.

Business acquisitions

Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method. As at the acquisition date, the acquiring entity
recognizes identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, which are measured at fair value.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred for the acquisition, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree over the net of the acquisition-date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired, the
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed. If the aforementioned difference is negative, the Group reassesses the
identification and valuation of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired entity and the fair
value of the payment and immediately recognises in the statement of comprehensive income any surplus remaining
after the reassessment (profit from a bargain purchase).

Acquisition of businesses under common control of the State Treasury

Combinations of businesses under common control of the State Treasury (i.e. those which have remained under
control of the State Treasury before and after the transaction) are accounted for using the pooling of interest method
in accordance with the principles described below.

Following the business combination, the continuity of common control is presented in the financial statements, while
the fair value remeasurement of the net assets (or recognition of new assets) or measurement of goodwill are not
presented therein, as none of the entities combined is actually acquired. The financial statements are prepared as if
the combined entities had been combined as of the date when common control began to be exercised.

The difference between the book value of the net assets recognized as a result of a business combination and the
value of shares recognized in the accounting records of the acquirer thus far or consideration paid is recognized in the
equity of the acquirer.

Material values based on professional judgment and estimates

When applying the accounting policy, professional judgment of the management, along with accounting estimates, have
been of key importance; they have impacted the figures disclosed in these consolidated financial statements. The
assumptions underlying the estimates have been based on the Management Board's best knowledge of current and
future actions and events in individual areas. In the period covered by these consolidated financial statements, there
were no significant changes in estimates or estimation methods applied, which would affect the current or future periods,
other than described further in these consolidated financial statements.

The items of the consolidated financial statements which are exposed to the risk of material adjustment of the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities have been presented in notes to these consolidated financial statements. Material
estimates include allowances for non-financial assets, recognized as a result of impairment tests, as described in detail
in Note 10 to these consolidated financial statements.

Additionally, the Group's material estimates include contingent liabilities recognized, in particular, in relation to legal
proceedings to which the Group companies are parties. Contingent liabilities have been presented in detail in Note 50
hereto.
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7. Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations which have been published but are not yet
effective

The Group did not choose an early application of any standards, amendments to standards or interpretations, which
were published, but are not yet mandatorily effective.

+ Amendments to standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board which have been
endorsed by the European Union but are not yet effective

According to the Management Board, the following revised standards will not materially impact the accounting policies
applied thus far:

Effective date in the EU (annual
Standard periods beginning on or after the date
provided)
Revised IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
. i L . 1 January 2020
Estimates and Errors: Definition of Material
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 1 January 2020
Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and IFRS
7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

1 January 2020

+ Standards and revised standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board which have not
been endorsed by the European Union and are not yet effective

On 1 January 2020, amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations came into force (the amendments to the standard
have not yet been approved by the European Union). The most important changes introduced to the above mentioned
standard include the clarification of the definition of an undertaking. The amendments shall be applied prospectively for
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The transaction of acquiring of the companies operating the wind
farms belonging to the in.ventus group, carried out by the Group in 2019, described in more detail in Note 2.1 hetero,
was finally settled as an bussines acquisition in accordance with the wording of IFRS 3 Business Combinations binding
until 31 December 2019. The Group did not perform analyzes in terms of determining the effects of the settlement of the
above transaction in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations effective from 1 January 2020, therefore the Group
does not exclude that the settlement of transactions in accordance with the amended wording of the standard could have
different effects than presented in these consolidated financial statements.

According to the Management Board, the following standards and revised standards will not materially impact the
accounting policies applied thus far:

Effective date specified in the
Standard, not endorsed by the EU

Standard (annual periods beginning on or after
the date provided)
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016*
IFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2021

Revised IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and |IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures:
Sale or Contribution of Assets between Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture with subsequent amendments
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2022

*The European Commission decided not to launch the process of endorsement of the interim standard for use in the EU until the publication of
the final version of IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accountss.

the effective date has been postponed

8. Changes in the accounting policies

The accounting principles (policy) adopted for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent
with those adopted for the preparation of the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018, except for the application of the following new standards, amendments to standards, interpretation
and changes to the accounting principles applied by the Group and discussed below.
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8.1. Application of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretation
According to the Management Board, IFRS 16 Leases materially impacts the accounting policies applied thus far:

IFRS 16 Leases

Effective date in the EU: annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Under IFRS 16 Leases, the lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The right-of-use asset is treated
similarly to other non-financial assets and depreciated accordingly. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted using the rate implicit in the lease if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee uses the incremental borrowing rate.
Determination of the lease term under IFRS 16 Leases requires an assessment which was not needed before for
operating leases as it did not affect the recognition of expenditure in the financial statements. Variable lease payments
should be considered when lease payments are being determined, if they depend on an index or a rate or in substance
are fixed payments.

Lessors classify leases as either operating lease or finance leases, i.e. in line with IAS 17 Leases.

Impact on the consolidated financial statements

The Group has decided to apply the modified retrospective approach and the practical expedients allowed by IFRS 16
Leases, i.e. with the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard recognized at 1 January 2019. The Group
decided not to restate the comparative information, as permitted by the Standard. The data as at 31 December 2018
have been prepared based on IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Agreement Contains a Lease and SIC
15 Operating Leases - Incentives.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognized the right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the lease liability at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognized in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application.

The Group applies the portfolio approach to leases with similar characteristics (same assets used in a similar way).
When accounting for leases under the portfolio approach, the Group applies estimates and assumptions that reflect the
size and composition of the portfolio, including estimates of the weighted average lease term. The Group applies the
portfolio approach specifically to rental and other contracts regarding premises and land to be used for the purpose of
assembling heat and power infrastructure, that qualify as a lease. In the scope of contracts and business relations
identified as contracts that meet the requirements of IFRS 16 Leases, the Group adopts for contracts concluded for an
indefinite period the duration of the lease coinciding with the period of economic use related to the right-of-use assets.

The analysis of the impact of IFRS 16 Leases on the accounting principles (policy) has shown a change material for the
Group, i.e. the need to recognize the right-of-use assets and lease liabilites for leases previously (i.e. until
31 December 2018) classified as operating leases. The key items are the rights of perpetual usufruct to land and
contracts to rent premises to be used for the purposes of heat distribution centers and transformer stations, as well as
other innominate contracts regarding parts of land occupied by linear infrastructure, decisions regarding the location of
power devices in the public right-of-way. The analysis included in particular a review of contracts concluded by the
Group for identification of leases, in particular identification of assets, verification of control over its use, determining the
lease term and the methodology to determine the incremental rate of interest.

The Group decided to recognize the right-of-use assets in the statement of financial position separately from other
assets. Lease liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position under debt liabilities, summed up with other
titles previously recognized in this item. On the day of the first-time adoption of IFRS 16 Leases, the Group recognised
the right-of-use asset related to the perpetual usufruct of land, lease and rental agreements for the development of
heating nodes and for transformer stations, easement and outlays on easements not put into use as well as other lease
and rental agreements, innominate contracts regarding parts of land occupied by linear infrastructure, decisions
regarding the location of power devices in the public right-of-way that met the terms of IFRS 16 Leases, in the amount
equal to the corresponding liability, adjusted by figures related to these assets, recognised in the statement of financial
position prepared directly before the first-time application date. Therefore, the Group reclassified the amount of PLN
825 307 thousand from other intangible assets to right-of-use assets.

17

This is a translation of the document originally issued and signed in Polish



TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU
(in PLN thousand)

Impact of the application of IFRS 16 Leases as at 1 January 2019

As at Reclassification from Recognition of right-of- As at
31 December 2018 other intangible assets use assets and lease 1 January 2019
(restated figures) to right-of-use assets liabilities
ASSETS
Non-current assets 32 596 304 - 905 833 33502 137
Other intangible assets - 825 307 905 833 1731140
Right-of-use assets 1287703 (825 307) - 462 396
Current assets 4501173 - 12 282 4513 455
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 13712 - 12282 25994
TOTAL ASSETS 37 097 477 - 918 115 38 015 592
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Total equity 18 428 481 - - 18 428 481
Non-current liabilities 11 382 254 - 865 880 12 248 134
Debt 8488 210 - 865 880 9 354 090
Current liabilities 7 286 742 - 52 235 7338977
Debt 2 475 167 - 39 953 2515120
I;::mtles directly related to non-current assets classified as held for 12 282 12 282
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 37 097 477 - 918 115 38 015 592

The group specification of right-of-use assets is presented in detail in Note 20 hereto.

The components of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities recognized by the Group in these consolidated financial
statements as at the date of first-time adoption of the standard in the amount of PLN 918 115 thousand increased by
PLN 304 721 thousand compared to the amounts reported by the Group in the condensed interim financial statements
for the 9-months period ended 30 September 2019. The above is related to the fact that in June 2019, the IFRS
Interpretation Committee issued a summary of decisions taken during public meetings, which were devoted to, inter
alia, on the interpretation of titles to underground parts of land. Following the IFRS Interpretation Committee’s decision,
the TAURON Group decided to perform additional analyses of selected contract groups to determine whether they fall
within the scope of IFRS 16 Leases, in the context of the conclusions adopted by the IFRS Interpretation Committee.
These contracts include in particular, leases, rent, usufruct, easement, other innominate contracts regarding parts of
land occupied by linear infrastructure, decisions regarding the location of power devices in the public right-of-way,
contracts for placing power devices in the lane of an internal road and easement and other agreements with the State
Forests having the same economic content. As a result of the works carried out, the Group concluded that the above
agreements are leases in line with IFRS 16 Leases.

Reconciliation of future minimum operating lease payments calculated in line with IAS 17 Leases as at 31 December
2018 to lease liabilities in line with IFRS 16 Leases as at 1 January 2019:

Reconciliation IAS 17 Leases to IFRS 16 Leases

Future minimum operating lease payments as at 31 December 2018 in line with IAS 17 Leases 1364 263
Additional disclosure of agreements based on IFRS 16 Leases in 2019 526 532
Discount using the incremental borrowing rate (949 321)
Commitments relating to short-term leases (23 284)
Commitments relating to leases of low-value assets (100)
Commitments relating to finance leases in line with IAS 17 Leases 25

Lease liabilities under IFRS 16 Leases as at 1 January 2019 918 115
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Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 by maturity

Mature in the period
(after 1 January 2019):

up to 5years 5-10 years 10-20 years over 20 years

Value as at 1 January 2019 918 115 170 999 116 686 243 950 386 480

The Group applied incremental borrowing rates, ranging from 4.18% to 10.22%, to calculate the lease liabilities
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position as at the date of first-time adoption of IFRS 16 Leases.

Weighted average interest rates used for individual operating segments are presented in the table below:

Weighted average interest rates

SR DIlEEg At used for operating segment

Mining 8,35%
Generation 4,72%
Distribution 4,39%
Sales 4,47%

The Group applied the following practical expedients as at the date of first-time adoption of IFRS 16 Leases, i.e. as at
1 January 2019:

o |FRS 16 Leases was applied only to contracts which were in force as at the date of its initial application;

e asingle discount rate was applied to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

e the requirements of IFRS 16 Leases were not applied to leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months of
the date of initial application;

e initial direct costs were not included in the measurement of right-of-use assets;

e hindsight was used as regards valid leases, specifically with respect to exercising an option to extend or terminate
the lease;

e if anon-lease component cannot be separated for a class of underlying asset, both the lease and non-lease
components were recognized as a single lease component;

o the requirements of IFRS 16 Leases would be applied to the leases of intangible assets other than those arising
from licensing agreements within the scope of IAS 38 Intangible Assets;

e |IFRS 16 Leases would not be applied to leases for which the value of the underlying asset does not exceed PLN 20
thousand and does not apply to the right of perpetual usufruct of land.

According to the Management Board, the introduction of the following amendments to standards and interpretations had
no material impact on the accounting principles (policy) applied thus far:

Effective in the EU as of

Standard/Interpretation (annual periods beginning on or after
the date provided)

Revised IAS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2019
Revised IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
Revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits 1 January 2019
Annual Improvements to IFRS (Cycle 2015-2017):

IAS 12 Income Taxes 1 January 2019
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs 1 January 2019
IFRS 3 Business Combinations 1 January 2019
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2019

8.2. Other changes in accounting and presentation principles applied by the Group

The Group analyzed the permitted manners of presenting mining assets in financial statements, applied by its
competitors and including:

e assets used in the mining of production roadway workings and wall reinforcement in hard coal mines including
the expenditures incurred on the works to mine the production roadway workings, less the value of the marketable
coal extracted during the mining and the expenditures incurred on the works to reinforce the walls,
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o stripping activity assets in surface mines including the expenditures incurred on the works to remove the overburden
so as to access an identified part of calcareous stone, increased by general costs directly related to such works.

Following an analysis, the Group changed its accounting principles (policy) with respect to the recognition of the mining
assets.

Mining assets used in the mining of production roadway workings and wall reinforcement

Under the changed accounting principles (policy), the cumulative cost of works to mine the production roadway workings
and cumulative cost of works to reinforce the walls, entered into the deferrals account, are recognized under property,
plant and equipment. The expenditures on such assets are recognized in monthly instalments over the period of
the useful life of walls included in the workings and in the proportions in which the marketable coal is produced, and are
included under depreciation in profit or loss. The period of exploitation of walls in a given deposit exceeds 12 months.
Generally, upon recognition, the mine workings are in fact liquidated. Before the change in the accounting principles
(policy), the cost of mining of production roadway workings and the cumulative cost of wall reinforcement were presented
under other non-financial assets.

Overburden removal assets

Under the changed accounting principles (policy), the cumulative cost of overburden removal in surface mines, entered
into the deferrals account, is recognized under property, plant and equipment. The expenditures incurred on such assets
are accounted for using the method based on the expected period of exploitation of the deposit, which exceeds 12
months, and recognized as depreciation in profit or loss. Before the change in the accounting principles (policy), the cost
of overburden removed at the production stage in surface mines was presented under other non-financial assets.

In the Group’s opinion, the altered presentation better reflects the nature of the assets originated and maintained for use
in the production process. The expenditures are deferred and allocated over the period of use. This way the accounting
for the expenditures under depreciation reflects the specifics and the use of the assets. Furthermore, the analysis has
revealed that the changed method of presentation is the method most commonly used by competitive stock exchange-
listed coal mining companies.

The change has not had any effect on the Group’s profit or loss. Charging the expenditure to the depreciation cost had
an impact on EBITDA, i.e. operating profit/(loss) before depreciation and the write-downs on non-financial assets.
The positive effect of the above change on EBITDA during the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to PLN 95 837
thousand.

The Group has restated comparative information accordingly. The table below presents the impact of the above change
of the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018 and as at 1 January 2018 is presented in the
table below.

As at 31 December 2018 As at 1 January 2018
Authorised Chang.e d : Authorised Chang.e d .
. presentation of Restated figures : presentation of Restated figures
figures o figures o
mining assets mining assets

ASSETS
Non-current assets 32 541 865 54 439 32 596 304 31048 542 52124 31100 666

Property, plant and equipment 29 238 051 168 616 29 406 667 28 079 886 196 185 28276 071

Other non-financial assets 282 228 (114 177) 168 051 346 846 (144 061) 202 785
Current assets 4 555 612 (54 439) 4501173 4786 474 (52 124) 4734 350

Other non-financial assets 110 068 (54 439) 55629 87 055 (52 124) 34 931
TOTAL ASSETS 37 097 477 - 37 097 477 35835 016 - 35835 016

Effect on EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2018:

VEETEIELSE Changed presentation of VEE CIER:
31 December 2018 gec pl 31 December 2018
(authorised figures) (restated figures)

mining assets

Operating profit 790 729 - 790 729
Depreciation/amortization (1721783) (117 158) (1838 941)
Impairment (862 414) - (862 414)
EBITDA 3374926 (117 158) 3492 084
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BUSINESS SEGMENTS
9. Information on operating segments

The Group presents segment information for the current and comparative reporting periods in accordance with IFRS 8
Operating Segments.

The Group is organized and managed by segment, in accordance with the type of products and services offered. Each
segment constitutes a strategic business entity offering different products and operating on different markets.

The Group applies the same accounting principles (policy) to all operating segments. The Group accounts for
transactions between segments as if they were made between unrelated parties, i.e. using current market prices.
Revenue from transactions between segments is eliminated in the consolidation process.

After elimination of costs arising from intercompany transactions, general and administrative expenses of the Parent are
presented under unallocated expenses. General and administrative expenses of the Parent are incurred for the benefit of
the entire Group and cannot be directly attributed to a specific operating segment.

Segment assets do not include deferred tax, income tax receivables or financial assets, except for receivables from
buyers and other financial receivables, assets relating to gain on measurement of commodity derivative instruments as
well as cash and cash equivalents, which represent segment assets.

Segment liabilities do not include deferred tax, income tax liability or financial liabilities, except for liabilities to suppliers,
capital commitments and payroll liabilities as well as liabilities relating to loss on measurement of commodity derivative
instruments, which represent segment liabilities.

The Group's financing (including finance income and costs) and income tax are monitored at the Group level and they
are not allocated to segments.

None of the Group’s operating segments has been combined with another segment to create reporting operating
segments.

The Management Board separately monitors operating results of the segments to take decisions on how to allocate
the resources, to assess the effects of the allocation and to evaluate performance. Evaluation of performance is based
on EBITDA and operating profit or loss. EBITDA is defined as EBIT increased by amortization/depreciation and write-
downs on non-financial assets. EBIT is the profit/loss on continuing operations before tax, finance income and finance
costs, i.e. operating profit (loss).

The Group's reporting format for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 was based on the operating
segments presented in the table below. As of 1 January 2019 TAURON Dystrybucja Serwis S.A. has been assigned to
the Sales segment (before: the Distribution segment). The change of assignment results from the organizational changes
and restructuring within the company which led to the change in its business profile. At present the company’s main
business is to deliver lighting and power products and services and therefore its profile is aligned with the operations of
the Group’s sales companies. Comparative information, i.e. information for the yaer ended 30 September 2018 and as of
31 December 2018, was restated accordingly.
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Operating segments Core business Subsidiaries
P 9 seg Entities recognized with the equity method
Mining
Hard coal mining TAURON Wydobycie S.A.
Generation
Generation of electricity using conventional
sources, including combined heat and power TAURON Wytwarzanie S.A.
generation, as well as generation of Nowe Jaworzno Grupa TAURON Sp. z o.0.
electricity using joint combustion of biomass TAURON Ciepto Sp. z 0.0.
and other energy acquired thermally. Key TAURON Serwis Sp. z o.0.
fuels include hard coal, biomass, coal gas TAMEH HOLDING Sp. zo.0.*
and coke-oven gas. TAMEH POLSKA Sp. zo.0.*
TAMEH Czech s.r.o.*
Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A.*
Generation, distribution and sales of heat
TAURON Ekoenergia Sp. z o0.0.
Marselwind Sp. z 0.0.
TEC1 Sp. zo.0.
TEC2 Sp. zo.0.
TEC3 Sp. zo.0.
TEC1 spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig Mogilno | sp.k.
TEC1 spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig Mogilno 1l sp.k.
Generation of electricity using renewable TEC1 spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialno$cig Mogilno 11l sp.k.
sources TEC1 spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig Mogilno 1V sp.k.
TEC1 spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig Mogilno V sp.k.
TEC1 spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig Mogilno VI sp.k.
TEC1 spétka z ograniczong odpowiedzialno$cig EW Sniatowo sp.k.
TEC1 spdtka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig EW Dobrzyn sp.k.
TEC1 spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig EW Gotdap sp.k.
TEC1 spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia Ino 1 sp.k.
Distribution
R . TAURON Dystrybucja S.A.
Distribution of electricity TAURON Dystrybucja Pomiary Sp.  0.0.
Sales
Wholesale trading in electricity, trading in TAURON Polska E.nergla S-A.
CO , emission allowances and energy TAURON Sprzeda2 Sp. z 0.0.
. L . TAURON Sprzedaz GZE
certificates and sale of electricity to domestic Sp.20.0
end users or entlltle.? yv_ltuch further resell TAURON Czech Energy s.r.o.
electricity TAURON Dystrybucja Serwis S.A.

* Entities recognized with the equity method

In addition to the key operating segments listed above, the TAURON Group also conducts operations in quarrying stone
(including limestone) for the power industry, metallurgy, construction and highway engineering industry as well as in
the area of production of sorbents for use in wet desulphurization installations and fluidized bed combustors (Kopalnia
Wapienia Czatkowice Sp. z 0.0.). The operations of TAURON Obstuga Klienta Sp. z o.0., Finanse Grupa TAURON
Sp. zo.0., Bioeko Grupa TAURON Sp. z o0.0., Wsparcie Grupa TAURON Sp. z o0.0. and Polska Energia Pierwsza
Kompania Handlowa Sp. z 0.0. are also treated as other operations of the Group.
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9.1. Operating segments

Year ended 31 December 2019

Mining

Generation

Distribution

Unallocated
items /
Eliminations

Revenue

Sales to external customers 345 274 3725 886 3202234 12 173 480 111 418 - 19 558 292
Inter-segment sales 599 159 1197 395 3392 630 2734 457 868 493 (8 792 134) -
Segment revenue 944 433 4923 281 6 594 864 14 907 937 979 911 (8 792 134) 19 558 292
Recompensation revenue - - - 952 650 - - 952 650
Profit/(loss) of the segment (1391 949) (177 044) 1443741 382185 46 152 51 691 354 776
Share in profit/(loss) of joint ventures - 47 947 - - - - 47 947
Unallocated expenses - - - - - (107 269) (107 269)
EBIT (1391 949) (129 097) 1443741 382185 46 152 (55 578) 295454
Net finance income (costs) - - - - - (310 822) (310 822)
Profit/(loss) before income tax (1391 949) (129 097) 1443741 382185 46 152 (366 400) (15 368)
Income tax expense - - - - - 3685 3685
Net profit/(loss) for the year (1 391 949) (129 097) 1443 741 382185 46 152 (362 715) (11 683)
Assets and liabilities

Segment assets 1294 329 14 653 139 19 176 164 4730135 648 705 - 40 502 472

Investments in joint ventures - 559 144 - - - - 559 144
Unallocated assets - - - - - 856 149 856 149

Total assets 1294 329 15212 283 19 176 164 4730135 648 705 856 149 41917 765
Segment liabilities 928 077 2275426 2011950 1855 630 511 992 - 7 583 075
Unallocated liabilities - - - - - 15 242 030 15242 030

Total liabilities 928 077 2275 426 2011 950 1855 630 511 992 15 242 030 22 825 105
EBIT (1391 949) (129 097) 1443741 382185 46 152 (55 578) 295 454
Depreciation/amortization (197 617) (502 875) (1161 247) (40 801) (89 193) - (1991 733)
Impairment (694 467) (610 461) (820) (5 591) (841) - (1312 180)
EBITDA (499 865) 984 239 2 605 808 428 577 136 186 (55 578) 3 599 367
Other segment information

Capital expenditure * 479 519 1683 070 1784 941 47 460 132 901 = 4127 891

* Capital expenditure includes expenditures for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, excluding acquisition of greenhouse gas emission allowances and energy certificates

Year ended 31 December 2018 (restated)

Unallocated
Generation Distribution items /

Eliminations
Revenue
Sales to external customers 548 247 2812080 3041907 11622 172 97 342 - 18 121748
Inter-segment sales 717 777 1826 414 3018294 2 597 505 760 120 (8920 110) -
Segment revenue 1266 024 4 638 494 6 060 201 14 219 677 857 462 (8920 110) 18 121 748
Profit/(loss) of the segment (1053 469) 141 768 1391155 332428 46 023 (34 489) 823 416
Share in profit/(loss) of joint ventures - 54 890 - - - - 54 890
Unallocated expenses - - - - - (87 577) (87 577)
EBIT (1 053 469) 196 658 1391155 332428 46 023 (122 066) 790 729
Net finance income (costs) - - - - - (286 082) (286 082)
Profit/(loss) before income tax (1053 469) 196 658 1391155 332428 46 023 (408 148) 504 647
Income tax expense - - - - - (297 602) (297 602)
Net profit/(loss) for the year (1053 469) 196 658 1391 155 332428 46 023 (705 750) 207 045
Assets and liabilities
Segment assets 1589823 12 168 948 17 923 661 3801630 581497 - 36 065 559
Investments in joint ventures - 543 913 - - - - 543 913
Unallocated assets - - - - - 488 005 488 005
Total assets 1589 823 12712 861 17 923 661 3801630 581497 488 005 37 097 477
Segment liabilities 851497 1299 850 2133237 1772534 410 567 - 6 467 685
Unallocated liabilities - - - - - 12201 311 12201 311
Total liabilities 851 497 1299 850 2133 237 1772534 410 567 12 201 311 18 668 996
EBIT (1 053 469) 196 658 1391155 332428 46 023 (122 066) 790 729
Depreciation/amortization (230 397) (415 810) (1071 278) (33 196) (88 260) - (1838 941)
Impairment (732 810) (118 904) (3 104) (6 847) (749) - (862 414)
EBITDA (90 262) 731372 2 465 537 372471 135 032 (122 066) 3492 084
Other segment information
Capital expenditure * 412 028 1299 817 2014 507 36 947 74 561 - 3 837 860

* Capital expenditure includes expenditures for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, excluding acquisition of greenhouse gas emission allowances and energy certificates
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In the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 the Group did not identify individual customers that would
generate sales revenue in excess of 10% of total sales revenue of the TAURON Group.

9.2. Geographic areas of operations

The majority of the Group's business operations is carried out in Poland. The table below presents export sales classified
by countries.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Czech Republic 198 792 220 397
Slovakia 3088 16 650
Luxembourg 517 2058
Austria 896 2042
Hungary 852 896
Other 241 48
Total 204 386 242 091

Sales to foreign buyers include mostly power, which accounted for 93% and 92%, respectively, of revenue generated by
foreign buyers as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

10. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Goodwill is tested for impairment every year and each time when indications of impairment have been identified. Other non-financial
non-current assets are tested for impairment if there are indications that they may have been impaired.

Impairment tests include estimation of the recoverable amount of an asset or the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs. In order to carry out an impairment test, goodwill acquired under a business combination or M&A transaction is assigned to
CGU or CGU groups upon acquisition. Information concerning identification of CGU which goodwill is allocated to has been
presented in Note 21.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. If the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, impairment occurs and the value of the asset is reduced to
the recoverable amount determined.

Impairment losses are allocated to goodwill in the first place and the remaining amount is allocated to individual assets forming
the CGU based on the share of the carrying amount of each asset in the carrying amount of the CGU, with the proviso that as
a result of such allocation the carrying amount of the asset may not be lower than the highest of the fair value less costs to sell,
the value in use and zero.

If the indications of impairment driving the recognition of an impairment loss in a preceding period are no longer present, the
impairment loss is reversed or reduced. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

The impairment tests performed as at 31 December 2019 and 30 June 2019 included changes resulting from the come into force of
IFRS 16 Leases. The value of the assets tested was increased by the value of the right-of-use assets. At the same time, the
projected cash flows were adjusted by the value of the liabilities due to right-of-use assets, which was transferred from operating
costs to financial costs. As regards WACC, the change in the level of indebtedness of comparable companies in particular areas of
activity in 2019 compared to 2018 was verified. The analyses performed showed that the level of debt change is neutral for the
calculation of the discount rate.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

As at each reporting period end, the Group assesses whether objective indication of impairment occurs in relation to non-financial
non-current assets. The analysis includes both internal and external indication.

In the course of impairment tests, the Group estimates the recoverable amount.

Estimation of the value in use of cash generating units is based on their future cash flows discounted to the current value with a
discount rate. The value in use calculation is based on a series of assumptions as discussed below.

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recognized and reversed recognized before impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as a result of impairment tests performed as at 31 December 2019
and 30 June 2019.

The recoverable amount of the above group of assets corresponds to their value in use.
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The impairment loss and its reversal resulting from the tests performed in the year ended 31 December 2019 are related
to the following cash-generating units:

Discount rate Impairment Impairment loss
Recoverable N
(before tax) assumed loss derecognized
: . amount n
Company in tests as at: recognized

31 December 30 June 2019 31 December As at Year ended
2019 (unaudited) 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2019

Mining TAURON Wydobycie S.A. 14.01% 11.40% 11.58% 371215 (694 498)

Generation - Coal N:Qg?;/’ig}’g"g’:;:ﬁ /fu’;éN 8.60% 8.61% 8.59% 6784 195 (680 363)

Generation - Biomass Sp.zo.o. 8.60% 8.61% 8.59% - -

ZW Bielsko EC1 372 007 (12 314)

ZW Bielsko EC2 - (2 292)

ZW Katowice . 8.57% 7.65% 7.51% 864 007 - -
—ZW Tychy TAURON Ciepto Sp. z o.0. 556 832 N 55 958

Local generators 69 196 -

Transmission 7.51% 7.24% 6.91% 725726

Hydropower plants TAURON Ekoenergia Sp. z 0.0. / 8.90% 9.16% 9.31% 945 111 = =

Wind farms TEC 8.94% 9.63% 10.00% 2 168 673 - 25 962

Total (1389 467) 84 920

Impairment allowances were charged to cost of sales.

As at 31 December 2019, impairment tests were performed for property, plant and equipment based on the following
indications:

o the market value of the Company's net assets remaining below the net asset carrying amount for a long period;

e changes in global prices of energy resources, electricity and dynamic increases in the prices of CO2 emission
allowances;

¢ significant fluctuations of energy prices on the future/forward market and continuing liquidity problems;
e regulatory activities aimed at the limiting of end user price increases;
e increased risks in commercial coal production;

o the effects of the results of the RES auctions to date and the very dynamic development of the prosumer and
microinstallation sub-sector in connection with the support programmes launched;

e results of proceeding winter package provisions (including emission standards) that adversely impact the capability of
coal-based units to participate in the power market after 1 July 2025;

e tightening of emission standards persisting unfavourable market conditions for the conventional power industry;
e adecrease in the risk-free rate.

The tests conducted as at 31 December 2019 and 30 June 2019 required estimating the value in use of cash generating
units, based on their future cash flows discounted subsequently to the present value using a discount rate.

The impairment tests for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (non-current assets) were carried out at the
level of individual companies, except for:

e TAURON Woytwarzanie S.A. and Nowe Jaworzno Grupa TAURON Sp. z o.0., where the identification of cash-
generating units ("CGU") was recognized at a different level by identifying two centres generating economic benefits
in the area of activity of the companies TAURON Wytwarzanie S.A. and Nowe Jaworzno Grupa TAURON Sp. z o0.0:
CGU Generation Coal and CGU Generation Biomass. Key indications included: the publication of provisions
regarding new Power Market mechanism in 2018, launching a new product: net disposable capacity; the strategy of
joining the Power Market consisting in the portfolio approach, where maximizing the total Power Market revenue
matters; allocating power to suppliers; determining the reserve sources level for the other power contracted at the
power market and high dependence of cash proceeds among generators. The settlement of the first three Capacity
Market auctions in 2018 allows for additional cash inflows from 2021 onwards;

e TAURON Ciepto Sp. z 0.0. - where separated generation of heat and electricity and transmission and distribution of
heat. Additional tests were carried out for individual “generation" units for individual generation plants: CGU ZW
Katowice, CGU ZW Tychy, CGU ZW Bielsko EC1, CGU ZW Bielsko EC2, CGU Local Generators;

e TAURON Ekoenergia Sp. z 0.0.,, TEC 1 Sp. z 0.0. Mogilno | Sp. Komandytowa, TEC 1 Sp. z o0.0. Mogilno Il
Sp. Komandytowa, TEC 1 Sp. z 0.0. Mogilno Ill Sp. Komandytowa, TEC1 Sp. z 0.0. Mogilno IV Sp. Komandytowa,
TEC 1 Sp. z 0.0. Mogilno V Sp. Komandytowa, TEC 1 Sp. z 0.0. Mogilno VI Sp. Komandytowa, TEC 1 Sp. z o.0.
EW Sniatowo Sp. Komandytowa, TEC 1 Sp. z 0.0. EW Dobrzyn Sp. Komandytowa, TEC 1 Sp. z 0.0. EW Gotdap
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Sp. Komandytowa, TEC 1 Sp. z o.0. Ino 1 Sp. Komandytowa, where the test was carried out separately for
hydropower generation units - CGU Hydropower plants and for total windfarms power generation unit - CGU
Windfarms. Consolidation of windfarms in one CGU resulted mainly from the specificity and nature of the basic
service contracts and technical management of individual windfarms allowing for optimisation of the production
process aimed at improving economic indicators of the operated windfarms. Moreover, from the point of view of
management analysis, the notion of a group of assets producing power in wind technology is important, not a single
operation of windfarms. This is also important for the integrated management of the portfolio of produced volume

from windfarms and the sale of power and property rights within the TAURON Group.

Key assumptions made for purposes of tests performed as at 31 December 2019:

Category Description

Coal

Coal prices in the coming years were adopted at a slightly declining level. In the long term, coal prices will fall more
sharply as a result of the implementation of climate policy and the shift away from coal to other countries, as well as the
growing production of energy from RES sources. The prices forecasted until 2030 show a constant downward trend. It has
been assumed that in the years 2021-2040 the prices of power coal will decrease by 14%.

Electricity

The adopted forecast of wholesale electricity prices in 2020-2029 with an outlook until 2040 assumes, among other things,
the impact of the demand and supply balance on electricity, fuel purchase costs and CO2 emission allowances. Compared
to the average SPOT price in 2019, a price increase of 19% for 2020 was assumed, mainly due to an price increase of
CO2 emission allowance prices. In the following 2021, energy prices were assumed to increase by 3% compared to 2020,
which results, among other things, from predictions of further increase in prices o CO2 emission allowances and exclusion
of conventional units in Germany - which should reduce the volume of energy exports to Poland. Then, in the period up to
2029, an increase in prices by 8% in relation to 2021 was assumed, mainly due to significant unit exclusions after 2025; in
the years 2030-2040, a drop in prices by 14% (in constant prices) in relation to 2029 was assumed.

The electricity retail price path has been adopted based on the wholesale price of black energy, taking into account the
costs of excise duty, the obligation to surrender energy certificates as well as an expected level of margin.

CO;

CO2 emission limits for heat generation have been set in line with the regulation of the Council of Ministers and adjusted
by the level of operations, i.e. generation of heat.

The CO2 emission allowance price growth path for the years 2020-2029 with the perspective by 2040 has been adopted.
In 2021 the price of CO2 emission allowances was assumed to be 25% higher than the average price in 2019. It has been
assumed that the market price will increase by ca. 33% comparing to the average price observed in 2019, with slight CO2
emission allowance price decreases in 2029-2040 versus 2028 (fixed prices), totaling 11%. This results from the assumed
increase in decarbonization of the economy and the resultant drop in demand for emission allowances after 2030.

The long-term projections of CGU Coal assume the purchase of CO2 emission allowances at the level of the total planned
deficit in the year to which the emissions relate. It was thus assumed that the provision for CO2 deficiency will be dissolved
at the end of the year to which the provision applies.

Energy certificates

The price path assumed for emission certificates and the obligatory redemption in the subsequent years are based on the
current Act on Renewable Energy Sources;

Power Market

The operating reserve capacity mechanism is to be excluded from the beginning of 2021, i.e. from the time the Capacity
Market has been implemented.

The Power Market mechanism implementation has been taken into account (in line with the adopted and notified Act on
the Power Market and the draft Power Market Regulations). It is assumed that payments for capacity will be launched
from 2021 and maintained until 2025 for existing coal units which do not meet the EPS 550 criterion (for which the unit
emission capacity exceeds 550 kg/MWh). For entities that won or will win long-term contracts by 31 December 2019 and
do not meet the EPS 550 criterion, payments have been assumed to be continued until the contract expiration date;

RES

Limited support periods for green energy have been assumed in accordance with the Act on Renewable Energy Sources,
which provides for new support mechanisms for renewable energy. The support period has been limited to 15 years as
from the date of the first supply of electricity qualifying for an energy certificate to the network;

WACC

The weighted average cost of capital (WACC) during the projection period, for particular CGUs, as used in the
calculations, ranges from 6.52% to 14.01% in nominal terms before tax, taking into account the risk free rate determined
by reference to the yield on 10-year treasury bonds (2.81%) and the risk premium for operations appropriate for the power
industry (6.25%). The growth rate used for extrapolation of projected cash flows beyond the detailed planning period is
2.5% and it corresponds to the estimated long-term inflation rate. The level of WACC as at 31 December 2019 increased
compared to the level as at 31 December 2018 mainly due to the increase in the cost of debt and market risk premium.

Regulated and
tariff revenue

Regulated revenue generated by distribution companies, ensuring coverage of reasonable costs and a reasonable level of
return on capital has been assumed. The return on capital is conditional on the Regulatory Asset Value.

Tariff revenue generated by heat companies, ensuring coverage of reasonable costs and a reasonable level of return on
capital has been assumed;

Sales volume
and production
capacity

End-user sales volumes taking into account GDP growth and increased market competition have been applied.

Maintaining the production capacity of the existing non-current assets as a result of replacement investments was
considered.

26

This is a translation of the document originally issued and signed in Polish



TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU
(in PLN thousand)

The assumptions were also used to estimate the value in use of other intangible assets.

The impairment loss on CGU Mining assets (in the first and second half of the year 2019) and CGU Generation-Coal
assets, CGU ZW Bielsko EC1 assets and CGU ZW Bielsko EC2 assets (in the second half of the year 2019) resulted
from:

e CGU Mining - in the first half of the year 2019 in particular from updating the technical and economic assumptions,
mainly in terms of exploitation plans and availability of deposits. The update of assumptions concerned the period
before obtaining significant effects from strategic investments, that is before 2024. In the second half of the year 2019
resulted in particular from updating market assumptions regarding the cost of capital;

e CGU Generation - Coal assets - in particular from the European Union's climate policy affecting the projected level of
margins on sales of power from conventional sources and the shift of commissioning of the 910 MW unit in Jaworzno;

e CGU ZW BB EC1 assets and CGU ZW BB EC2 assets - in particular from updating market assumptions regarding
the cost of capital.

The possibility of reversing the impairment loss on individual CGUs assets in the second half of the year 2019 resulted
from:

e CGU ZW Tychy assets - in particular from the permanent reorganisation of the operation of the biomass unit in order
to make maximum use of the production potential from a renewable source;

¢ CGU Windfarms assets — mainly from the changes regarding renewable energy sources (regarding the method of
determining the substitution fee) that positively affect financial results generated by assets based on renewable
energy sources and a fundamental change in market factors related to energy generation from renewable sources,
and thus increasing competitiveness in relation to the conventional generation.

Sensitivity analysis for the Mining and Generation units

A sensitivity analysis performed for each CGU revealed that the value in use of the tested assets was mainly affected by
the forecast electricity prices, CO2 emission allowances prices, discount rates and hard coal prices. The estimated
changes in impairment losses on Mining and Generation assets as at 31 December 2019 as a result of changes in the
key assumptions, have been presented below.

Impact on impairment loss

in PLN milli
Parameter Change (in million)

Increase of impairment Decrease of impairment
loss (net) loss (net)

+1% - 385

Change of electricity prices in the forecast period

-1% 385 -
9 -
Change of CO, emission allowances prices in the forecast period +11°/A’ 153 o
1% -
Change of WACC (net) +0,1 p.p. 130 -
-0,1 p.p. - 132
. ) +1% 60 -
Change of coal prices in the forecast period
1% . 60

Sensitivity analysis for the Distribution unit

The sensitivity analysis was performed for a change in the discount rate and a change in the WACC level adopted for the
calculation of regulated income in the years 2025-2029 and in the residual period. The table below presents the
estimated inflows to the impairment loss on assets of the Distribution assets as at 31 December 2019.

Impact on increase of impairment loss

Parameter

(in PLN million)
27
Change of WACC (net) *0.1p.p. 5
-0,1p.p. -
Change of WACC adopted for calculation of regulated income in years +0,1 p.p. -
2025-2019 and in the residual period -0,1p.p. 347
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Impairment of goodwill

The test was performed for the net assets increased by goodwill in each operating segment. The recoverable amount in
each company was determined based on the value in use.

The test was performed based on the present value of projected cash flows from operations. The calculations were
based on detailed projections for the period from 2019 to 2028 and the estimated residual value. Reliance on projections
covering a period longer than 5 years results mainly from the fact that investment processes in the power industry are
time-consuming. The macroeconomic and sector assumptions serving as the basis for projections are updated as
frequently as any indications for their modification are observed on the market. Projections also take into account
changes in the regulatory environment known as at the date of the test.

The weighted average cost of capital (WACC) during the projection period for particular CGUs, as used in the
calculations, ranges from 7.02% to 7.80% in nominal terms before tax, taking into account the risk free rate determined
by reference to the yield on 10-year treasury bonds (2.81%) and the risk premium for operations appropriate for the
power industry (6.25%). The growth rate used for extrapolation of projected cash flows beyond the detailed planning
period is 2.5% and it corresponds to the estimated long-term inflation rate. The level of WACC as at 31 December 2019
has decreased compared to the level as at 31 December 2018 due to a decrease in the risk-free rate.

The key assumptions affecting the estimated value in use and the discount rates applied during tests:

Operating . Discount rate (before tax) assumed in tests as at:
Key assumptions

segment 30 June 2019 31 December

31 December 2019

(unaudited) 2018
Regulated revenue generated by distribution companies, ensuring coverage of reasonable
costs and a reasonable level of return on capital. The return level depends on the so-called

Regulatory Value of Assets.

Distribution 7.02% 7.78% 7.61%

Maintaining generation capacity of the existing non-current assets as a result of
replacement investments.

The impairment test performed as at 31 December 2019 did not reveal impairment of the carrying amount of goodwill in
particular segments.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

1. Sales revenue

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The Group has introduced five steps of revenue recognition: identify the contract(s) with a customer; identify the performance
obligations in the contract; determine the transaction price; allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation; and
recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue is recognized when (or as) the performance obligation is fulfilled in the form of transferring the promised goods, products,
materials (i.e. assets) or rendering the service to a client. The asset transfer takes place when a client obtains control over an asset.
For sales of electricity, gaseous fuels and heat, the energy is deemed sold when delivered to a consumer.

Revenue is recognized at the amount expected by the Group, following reduction by VAT, excise duty, other sales taxes, charges and
discounts.

Revenue includes only economic proceeds received or due on the entity's bank account. Amounts obtained on behalf of third parties,
with the Group acting as an agent, such as taxes on sales or VAT do not constitute economic benefits of the Company and do not
result in equity increases. Therefore, they are not recognized in revenue. Similarly, the transitional fee and renewable energy sources
fee charged by the Group from the end users of power and then transferred to the Transmission System Operator is recognized in
the net amount of consideration.

For goods and materials, revenue is recognized when the Group ceases to be involved in permanent management of the goods sold
to the extent the function is usually performed in relation to owned goods, and when it ceases to effectively control these items.

Revenue of the financial year includes also accrued revenue which has not been measured and billed due to the buyer settlement
system used.

The most significant revenues the Group achieves from the sale of power and distribution services in the Sales segment, distribution
services in the Distribution segment and power in the Generation segment.

Revenue from sales of electricity and distribution services in the Sales segment

The Group companies operating in the Sales segment generate revenue from sales of electricity and distribution services to retail and
wholesale clients (balancing market sales). This segment also generates revenues from road lighting maintenance services. Revenue
from sales is determined on the basis of the billed volume and price, including additional assessments.

Four types of additional assessment of revenue from sales of electricity and distribution services are made in this segment:
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Additional assessme

Descripti

type

Additional assessment of
sales to buyers, unbilled as
at the end of the reporting

Measurement and billing systems showing the electricity volume sold to retail buyers are read and invoices are issued mainly in periods
not corresponding to reporting periods. Therefore, the Group companies from the Sales segment make appropriate estimates of sales of
electricity and distribution services at the end of each reporting period. For clients that are party to complex contracts and sales contracts,
the additional assessment is made in the billing systems on the basis of the average daily consumption of electricity between the last

Relics actual reading date and the end of the reporting period.

As at each reporting period end, buyers with six and 12-month periods of projection-based settlement are subject to additional
Additional assessment assessment during periods between meter system readings. The additional assessment of sales of electricity and distribution services is
regarding buyers with based on data regarding sales of electricity obtained from the billing system and on the additional assessment ratio. The additional

projection-based settlement assessment ratio is based on the number of days passing between the reading date (for settlement invoices) or the payment date (for
projection invoices) and the month end compared to the actual number of days in a given calendar month.

Additional assessment of ~ The additional assessment includes buyers whose sales of the electricity are priced in line with the balancing market according to the

revenue regarding buyers  concluded agrrements. As at each reporting period end, buyers with additional assessment charged on unbilled sales of power in the

charged based on the billing system are charged with amounts equal to the difference between prices adopted for additional assessment calculation purposes
balancing market prices and those to be used for billing purposes.

Additional assessment of ~ The Group companies from the Sales segment reconcile the energy balance by estimating the non-balancing sales or purchase volume at
sales resulting from the end of each reporting period. Under the additional assessment, an amount increasing or reducing revenue from sales of electricity,

reconciliation of the energy determined as the product of the estimated non-balancing sales and the weighted average purchase price of electricity on the balancing
balance market is also accounted for.

Revenue from sales of electricity distribution services in the Distribution segment

The Group's revenue from sales of services includes in particular revenue related to distribution operations. Electricity distribution
services are considered sold upon service provision to the client, as registered by the electricity meter, including the projected use and
assessed additional revenue, not measured and charged yet due to specifics of the applied buyer settlement system.

Revenue from wholesale of electricity in the Generation segment

Wholesale of electricity from the generation units managed centrally and as part of trading operations requires the client and
the supplier's notification of the volume of electricity declared per each hour to the Transmission System Operator, which volume
a Generation segment company is obliged to provide a supplier or ensure its provision and the client is obliged to accept. Both
the price and volume per each hour is determined on the basis of transactions signed in advance or (in the case of the Polish Power
Exchange) recorded electronically. The Transmission System Operator, which somewhat guarantees volume settlements, ensures
reliability of data concerning the supplied volume of energy. As billing is based on reports generated by the Transmission System
Operator.

Sales invoices relating to electricity supplied to the Balancing Market are raised on the basis of reports from the centralized system
balancing sales in the Polish National Power System. Such settlements are made every decade.

Wholesale of electricity from generation units which are not managed centrally (local market generation units of less than 100MW) is
subject to similar rules. However, it is the local market operator (DSO) that is responsible for the settlements.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

The TAURON Group estimates revenue as described above. The most important estimate regards the additional assessment of
revenue from sales of electricity and distribution services in the Sales segment.

As at 31 December 2019, additionally assessed revenue from sale of electricity and distribution services in the Sales segment totaled
PLN 631 795 thousand and, when reversed estimations from the prior year have been accounted for, the impact on the profit or loss
for the 2019 year was PLN 22 503 thousand.

Year ended
31 December 2018

Year ended

31 December 2019 )
(restated figures)

Sale of goods for resale, finished goods, materials without elimination of

excise 13 062 166 12194 728
Excise (138 962) (409 243)
Sale of goods for resale, finished goods and materials 12 923 204 11 785 485
Electricity 11 329 312 10 138 636
Heat energy 620 002 628 178
Gas 335833 261 604
Coal 302 926 485 366
Energy certificates 143 177 89 378
Other goods for resale, finished goods and materials 191 954 182 323
Rendering of services 6 569 022 6 274 345
Distribution and trade services 6 250 923 5941 258
Maintenance of road lighting 120 527 121 650
Connection fees 81079 82 070
Other services 116 493 129 367
Other revenue 66 066 61918
Total 19 558 292 18 121 748
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In the year ended 31 December 2019, sales revenues increased in relation to the comparable period, and the main
changes concerned sales revenues of the following finished goods and materials:

electricity - the increase in revenue from sales of electricity versus comparative period results mostly from an increase in
electricity prices in the current reporting period, as well as to the higher electricity sales volume. At the same time, in the
year ended 31 December 2019, as compared to the comparable period , there was a decrease in revenue from the sale
of electricity due to the entry into force of the amended Excise Duty Act and certain other acts, which is discussed in
detail in Note 12 hereto,

e gas - the increase in revenue from sales of gas versus comparative period results mostly from an increase in the
current reporting period in gas sales price and higher volume of sales,

e coal - the decrease in revenue from sales of coal results from lower volume of sales outside the Group related to
lower production of the Group's mining plants,

e distribution services - the increase in revenue from sales of distribution services results mainly from the increase in
the average rate of sales of distribution services.

The decrease in excise tax in 2019 versus comparable period is mainly related to the come into force of the Act of 28
December 2018 amending the Excise Duty Act and certain other acts, under which the excise tax rate on electricity was
changed from 20 PLN to 5 PLN per megawatt hour (MWh).

The Group's sales revenue by operating segment has been presented below.

Year ended 31 December 2019

Mining Generation Distribution
Sale of goods for resale, finished goods and materials 325098 3495 394 6 201 9 004 753 91758 12 923 204
Electricity - 2729 038 - 8600 274 - 11 329 312
Heat energy 33 619 969 - - - 620 002
Gas - - - 335833 - 335833
Coal 302 926 - - - - 302 926
Energy certificates and similar - 141 295 - 1882 - 143177
Other goods for resale, finished goods and materials 22139 5092 6201 66 764 91758 191 954
Rendering of services 18 714 214 275 3162 970 3165 082 7981 6 569 022
Distribution and trade services - 206 018 3019 253 3025 652 - 6 250 923
Maintenance of road lighting - - 11 120 516 - 120 527
Connection fees - 325 80 754 - - 81079
Other services 18 714 7932 62 952 18 914 7981 116 493
Other revenue 1462 16 217 33 063 3 645 11 679 66 066
Total 345 274 3 725 886 3202 234 12 173 480 111 418 19 558 292

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (restated)

Generation Distribution
Sale of goods for resale, finished goods and materials 519 862 2 580 352 4996 8 601 609 78 666 11 785 485
Electricity 242 1861379 - 8277015 - 10 138 636
Heat energy - 628 178 - - - 628 178
Gas - - - 261 604 - 261604
Coal 485 366 - - - - 485 366
Energy certificates and similar 2882 84 797 792 907 - 89 378
Other goods for resale, finished goods and materials 31372 5998 4204 62 083 78 666 182 323
Rendering of services 26724 217182 3003 875 3019 493 7071 6 274 345
Distribution and trade services 63 204 595 2854 068 2882 532 - 5941 258
Maintenance of road lighting - - 405 121 245 - 121 650
Connection fees - 953 81117 - - 82070
Other services 26 661 11634 68 285 15716 7071 129 367
Other revenue 1661 14 546 33 036 1070 11 605 61918
Total 548 247 2812080 3 041 907 11 622 172 97 342 18 121 748

Revenue from sales of electricity by sales market is presented in the following tables.
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Year ended
o J::;:::fgo o 31 December 2018
(restated figures)
Revenue from sales of electricity 11 329 312 10 138 636
Retail sale 7 486 181 6 907 841
Strategic clients 1 336 635 1367 676
Business clients 3 192 695 3035 259
Mass clients, including: 3026 110 2871328
G group 2 337 247 2329 686
Other 69 703 42 821
Excise duty (138 962) (409 243)
Wholesale 3 157 432 2 533 584
Operational capacity reserve 216 994 212 473
Other 468 705 484 738
12. Recompensation revenue
31 December 2019
Price difference amount 637 595
Financial compensation 315 055
Total 952 650

The Act on the amendment to the act on the excise tax and some other acts (“Act’) came into force on 28 December
2018. In accordance with the Act, in its version applicable as of 31 December 2018, energy companies (electric utilities)
dealing with electricity trading were obligated to apply in 2019 gross prices and fee rates not higher than the gross prices
and fee rates included in the tariff or electricity price list in force on 30 June 2018, taking into account the reduction of the
excise tax rate for electricity.

The Act, amended during the year 2019, imposed an obligation on trading companies to apply the price of 30 June 2018
to the following groups of end users:

o final customers from the G-tariff, for whom in the first and second half of the year 2019 the price as of 30 June 2018
shall always apply, determined in accordance with the rules set out in the acts implementing the Act;

end users belonging to the following groups: micro-entrepreneurs, small entrepreneurs, hospitals, public finance
sector entities or other state organizational units without legal personality, for whom the price as of 30 June 2018
always applies in the first half of 2019, while in the second half of 2019, provided that a declaration of the end user is
submitted, in accordance with the specimen constituting Annex 1 to the Act;

e other end users for whom the price of 30 June 2018 applies only in the first half of 2019.
At the same time, the Act, as amended, provides for two formulas of recompensation for trading enterprises:

o the amount of the price difference for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 June 2019 for all customers ("Price
Difference Amount");

¢ financial compensation for the period from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 - with regard to final customers referred
to in Article 5(1a), i.e. customers to whom the Company is obliged to apply the prices as of 30 June 2018 ("Financial
Compensation").

In the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recognised
the effects of the amended Act and its implementing acts in the form of the amended Act:

e the amount of due recompensation for trading companies in the form of the Price Difference Amount and Financial
Compensation in the total amount of PLN 952 650 thousand.

Considering the submitted as at 31 December 2019 in the case of the TAURON Group's trading companies,
applications to Zarzadca Rozliczen S.A. for payment of the Price Difference Amount and Financial Compensation for
the period from January to November 2019, as well as the application for Financial Compensation for December
2019 submitted after the reporting period on 12 January 2020, the Group recognised revenue from the Price
Difference Amount of PLN 637 595 thousand and revenue from Financial Compensation for the period of the second
half of the year 2019 in the amount of PLN 315 055 thousand. The above revenues were calculated as the difference
between the amount of revenues for trading in electricity for the benefit of end users, determined on the basis of the
volume-weighted average price of electricity on the wholesale market increased by other unit costs (including, among
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others, own costs of conducting business activities, costs of balancing electricity demand characteristics, costs of
obtaining and redeeming certificates of origin or incurring a substitute fee and a margin) and the amount of revenues
resulting from the application of electricity prices applied on 30 June 2018.

As at the balance sheet date, the trading companies of the TAURON Group received cash on account of Price
Difference Ammount and Financial Compensation for the period from January to September 2019 in amount of PLN
801 536 thousand. Cash from Financial Compensation for the fourth quarter of 2019 in the amount of PLN 151 114
thousand was received by the trading companies after the period end date, to 27 February 2020. As at 31 December
2019, the receivable as recompensation for trading companies in the amount of PLN 151 114 thousand was
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position under other financial assets.

e adjustments reducing revenues from customers in 2019, resulting from the need to adjust prices in that period to the
provisions of the amended Act.

The adjustments apply to all customers for whom the price of 30 June 2018 applies in the first half of the year 2019
and for whom the prices in contracts have not been reduced from 1 January 2019 and, in case for the second half of
the year 2019, micro, small businesses, hospitals, public finance sector units or other state organizational units
without legal personality, who have submitted declarations of the final recipient, according to the statutory template.
The amount of recognised adjustments was PLN 569 572 thousand. As at the balance sheet date, the liability to
return overpaid amounts to customers presented in the consolidated statement of financial position under other short-
term financial liabilities amounted to PLN 41 720 thousand.

Apart from the above adjustments, the Group reduced the price for eligible customers in invoices issued for the period
from September to December 2019, which according to the Group’s estimates, reduced revenues from the sale of
electricity in the amount of PLN 85 171 thousand.

13. Cost of goods, products, materials and services sold (cost of sales)

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
The Group presents costs by function.
Operating expenses include:

¢ cost of goods, products, materials and services sold (cost of sales), incurred during a given reporting period, including any
impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, receivables and inventories, adjusted
by cost of manufacturing products for own purposes;

¢ total selling and distribution expenses, and administrative expenses incurred in the reporting period (disclosed separately in the
statement of comprehensive income).

Costs that can be assigned directly to revenue generated by the Group impact the profit or loss for the period which the revenue
pertains to.

Costs that can only be indirectly assigned to revenue or other benefits obtained by the Group impact the profit or loss in the portion
pertaining to the given reporting period, and match the revenue or other economic benefits.
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13.1. Expenses by type
Yearended 31 DY::;‘;::: 2018
31 December 2019 )
(restated figures)
!Depre.ciation of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and amortization of (1 991 733) (1 838 941)
intangible assets
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible (1 310 000) (862 209)
assets
Materials and energy (1702 735) (1672 650)
Maitenance and repair services (239 679) (240 231)
Distribution services (1 550 246) (1432 389)
Other external services (762 121) (857 798)
Cost of obligation to remit the CO, emission allowances (774 539) (611 586)
Other taxes and charges (675 861) (715 820)
Employee benefits expense (3033 560) (2706 145)
Allowance for trade receivables expected credit losses (27 818) (20 079)
Other (108 450) (117 217)
Total costs by type (12176 742) (11 075 065)
Change in inventories, prepayments, accruals and deferred income 119 593 32 295
Cost of goods produced for internal purposes 858 219 728 154
Selling and distribution expenses 499 171 477 794
Administrative expenses 658 664 631 487
Cost of goods for resale and materials sold (9 223 441) (7 231 812)
Cost of sales (19 264 536) (16 437 147)

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the cost of goods, products, materials and services sold increased versus
comparable period, including the main changes therein:

increase in depreciation costs, impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-
use assets, and increase in employee benefits costs described in Notes 13.2 and 13.3 hereto;

increase in materials and energy consumption relates mainly higher costs of fuels used for production as a result of
higher volume consumption of biomass as a result of higher production of electricity from units used with this fuel.

increase in distribution services costs due to higher network and quality charge components due to the tariff change;

decrease in other external services costs, which is influenced by lower costs of construction and assembly services in
the current year due to intensified work in 2018 related to the implementation of the project - construction of the 910
MW unit in Jaworzno, partial reversal of the provision for reclamation of furnace waste landfill, lower costs of mining
services and machine rental due to lower production of mining plants and lower costs of rent and lease due to IFRS
16 Leases coming into force from 1 January 2019;

increase in the cost of the obligation to surrender the CO2 emission allowances, which is mainly due to the increase
in allowance prices. At the same time, the cost of fulfilling the obligation to surrender the CO2 emission allowances
and thus the calculation of the provision includes units of certified emission reductions (CER) in the amount of
883 000, whose purchase price is lower than EUA;

increase in the value of goods and materials sold, which is mainly due to the increase in the current reporting period
in the prices of electricity, as well as to a greater amount of purchased energy from contractors outside the TAURON
Group, which is related to the increase by the legislator of the obligation of electricity generators to sell electricity
through the exchange from 1 January 2019 to the level of 100% (compared to 30% in the comparable period).

In the value of goods and materials sold in connection with the come into force of the amended Act on the
amendment to the act on the excise tax and some other acts and in connection with the approval by the President of
the Energy Regulatory Office of the tariff for the sale of electricity, the Group recognised in 2019 the net cost of
creating provisions for onerous contracts in the amount of PLN 293 946 thousand, which is discussed in detail in
Note 39.2 hereto.
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13.2. Employee benefits expenses
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Wages and salaries (2 258 550) (2 099 057)
Social security costs (440 661) (407 808)
Jubilee bonuses (89 507) 80 449
Social Fund (54 321) (53 087)
Post-employment benefit expenses, of which: (91 308) (30 926)
Provision for retirement, disability and similar benefits (16 557) (16 490)
Coal allowances and special electricity rates and charges (9 066) 40 063
Social Benefits Fund (2 736) 2246
Contributions to employee retirement plans (62 949) (56 745)
Voluntary termination scheme 13 459 (4 350)
Other employee benefit expenses (112 672) (191 366)
Total (3 033 560) (2 706 145)
Items included in cost of sales (2 000 866) (1785 447)
Items included in selling and distribution expenses (228 434) (199 535)
Movement in stock of finished goods - (44)
Items included in administrative expenses (405 633) (370 031)
Items included in cost of goods produced for internal purposes (398 627) (351 088)

The increase in the costs of salaries and social insurance in the year ended 31 December 2019 versus comparative
period resulted mainly from the following:

e anincrease in the level of employment in the Group's companies in connection with a change in the mining operating
model by supporting its own preparatory work departments, limiting temporary work as a consequence of the change
in the applicable legal regulations and developing real estate protection and management activities;

¢ implementation of provisions resulting from agreements signed with the community representatives;
¢ increase in the minimum wage.

The increase in the cost of provisions for jubilee bonuses and special electricity rates in the current period versus
comparable period results mainly from the following:

e changes in the assumptions (including mainly the discount rate) of the actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet
date - in the financial result the Group recognised actuarial losses related to provisions for jubilee bonuses in the
amount of PLN 66 773 thousand (in 2018 PLN 19 068 thousand);

¢ events that took place in the comparable period, i.e. recognition of the effects of the release of actuarial provisions for
the employee tariff in the segment Generation of actuarial provisions for the current employees as future pensioners
in amount of PLN 49 270 thousand and release of provisions for jubilee bonuses in the amount of PLN 121 172
thousand.

At the same time, in connection with the release of provisions for jubilee bonuses, compensation in the amount of PLN
79 316 thousand was paid to the employees, which was charged to the costs of employee benefits (in the table above,
recognized as other employee benefit expenses).

13.3. Depreciation and amortization charges and impairment losses
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Amortization, included in item: (1991 733) (1 838 941)
Selling and distribution expenses (1876 048) (1 745 333)
Cost of sales (40 964) (39 559)
Administrative expenses (46 333) (34 927)
Cost of goods produced for internal purposes (28 388) (19 122)
Impairment allowance, included in item: (1310 000) (862 209)
Selling and distribution expenses (1275 480) (815 410)
Cost of sales (9 151) (9757)
Administrative expenses (25 311) (37 042)
Cost of goods produced for internal purposes (58) -
Total (3301 733) (2 701 150)
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The increase in depreciation and amortization costs results mainly from the recognition in the current period of
amortization on the right-of-use assets in the amount of PLN 93 049 thousand in connection with the come into force of
IFRS 16 Leases from 1 January 2019.

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recognized impairment losses in the Generation and Mining segments,
in addition to reversing in part the impairment losses recognized before in the Generation segment, which was due to
impairment tests performed as at 31 December 2019 and 30 June 2019. The total effect on the Group's gross profit for
2019 was PLN 1304 547 thousand (excess of recognition over reversal). The tests and their results have been
discussed in more detail in Note 10 hereto.

Additionally, in the year ended 31 December 2019 the Group's companies recognized and reversed impairment losses
on individual assets, customer contract assets and non-current assets classified as held for sale which resulted in the
Group's operating expenses being charged with PLN 5 453 thousand.

The total impairment loss on property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and rights-of-use assets in the year ended
December 31, 2019 amounted to PLN 1 310 000 thousand.

14.  Other operating revenue and expenses

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Bargain purchase 119 515 -

Penalties, fines, compensations received or receivable 53 611 35 851

Subsidies/grants and revenue representing the equivalent of amortization/depreciation charges 41 405 33011

Surplus of other provisions (recognized)/derecognized 10 945 (19 594)

Costs of court proceedings, fines and damages (8 598) (8 749)

Loss on the disposal or liquidation of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets and

costs of damages to non-current assets (o)) (7.704)

Write-off for abandoned investments and production as well as liquidated materials (45 631) (342)

Surplﬂus of (recognition)/reversal of actuarial provisions for the existing pensioners and disability } 139 402

pensioners

Other operating income 25419 19 401

Other operating expenses (28 861) (30 757)
Total 158 936 160 519

The result from the bargain purchase is related to the acquisition of wind farms, as described in detail in Note 2.1 hereto.
The increase in the costs of write-offs of abandoned investments and production versus comparable period is related to
the withdrawal by the company of Mining segment from the mining exploatations of bed 405/1 East lot at the Brzeszcze
Mining Plant and the withdrawal from the exploatation of longwall no. 302 at the Sobieski Mining Plant and longwall no.
727a at the Janina Mining Plant, which burdened the costs with the total amount of PLN 42 600 thousand.

In the comparative period, the company from the Generation segment released provisions for the employee tariff and the
Company Social Benefits Fund in part for pensioners, and therefore recognised other operating income of PLN 139 470
thousand.

15. Finance income and costs

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Finance income and costs include mainly items relating to:

» interest and discount unwinding effect and revenue from profit sharing in other entities;

» revaluation of financial instruments, except for revaluation of financial instruments recognised in other comprehensive income and
charged to revaluation capital and derivative commaodity instruments falling within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments in the
case of which gains/losses on change in measurement and on exercising are presented within operating activities where
gains/losses on the related trading in goods are also recognized;

« foreign exchange differences resulting from transactions performed during the reporting period and balance sheet measurement of
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period, except for differences recognized in the initial value of a fixed asset, to the
extent they are classified as adjustment to interest expenses;

» disposall/liquidation of financial assets;

» other items related to financing activities.

Foreign currency transactions (i.e. those not made in the functional currency) are translated into the functional currency at initial
recognition at the exchange rate applicable as at the transaction date. As at the end of the reporting period monetary items are
translated at the closing rate (for entities whose functional currency is PLN the closing rate is the average exchange rate published for
the currency by the National Bank of Poland as at the date).

Exchange rates applied for the purpose of balance sheet measurement:
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Currency 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
uUsbD 3.7977 3.7597
EUR 4.2585 4.3000
CZK 0.1676 0.1673

Exchange differences from measurement as at the end of the reporting period and from settlement are recognized through profit or
loss within finance income (or cost), except for those capitalized in assets.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Income and costs from financial instruments (257 320) (238 323)
Dividend income 4264 7 348
Interest income 31273 28 086
Interest costs (250 800) (147 372)
Commission relating to borrowings and debt securities (20 338) (22 945)
Gain/loss on derivative instruments (53 233) (4 052)
Foreign exchange gains/losses 30 083 (83 455)
Remeasurement of loans granted 15 936 (4 309)
Other (14 505) (11 624)
Other finance income and costs (53 502) (47 759)
Interest on employee benefits (32 692) (33 394)
Interest on discount of other provisions (12 154) (12 683)
Other (8 656) (1682)
Total, including recognized in the statement of comprehensive income: (310 822) (286 082)
Interest expense on debt (250 800) (147 372)
Finance income and other finance costs (60 022) (138 710)

The change in the amount of interest expenses in the year ended 31 December 2019 versus comparable period results
mainly from recognition in the current period of interest expenses under lease agreements recognised as at 1 January
2019 in accordance with IFRS 16 Leases in amount of PLN 44 800 thousand and recognition in the financial result of
costs related to new financing, taking into account capitalisation of interest expenses for investment tasks.

In the year ended 31 December 2019 there was a surplus of positive exchange differences over negative ones in the
amount of PLN 30 083 thousand, in the comparative period there was a surplus of negative exchange differences over
positive ones - PLN 83 455 thousand. The exchange rate differences relate mainly to exchange rate differences related
to the Company's debt obligations in EUR. In 2019, the Group recognised revenue of PLN 36 252 thousand and in 2018
cost of PLN 113 013 thousand, of which negative exchange rate differences of PLN 35 577 thousand were activated for
investment tasks.

16. Costs arising from leases

The note below presents the total financial result due to lease contracts in which the Group companies are the lessee.

Year ended
31 December 2019

Cost arising from leases recognized in accordance with MSSF 16 Leases, including: (137 849)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (93 049)
Cost of interest on lease liabilities (44 800)

Cost arising from leases for which practical exclusion from MSSF 16 Leases has been applied, including: (20 240)
Cost of short--term leases (19 877)
Cost of low-value asset leases (111)
Variable lease charges not included in the measurement of lease liabilities (252)

Razem (158 089)

17. Income tax

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Current tax

Income tax recognized in profit or loss for the period includes actual tax charge for the given reporting period for each company from
the Tax Capital Group (“TCG”) as well as other non-TCG companies, determined in line with the provisions of the CIT Act, as well as
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any previous year tax adjustments.

Deferred income tax

The Group recognizes a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability arising from temporary differences between the book value of
assets and liabilities and their tax value, and a tax loss deductible in the future.

The deferred tax asset is recognized only if its realization is probable, i.e. if it is expected that a taxable profit sufficient to realize the
asset will be generated in the future.

Income tax related to items which are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity is recognized in other
comprehensive income or in equity, respectively.

The deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability of companies from the Tax Capital Group are netted off due to the fact that the
companies file combined tax returns.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

As at each balance sheet date, the Group analyzes realizability of deferred tax asset and assesses its unrecognized items.

Based on the forecasts prepared for the TGC, according to which taxable income will be earned in future periods, it has been
concluded that there is no risk that the deferred tax asset recognized in these consolidated financial statements will not be realized.

17.1. Tax expense in the statement of comprehensive income
Yearended 31 J::;r::::gms
31 December 2019 )
(restated figures)
Current income tax (186 426) (341 630)
Current income tax expense (192 668) (331 740)
Adjustments to current income tax from previous years 6 242 (9 890)
Deferred tax 190 111 44 028
Income tax expense in profit/(loss) 3 685 (297 602)
Income tax expense relating to other comprehensive income 23770 7 436
subject to reclassification to profit or loss (2 884) 4617
not subject to reclassification to profit or loss 26 654 2819

The decrease of current income tax expense in relation to the comparable period is connected with taking into account in
the settlement of Tax Capital Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 a higher tax loss of the company in the
Mining segment.

17.2. Reconciliation of the effective tax rate
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Profit (loss) before taxation (15 368) 504 647
Tax at Poland's statutory tax rate of 19% 2920 (95 883)
Adjustments to income tax from previous years 6 242 (9 890)
Tax effects of the following items: (18 664) (173 382)
Recognition of non-deductible provisions and write-downs/allowances (29 607) (1 460)
National Disabled Persons Rehabilitation Fund (PFRON) (5673) (5 141)
Permanent differences on costs related to tangible assets (3643 (4 459)
Impairment of goodwill - (2 655)
Other tax non-deductible costs (31 634) (7 430)
Share in profit/loss of joint ventures 9110 10429
Changes in deferred tax estimates caused by revenue and cost with a different 27 511 (181 845)
tax point
Other income not included in taxable base 15272 19179
Bargain purchase 22708 -
Other (9 521) (18 447)
Tax at the effective rate of 24.0% (2018 - 59.0%) 3685 (297 602)
Income tax (expense) in profit/(loss) 3685 (297 602)

A decrease in the effective tax rate in the year ended 31 December 2019 versus the comparative period is related mostly
to the recognized change in deferred tax estimates, arising from a difference in the tax point and the recognition of the
estimated revenue from supplies of electricity and gas documented with advance payment invoices.
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In the year ended 31 December 2019, certain IT solutions were implemented to support the determination of revenue
with regard to settlement periods to be closed in the subsequent accounting period. Effects of estimate changes were
charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019.

17.3. Deferred income tax

As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

difference between tax base and carrying amount of fixed and intangible

assels 1880816 1503 445
difference between tax base and carrying amount of financial assets 48 137 65 366
different timing of recognition of sales revenue for tax purposes 327 914 360 507
difference between tax base and carrying amount of energy certificates 17 623 10 227
other 66 780 52 929
Deferred tax liabilities 2341270 1992 474
provisions and accruals 665 886 490 191
:g;zznce between tax base and carrying amount of fixed and intangible 495 875 194 224
power infrastructure received free of charge and received connection fees 7 859 12 039
difference between tax base and carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities 292 771 145 497
different timing of recognition of cost of sales for tax purposes 277 964 312 824
tax losses 6 533 15 358
other 11185 28 692
Deferred tax assets 1758 073 1198 825
After setting off balances at the level of individual Group companies, deferred tax for the Group is presented as:
Deferred tax asset 22 088 30 105
Deferred tax liability (605 285) (823 754)

In connection with the come into force of IFRS 16 Leases as at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised the right-of-use
assets and the lease liability, which is discussed in detail in Note 8.1 hereto, which resulted in an increase in the deferred
income tax liability on the difference between the tax and balance sheet value of tangible fixed assets, intangible assets
and right-of-use assets, and an increase in the deferred income tax asset on the difference between the tax and carrying
amount of financial assets and liabilities of PLN 174 442 thousand.

Change in deferred tax liability and assets

Year ended 31 December 2019 Year ended 31 December 2018

Deferred tax liabilities  Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities Deferred tax assets

Opening balance 1992 474 1198 825 1756 752 931 009
Effects of implementing new IFRS 174 442 174 442 9 634 (10 525)
Restated opening balance 2166 916 1373 267 1766 386 920 484
Change in the balance:

corresponding to profit/(loss) 138 478 328 589 230 635 274 663

porresponding to other comprehensive 2 884 26 654 (4617) 2819

income

business acquisition 28 950 25 828 - -

other changes 4042 3735 70 859
Closing balance 2 341 270 1758 073 1992 474 1198 825
18. Earnings (loss) per share

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Earnings (loss) per share for each period is calculated by dividing the net profit (loss) attributable to equity holders of the Parent for a
given reporting period by the weighted average number of shares existing in that period.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Net profit (loss) for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Parent (0L 204 880
Number of ordinary shares 1752 549 394 1752 549 394
Earnings per share (in PLN), basic and diluted (0.01) 0.12
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

19. Property, plant and equipment

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Key fixed assets by segment:

* Generation:

- boilers with accessories, turbines with generators, transformers and thermal stations as well as equipment used for purposes of fuel
unloading, storage and transportation, pumping stations and sulfur-recovery facilities, steam generators, landfills, storage and other
buildings;

- thermal stations, equipment used for purposes of fuel unloading and transportation as well as pumping stations and water treatment
facilities;

- wind farms, water turbine, hydro power plant buildings, sets as well as weirs and dams and hydrotechnical devices.

¢ Distribution:

- power lines and stations. Power lines are located on the area of 57 thousand square meters, with the total length of ca. 237 thousand
km;

- electrical substations (approximately 61 thousand items);

*  Mining:

- mechanized lining, pit shafts and dip-headings and fixed assets located in the mine walls and the coal processing plant;

- costs of work related to the cutting of production drifts and accumulated costs of work related to the reinforcement of longwalls

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost includes:

¢ acquisition price or manufacturing cost;

¢ costs directly attributable to the purchase and bringing the asset to a usable condition;

* the expected cost of disassembly and removal of items of property, plant and equipment, and restoration of their current location to
its original condition (the accounting policy on provisioning for these costs has been presented in Note 37 hereto);

* borrowing costs.

All material elements included in an asset but having various useful lives (components) are identified and separated as at the date of
acquisition of an item of property, plant and equipment. Components also include costs of overhauls, periodic inspections and costs of
replacing their key parts. The Group recognizes specialized spare parts and service equipment as separate items of property, plant
and equipment if their useful life exceeds one year.

Depreciation is calculated by reference to the cost of the asset less its residual value. Depreciation is based on a depreciation plan
determining the estimated useful life of each fixed asset. ltems of property, plant and equipment (including components) are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of their estimated useful lives, except for land and fixed assets under construction,
which are not depreciated. Specialized spare parts and service equipment are depreciated over the useful life of the fixed asset they
relate to.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of qualifying non-current assets.

Borrowing costs include mainly interest on specific and general borrowings calculated using the effective interest rate method and forex
differences related to foreign currency financing to the extent of being classified as interest cost adjustments. The effective portion of
the hedge for contracts that satisfy the hedge accounting criteria and are entered into in connection with financing the development of
non-current assets is also capitalized. After the completion of a qualifying asset that has been financed using specific borrowings,
specific borrowings and the related costs are not taken into account when determining borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

General borrowing costs eligible for capitalization are determined by applying the capitalization rate to expenditure incurred for
qualifying assets. The capitalization rate is the weighted average rate of all borrowing costs related to borrowings classified as liabilities
in a given period, other than specific borrowings.

Fixed assets received free of charge, connection fees and subsidies to assets

Fixed assets received free of charge and connection fees are initially recognized at cost, corresponding to the estimated fair value or
the amount of cash received in the form of subsidies to assets.

Revenue from fixed assets received free of charge, funded with subsidies, are reported in the statement of financial position as
deferred income and recognized as other operating revenue in correspondence to depreciation of the received or acquired property,
plant and equipment.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES
Impairment

As at each reporting period end, the Group assesses whether objective indication of impairment occurs in relation to property, plant
and equipment. Impairment tests for property, plant and equipment are carried out in line with the accounting policy presented in Note
10 hereto.

Useful lives

Average residual useful lives by fixed asset group:
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Average remaining depreciation
Asset group pegriod (numb(?r of':(ears)
Buildings, premises, civil and water engineering structures 18 years
Plant and machinery 11 years
Mining excavations 2 years
Other tangible fixed assets 4 years

The depreciation method and rate, as well as the residual value of fixed assets are reviewed at least at the end of each financial year
with possible adjustments to depreciation charges recognized as at the beginning of the reporting period when the review was
completed.

A review of the estimated useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets, conducted in 2019, had the most material effect on the
amortization and depreciation expense in the Generation segment — a decrease of amortisation and depreciation costs of PLN 17 602
thousand and Distribution segment - a decrease of amortization and depreciation costs of PLN 19 600 thousand. The effect on other
segments was not material.

Year ended 31 December 2019

Buildings, Property, plant
Land premises and civil  Plant and Mine Assets under and
engineering machinery workings construction equipment,
structures total
COST
Opening balance 125 869 23 775 062 19 133 480 221074 943 340 6 376 491 50 575 316
Direct purchase - - - 1714 - 3251159 3252 873
Borrowing costs - - - - - 183 439 183 439
Transfer of assets under construction 14 006 1395272 924 748 - 53 706 (2387 732) -
Business acquisition 592 270463 441138 - - - 712193
Sale (39) (3 264) (94 428) - (26 460) (47) (124 238)
Liquidation (10) (62 965) (101 672) (124 816) (11 285) - (300 748)
Received free of charge - 17 107 232 - - - 17 339
Transfers to/from assets held for sale (64) (13 636) (46) - (175) - (13 921)
Overhaul expenses - - - - - 193 955 193 955
Items generated internally - - - 184 542 - 99 509 284 051
docommissonng afmines : woifez 2t : : -
Other movements 200 1285 (8 256) (17 513) (1168) 60 319 34 867
Foreign exchange differences from translation of foreign entities - - - - 1 - 1
Closing balance 140 554 25480506 20 297 298 265 001 957 959 7777 093 54 918 411
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Opening balance (404) (9599 896) (10 765 131) (52 458) (611 258) (139 502) (21 168 649)
Depreciation for the period - (829 750) (797 235) (95 837) (74 362) (915) (1798 099)
Increase of impairment - (426 283) (698 406) (92 759) (6 592) (148 752) (1372792)
Decrease of impairment 65 35438 53 208 - 102 522 89 335
Sale - 2143 91 800 - 24 963 - 118 906
Liquidation - 55 449 95 937 124 816 11249 - 287 451
Transfers to/from assets held for sale - 9 666 38 - 163 - 9 867
Other movements (2) (3 366) 11597 - 676 5737 14 642
Foreign exchange differences from translation of foreign entities - - - - (1) - (1)
Closing balance (341) (10 756 599) (12 008 192) (116 238) (655 060) (282 910) (23 819 340)
NET CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 125 465 14 175 166 8 368 349 168 616 332082 6236 989 29 406 667
NET CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 140 213 14 723 907 8289 106 148 763 302 899 7494 183 31099 071
of which operating segments:
Mining 3146 377 857 281925 144 613 6980 288 647 1103 168
Generation 43 284 2290717 3297937 - 24999 6 168 751 11 825 688
Distribution 76 924 11 558 666 4590 377 - 252 469 1002 867 17 481 303
Other segments and other operations 16 859 496 667 118 867 4150 18 451 33918 688 912
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (restated)

Buildings, Property, plant
Land premises and civil Plant and Mine Assets under and
engineering machinery workings construction equipment,
structures total
COST
Opening balance 122 780 22 580 965 18 647 127 - 895 144 4 856 088 47 102 104
Opening balance adjustments - - - 196 185 - - 196 185
Restated opening balance 122 780 22 580 965 18 647 127 196 185 895 144 4 856 088 47 298 289
Direct purchase - - - 1320 - 3280 447 3281767
Borrowing costs - - - - - 163 766 163 766
Transfer of assets under construction 4012 1235535 691 115 - 92 894 (2 023 556) -
Sale (43) (1511) (65 888) - (29 575) - (97 017)
Liquidation (48) (63612) (135 253) (140 966) (10 662) (36) (350 577)
Received free of charge 437 22482 7 - - - 22 996
Transfers to/from assets held for sale (987) (2 204) (7 650) - (2087) - (12 928)
Overhaul expenses - - - - - 65920 65 920
Items generated internally - - - 164 535 - 38825 203 360
Cost of dlisa.ss'embly of wind farms and R 5093 106 R R R 5199
decommissioning of mines
Other movements (282) (1686) 3837 - (2 388) (4 963) (5 482)
Foreign exchange differences from translation of foreign entities - - 9 - 14 - 23
Closing balance 125 869 23 775 062 19 133 480 221074 943 340 6 376 491 50 575 316
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Opening balance (407) (8553035) (9866 322) - (565 315) (37 139) (19 022 218)
Depreciation for the period - (804 815) (742 385) (117 158) (81 249) - (1745 607)
Increase of impairment (16) (705630) (1 150 860) (76 266) (8 628) (102 383) (2043 783)
Decrease of impairment 19 406 718 795176 - 1397 20 1203 330
Sale - 1038 62 855 - 28699 - 92 592
Liquidation - 54 121 130 336 140 966 10 607 - 336 030
Transfers to/from assets held for sale - 1479 7215 - 1699 - 10 393
Other movements - 228 (1 140) - 1538 - 626
Foreign exchange differences from translation of foreign entities - - (6) - (6) - (12)
Closing balance (404) (9599 896) (10 765 131) (52 458) (611 258) (139 502) (21 168 649)
NET CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 122 373 14 027 930 8780 805 - 329 829 4818 949 28 079 886
Opening balance adjustments - - - 196 185 - - 196 185
sE;EgED NET CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 122373 14 027 930 8780 805 196 185 329 829 4818 949 28 276 071
NET CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 125 465 14 175 166 8 368 349 168 616 332082 6 236 989 29 406 667
of which operating segments:
Mining 3118 501 042 408 867 165 801 11654 336 587 1427 069
Generation 42721 2213878 3436 115 - 30 644 4787 752 10 511 110
Distribution 62 766 10 998 046 4413973 - 272 365 1070 256 16 817 406
Other segments and other operations 16 860 462 200 109 394 2815 17 419 42 394 651 082

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of PLN 3 436 312 thousand
(including capitalized borrowing costs). The major purchases were made in connection with investments in the following
operating segments:

Operating segment Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Distribution 1744 031 1955 756
Generation 1 300 827 1202 401
Mining 285 257 237 515

The average capitalization rate of the borrowing costs in the year ended 31 December 2019 was 3.28% versus 3.57% in
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Key investment projects carried out by the Group in the financial year 2019 have been described in item1.5.1.
Management Board's reports on the activities of TAURON Polska Energia S.A. and of the TAURON Polska Energia S.A.
Capital Group for the financial year 2019.

Recognition and reversal of impairment losses on property, plant and equipment had the following impact on operating
segment performance:

Year ended 31 December 2019

Generation Distribution
Increase of impairment (694 044) (676 610) (2 138) (1372 792)
Decrease of impairrment 85 468 - 3 867 89 335
Total impact on the profit (loss) for the period (608 576) (676 610) 1729 (1 283 457)
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Year ended 31 December 2018

Generation Mining Distribution Other
Increase of impairment (1321 783) (717 818) (3842) (340) (2043 783)
Decrease of impairrment 1203 095 - 235 - 1203 330
Total impact on the profit (loss) for the period (118 688) (717 818) (3 607) (340) (840 453)

20. Right-of-use assets

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

An agreement or part of a rental, lease or other agreement or part of an agreement of a similar nature under which the right to control
the use of an asset for a given period is transferred in exchange for remuneration is classified as a lease. Lease classification is made
at the date of commencement of the lease, based on the economic content of the agreement, not on its legal form.

At the date of commencement of the lease, a right-of-use assets is recognised for use and a liability for the lease.

A right-of-use asset is measured at cost including:

* the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,

* any lease payments made at or before the inception of the lease, less any amount received or costs paid by the lessor (lease
incentives),

* any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee,

* an estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it was located or restoring it
to the condition required by the lease terms.

After the initial recognition, a right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and/or impairment losses and
adjusted for the revaluation of the lease liability. Depreciation and/or amortization principles applied to right-of-use assets are
consistent with those applied to depreciation and/or amortization of assets owned by the Group. If there is no reasonable certainty that
the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset item is fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
its useful life.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group measures a rights-of-use asset, among others, in the current value of the lease
payments remaining to be paid on that date. Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate of the lease if that rate can be
easily determined. Otherwise, the Group applies the incremental interest rate, in accordance with the adopted methodology depending
on the rating.

The Group applies the portfolio approach to similar leases regarding unified assets with similar use. When accounting for leases under
the portfolio approach, the Group applies estimates and assumptions corresponding to the size and composition of the portfolio,
including estimates of the weighted average lease term.

In order to determine the lease period, e.g. for agreements for an indefinite period, the Group makes an estimate.

Year ended 31 December 2019

Buildings, .
. Right-of- .
Perpetual premises and S Right-of-use
o Plant and Motor  Transmission use assets
usufruct civil . ) ) assets
g ) . machinery  vehickles easements in
right engineering total
progress
structures
COST
Opening balance - - - - - - - -
Impact of IFRS 16 Leases 393 110 1071236 166 028 28 978 3739 96 489 12931 1772511
Restated opening balance 393 110 1071 236 166 028 28 978 3739 96 489 12931 1772 511
Increase due to a new lease contract 40 384 9 4 478 36 674 2 569 360 - 84 474
Increase(decrease) due to lease changes 8 547 2287 5274 (863) 397 (12) - 15 630
Business acquisition 34 931 - 1199 - - 33 - 36 163
Other movements (1.109) 2 553 (555) - (134) 24 274 (6 675) 18 354
Closing balance 475 863 1076 085 176 424 64 789 6 571 121 144 6 256 1927 132
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Opening balance - - - - - - - -
Impact of IFRS 16 Leases - (25 384) - - - (15 987) - (41371)
Restated opening balance - (25 384) - - - (15 987) - (41371)
Depreciation for the period (20 229) (32 435) (15 334) (17 828) (2112) (5111) - (93 049)
Increase of impairment - (3 080) (48) (16 885) (124) - - (20 137)
Decrease of impairment - 460 - - - - - 460
Other movements 53 342 41 - 26 1 - 463
Closing balance (20 176) (60 097) (15 341) (34 713) (2 210) (21 097) - (153 634)
NET CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD - - - - - - - -
NET CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 455 687 1015 988 161 083 30 076 4 361 100 047 6 256 1773 498

The Group has decided to apply the modified retrospective approach and the practical expedients allowed by IFRS 16
Leases, i.e. with the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard recognized at 1 January 2019. The Group
decided not to restate the comparative information, as permitted by the Standard.
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21. Goodwill

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Goodwill is carried at its initial amount (determined in line with the accounting policy presented in Note 6) less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if any indications of
impairment occur.

As at the acquisition date, goodwill acquired is allocated to each cash-generating unit that may derive benefits from synergy effects.
An operating segment is the lowest level in the Group with attributable goodwill and with goodwill monitored for internal management
purposes in the Group (except the Generation segment).

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and as at each reporting period end, if appropriate indications occur.
Impairment tests for goodwill are performed in line with the accounting principles presented in Note 10.

Operating segment AS at ASat
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Distribution 25 602 25 602
Other activity 581 581
Total 26 183 26 183
22. Energy certificates and CO2 emission allowances

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Energy certificates and CO, emission allowances classified as intangible assets include:

» certificates of energy generated using renewable sources and cogeneration, as well as energy efficiency certificates acquired or
received for surrendering purposes due to the sale of electricity to end buyers;
* CO; emission allowances received or acquired with the intention to fulfil the obligation resulting from emission of CO..

Energy certificates and CO, emission allowances are classified considering the Group's intention to use them as at the acquisition
date (possible subsequent reclassification) as:

e current intangible assets - energy certificates and CO, emission allowances designated for internal purposes, where the Group
has the intention to surrender them so as to fulfil the obligation for the current year;

* non-current intangible assets - energy certificates and CO, emission allowances designated for internal purposes, where they are
intended to be used for purposes of the fulfilment of the surrendering obligation for the following years.

At initial recognition, the said assets are measured in accordance with the following principles:

Granted/Received

Acquired e Release
Energy certificates REEBET il yalue EB L FIFO "First In First Out"
cost receipt date
. Acquisition Nominal value Obtained free of charge in the first place,
CO; emission allowances cost (i.e. zero) subsequently acquired ones (FIFO "First In First Out")

The energy certificates and the CO, emission allowances are surrendered (in correspondence with settlement of the provision
amount) at the date of their being redeemed. The principles applicable to the recognition of provisions relating to the energy
certificate surrendering obligation and for liabilities arising from CO, emissions have been presented in Note 35.

22.1. Long-term energy certificates and CO2 emission allowances
Year ended 31 December 2019 Year ended 31 December 2018
Er_u.argy CO, emission Total Er_|e_rgy CO, emission Total
certificates allowances certificates allowances
Opening balance 208 585 453 018 661 603 95 795 207 335 303 130
Direct purchase 234 252 100 949 335 201 194 948 381 116 576 064
Reclassification (136 616) (391 991) (528 607) (82 158) (135 433) (217 591)
Closing balance 306 221 161 976 468 197 208 585 453 018 661 603
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22.2. Short-term energy certificates and CO2 emission allowances
Year ended 31 December 2019 Year ended 31 December 2018
CO; emission CO; emission
ceftri‘f?tr:g:'es allzowances fotal cells‘t?f?cr:gres allzowances fotal

Opening balance 90 267 111 396 201 663 327 324 324 936 652 260

Direct purchase 379 664 300 484 680 148 327 991 476 145 804 136

Generated internally 143 644 - 143 644 86 531 - 86 531

Business acquisition 10 579 - 10 579 - - -

Cancellation (165 802) (113 646) (279 448) (733 256) (825 118) (1558 374)

Reclassification 136 616 391 991 528 607 81677 135 433 217 110
Closing balance 594 968 690 225 1285193 90 267 111 396 201 663

22.3. Balance of CO2 emission allowances recorded in the Union Registry
Balance of emission allowances Yearended Yearended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Allowances recorded at the beginning of the financial year 11 469 679 24 649 436
Allowances surrendered:

in the installations of TAURON Wytwarzanie S.A. (previous year's emissions) (1172 702) (14 656 752)

in the installations of TAURON Ciepto Sp. z 0.0. (previous year's emissions) (1914 237) (1878 114)

in the installations of TAURON Wytwarzanie S.A. (current year's emissions) - (11 494 000)
Allocation of free-of-charge allowances 302 651 379 609
Allowances purchased on the secondary market 11 047 500 17 547 000
Allowances sold on the secondary market (5 948 000) (3 077 500)
Allowances recorded at the end of the financial year, of which: 13 784 891 11 469 679
Allowances intended for surrender for a given year: (11413 633) (3048 547)

in the installations of TAURON Wytwarzanie S.A. (9 815 035) (1 132 025)

in the installations of TAURON Ciepto Sp. z 0.0. (1 598 598) (1916 522)

In 2019 the TAURON Group companies received free-of-charge emission allowances pursuant to Article 10a of Directive
of the European Parliament and the Council 2009/29/EC of 23 April 2009, in the amount of 302 651 EUA for heat
production. The other allowances, necessary to balance the emission needs in 2019, were purchased and contracted for

purchase on the secondary market.

In order to secure the liabilities of TAURON Polska Energia S.A. resulting from the transactions concluded by the
Company on the Polish Power Exchange S.A. agreements on transfer of CO2 emission allowances to the Warsaw

Commaodity Clearing House have been concluded, what is more detailed in note 51 hereto.

23. Other Intangible Assets

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Key items of other intangible assets include software, concessions, patents, licenses and similar items.

Other intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

Other intangible assets, except those which have not been made available for use, are amortized over their estimated useful lives.
Amortization is calculated by reference to the initial value less the residual value. Residual value is included in determining the basis
for calculation of depreciation charges, if for a given asset, an active market exists or a third party has committed to buy the asset

upon completion of its useful life.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

Impairment

As at each reporting period end, the Group assesses whether objective indication of impairment occurs in relation to intangible
assets. Impairment tests for intangible assets are carried out in line with the accounting policy presented in Note 10.

Amortization method and rate, as well as the residual value are verified at least at the end of each financial year. Any changes
arising from the verification are recognized as changes in estimates, with adjustments to amortization charges (if any) effective as of

the beginning of the reporting period when the verification was completed.
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Useful lives

Average residual useful lives by other intangible asset group:

Average remaining amortization

Asset group period (number of years)
Software, concessions, patents, licenses and similar items 3 years
Other 7 years

Year ended 31 December 2019

Software,
concessions,
patents, licenses
and similar items

Perpetual Other Intangible Intangible
intangible assets not made assets,

assets available for use total

Development
expenses

usufruct
right

COST

Opening balance 6 403 774 682 776 434 271 336 85 486 1914 341

Impact of IFRS 16 Leases - (758 941) - (94 809) (12 931) (866 681)

Restated opening balance 6 403 15741 776 434 176 527 72 555 1047 660
Direct purchase - - - - 120 034 120 034

Transfer of intangible assets

) 2543 - 65 962 9 041 (77 546) -
not made available for use
Sale/ Liquidation - - (19 938) (562) (469) (20 969)
Other movements - (136) (391) (1 039) (321) (1.887)
Foreign exchange differences
from translation of foreign entities B B 2 ) ) 2
Closing balance 8 946 15 605 822 069 183 967 114 253 1144 840
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Opening balance (5744) (25 387) (493 665) (101 835) (7) (626 638)
Impact of IFRS 16 Leases - 25 387 - 15987 - 41 374
Restated opening balance (5744) - (493 665) (85 848) (7) (585 264)
Amortization for the period (349) - (87 833) (12 403) - (100 585)
Increase of impairment (157) - (1 000) (59) (23) (1239)
Decrease of impairment - - 30 - - 30
Sale/ Liquidation - - 19 936 545 - 20 481
Foreign exch.ange diffelrencesl . R R @ R ) @
from translation of foreign entities
Closing balance (6 250) - (562 534) (97 765) (30) (666 579)
NET CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERI( 659 749 295 282769 169 501 85479 1287 703
NET CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 2 696 15 605 259 535 86 202 114 223 478 261

Year ended 31 December 2018

Perpetual Softwa_re, Other Intangible Intangible
Development concessions, . q
SETECE USI:lfruct R, (EaEE intangible ass?ts not made assets,
right oL assets available for use total
and similar items
COST
Opening balance 6 403 773 287 644 480 236 548 148 502 1809 220
Direct purchase - 3926 - - 119 121 123 047
Transfer of int'angible assets ) 1341 154 045 32 545 (187 931) ;
not made available for use
Sale/ Liquidation - (863) (22 363) (1102) 4) (24 332)
Other movements - (3 009) 242 3345 5798 6 376
Foreign exchange differences
from translation of foreign entities ) B 30 B B 30
Closing balance 6 403 774 682 776 434 271 336 85 486 1914 341
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Opening balance (5 265) (25 371) (439 639) (84 861) 7 (555 143)
Amortization for the period (257) - (75 408) (17 669) - (93 334)
Increase of impairment (375) (43) (1313) (121) (58) (1910)
Decrease of impairment 153 27 331 21 58 590
Sale/Liquidation - - 22361 795 - 23 156
Other movements - - 32 - - 32
Foreign exchange differences
from tgranslationgof foreign entities ) B (29) B B (29)
Closing balance (5 744) (25 387) (493 665) (101 835) (7) (626 638)
NET CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERI( 1138 747 916 204 841 151 687 148 495 1254 077
NET CARRYING AMOUNT AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 659 749 295 282 769 169 501 85 479 1287 703
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The Group has decided to apply the modified retrospective approach and the practical expedients allowed by IFRS 16
Leases, i.e. with the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard recognized at the date of 1 January 2019. The
Group decided not to restate the comparative information, as permitted by the Standard. Therefore, the perpetual
usufruct of land and easements in 2018 are classified as other intangible assets. As at 1 January 2019, the Group
reclassified rights of perpetual usufruct of land, other intangible assets (easements) and expenditures on other intangible
assets (easements) not put to use, whose total value as at 1 January 2019 amounts to PLN 825 307 thousand, within the
scope of IFRS 16 Leases from other intangible assets to right-of-use assets.

Under other intangible assets, the Group presents rights of perpetual usufruct of land in the amount of PLN 15 605
thousand, which refer to the limestone mine belonging to the subsidiary, excluded from IFRS 16 Leases.

24. Investments in joint ventures

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Joint arrangements of the Group classified as joint ventures are recognized using the equity method.

Using the equity method the initial value of the investment carried at cost is increased or reduced by a share in profits/losses and in
other comprehensive income of the joint venture as from the acquisition date (recognized in profit or loss or in other comprehensive
income of the Group, as appropriate).

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

The Group determines the type of a joint arrangement it is a party to depending on contractual rights and obligations. Following an
analysis of such rights and obligations, the Group assesses its joint control over joint arrangements and rights to their net assets.
Consequently, shares in the TAMEH Holding Sp. z 0.0. Capital Group and in Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A. are classified as
joint ventures.

Impairment

Interests in joint ventures are tested for impairment if indications of impairment or reversal of impairment losses recognized before
are identified.

As at 31 December 2019 and for the year ended As at 31 December 2018 and for the year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 (restated figures)
Elektrocieptownia TAMEH HOLDING As at Elektrocieptownia  Ayey yotDING LSE
Stalowa Wola S.A. Sp.zo.0.* 31 December 2019 SEB R § . S1'December 2015
: P-z0.0. (restated figures) P- z 0.0 (restated figures)
Non-current assets 1623 476 2186 422 3809 898 1362 534 2027 410 3389 944
Current assets, including: 136 404 644 722 781126 11625 775825 787 450
cash and cash equivalents 90 830 284 503 375 333 3376 336 462 339 838
Non-current liabilities (-) including: (1719 704) (922 262) (2 641 966) (1399 226) (849 842) (2 249 068)
debt (1716 142) (827 878) (2 544 020) (1343 897) (768 011) (2111 908)
Current liabilities (-) including: (519 395) (709 111) (1228 506) (416 860) (783 951) (1200 811)
debt (34 961) (184 095) (219 056) (6 437) (122 628) (129 065)
Total net assets (479 219) 1199 771 720 552 (441 927) 1169 442 727 515
Share in net assets (239 610) 599 886 360 276 (220 964) 584 721 363 757
Investment in joint ventures - 559 144 559 144 - 543 913 543 913
Share in revenue of joint ventures 425 959 938 960 363 86 861 206 861 292
Share in profit/(loss) of joint 47 947 47 947 } 54 890 54 890
ventures
Share in other comprehensive income of joint (987) (987) B ) )

ventures
* The data presented concern the TAMEH HOLDING Sp. z o.0. Group. The value of the interest held in TAMEH HOLDING Sp. z o.o. differs from
the value of net assets attributable to the Group, because the cost of shares in TAMEH HOLDING Sp. z o.0. was calculated taking into account
the fair value of the share contributed to the joint venture by companies from the ArcelorMittal Group.

Elektrociepfownia Stalowa Wola S.A.

Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A. is a special purpose vehicle established in 2010 on the initiative of TAURON
Polska Energia S.A. and PGNiG S.A. The entity was registered to carry out an investment project, i.e. construction of a
gas and steam unit fuelled with natural gas in Stalowa Wola with the gross maximum electrical capacity of 450 MWe and
the net heat capability of 240 MWi.

TAURON Polska Energia S.A. indirectly holds 50% interest in the company's issued capital and in its governing body,
exercised through TAURON Wytwarzanie S.A. Due to the fact that in 2015 the accumulated share of losses of the joint
venture and the adjustment to “top-down” transactions between the Group companies and the joint venture exceeded
the value of the interest in the joint venture, the Company discontinued to recognize its share of any further losses of
the joint venture.
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In addition, the Company has receivables arising from loans granted to Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A. with the
carrying amount of PLN 243 034 thousand, which has been discussed in more detail in Note 25 to these consolidated
financial statements.

Judgment of the Court of Arbitration at the Polish Chamber of Commerce on the claims of Abener Energia S.A.
against Elektrociepfownia Stalowa Wola S.A.

On 25 April 2019, a judgement of the Court of Arbitration at the Polish Chamber of Commerce in Warsaw was issued in
the case filed by Abener Energia S.A. ("Abener") against Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A. ("ECSW"), which is a joint
venture of the TAURON Group, in which the Company holds, indirectly through its subsidiary TAURON Wytwarzanie
S.A., 50% of shares in the issued capital.

The case pending at the Court of Arbitration concerned a claim for payment, for establishing the legal relationship and for
the obligation to submit a declaration of intent in connection with the terminated contract concluded between Abener
(general contractor) and ECSW (contracting authority) for the construction of a gas and steam unit in Stalowa Wola.
Under the judgement of the Court of Arbitration, ECSW was obligated to pay to Abener the amount of PLN 333 793
thousand along with statutory interest for delay and costs of the arbitration proceedings. On 24 June 2019, ECSW filed a
complaint with the Court of Appeal in Rzeszéw against the judgement. The proceedings of complaint is pending.

On 15 July 2019, the ECSW received a request from Abener addressed to the Court of Appeal in Rzeszéw to declare the
judgement enforceable. By order of 5 August 2019, the Court of Appeal in Rzeszéw postponed consideration of the case
from the application for a declaration of enforceability until the end of the proceedings on the complaint.

On 20 December 2019, ECSW received a new case filed by Abener with the Court of Arbitration. The subject matter of
the claim is the payment by the ECSW to Abener of the total amount of PLN 156 447 thousand and EUR 537 thousand
together with statutory interest for delay on account of damages resulting from demanding and obtaining by the ECSW,
at Abener's expense, payment from the performance bond or, alternatively, reimbursement of unjustified enrichment
obtained by the ECSW at Abener's expense in connection with obtaining payment from the performance bond. The
guarantee was granted to ECSW by Abener in accordance with the contract concluded between the parties for the
construction of the CCGT unit in Stalowa Wola. The respond to it was filed by ECSW on 20 March 2020. Assessment of
the claims and the grounds on which they are based indicates that they are unfounded. The arbitration case is pending.

On 30 December 2019, ECSW submitted a call for arbitration for Abener to pay the amount of PLN 177 853 thousand
and EUR 461 thousand, plus interest, as compensation for the damage corresponding to the costs of rectifying defects,
faults and inadequate works, supplies and services improperly performed by Abener under the contract for the
construction of the CCGT unit in Stalowa Wola. The case is pending.

In connection with the above judgement Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A. recognized in the statement of financial
position for 2018 a provision in the amount of PLN 397 965 thousand, which reduced the share in net assets attributable
to the TAURON Group. The Group presented comparable data on investments in joint ventures as at 31 December
2018, taking into account the impact of the above provision.

The CCGT unit construction contract concluded between ECSW and Abener does not contain any regulations obliging
the Company to pay remuneration to Abener in any form for ECSW.

TAMEH HOLDING Sp. z o.0. and subsidiaries

In 2014 a shareholders' agreement was concluded by and between the TAURON Group and the ArcelorMittal Group
regarding TAMEH HOLDING Sp. z o.0., which is responsible for investment and operational projects related to the
industrial power sector. The duration of the agreement is 15 years and may be extended. Each capital group holds 50%
of shares in TAMEH HOLDING Sp. z 0.0.

TAMEH HOLDING Sp. z 0.0. holds 100% of shares in TAMEH POLSKA Sp. z o0.0., incorporated by the following entities
contributed by the TAURON Group: Zaktad Wytwarzania Nowa and Elektrownia Blachownia along with Krakéw Heat and
Power Plant contributed by the ArcelorMittal Group. Moreover, TAMEH HOLDING Sp. z 0.0. holds 100% of shares in
TAMEH Czech s.r.o0., based on the Ostrava Heat and Power Plant..

On 28 June 2019, the General Shareholders' Meeting of TAMEH Holding Sp. z o0.0. decided to allocate PLN 64 356
thousand to pay dividends to the shareholders. The Group's interest in the joint venture TAMEH Holding Sp. z 0.0. was
reduced by the value of the dividend payable to the Group in the amount of PLN 32 178 thousand.
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25. Loans granted to joint ventures

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Loans granted to a joint venture do not satisfy the criteria to be recognized as a net investment in a joint venture.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

Pursuant to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the Group classifies and measures loans, estimating allowances for expected credit losses
for items classified as assets measured at amortized cost.

As at the reporting period end, the loan granted under a debt consolidation agreement of 28 February 2018 was classified as a
financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss, since its cash flows are not limited to principal and interest repayment.
Fair value was estimated accordingly. The fair value calculation methodology is presented in Note 47 hereto.

Other loans are measured at amortized cost, with expected credit losses estimated as at each reporting period end. Calculation
methodology and amounts of expected credit losses are presented below in Notes 48.1.4 hereto.

As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018
Agreement Loan
date amount Gross value

Impairment Maturity date Interest rate

LA Total Gross value

Total
allowance allowance

Loans measured at fair value

Debt consolidation agreement 28.02.2018 609 951 216 018 216 018 199 256 199 256 30.06.2033 fixed
Loans measured at amortized cost
VAT loan 11.04.2018 15 000 5109 (110) 4 999 2655 (68) 2 587 30.09.2020  WIBOR 1M+mark-up
30.03.2018 7290 7 955 (218) 7737 7 400 (182) 7218
Other loans 19.12.2018 9500 9197 (252) 8945 8 556 (210) 8346 30.06.2033 fixed
12.03.2019 5175 5 485 (150) 5335 - - -
Total 243 764 (730) 243 034 217 867 (460) 217 407
Non-current 238 655 (620) 238 035 217 862 (460) 217 402
Current 5109 (110) 4999 5 - 5

The above loans regard the loans granted to a joint venture Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A. The most significant
item is the agreement consolidating the borrower's debt of 28 February 2018 for the total amount of PLN 609 951
thousand, under which all existing liabilities of Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A. towards the Company resulting from
loans granted and not repaid by 28 February 2018 were renewed. As at the balance sheet date, the par value of the
loan, constituting subordinated debt owed to the Company, was PLN 310 851 thousand. The principal of PLN 299 100
thousand was repaid on 30 April 2018. The debt in question is subordinated debt, measured as at the balance sheet date
at the fair value of PLN 216 018 thousand.

26. Other financial assets

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Other financial assets include e.g. shares, units in investment funds, bid bonds, deposits and collateral, derivatives and loans to
unrelated entities.

Upon initial recognition, financial assets are classified to an appropriate class and measured accordingly. Financial assets
classification and measurement principles under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are presented in Note 47 hereto.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES
To measure financial assets at fair value, the Group must estimate their fair value at each reporting period end. The fair value
calculation methodology is presented in Note 44 hereto.

To measure financial assets at amortized cost, the Group must estimate expected credit losses as at each reporting period end.
Expected credit losses estimating methodology and amounts of expected credit losses for loans granted are presented in Note
48.1.4 hereto.
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As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Receivables due to financial compensation for traiding companies 151 114 -
Initial and variation margin deposits arising from stock exchange transactior 209 466 163 495
Derivative instruments 105 529 220 343
Shares 140 508 138 492
Bid bonds, deposits and collateral transferred 131 192 89 498
Deposits and term deposits for Mining Decommissioning Fund 50 228 47 126
Investment fund units 26 622 26 063
Loans granted 12 451 10 145
Other 7 447 2 548
Total 834 557 697 710
Non-current 235 522 254 677
Current 599 035 443 033

The receivables on account of compensation for trading companies relate to receivables on account of Financial
Compensation for the fourth quarter of 2019, which is discussed in more detail in Note 12 hereto.

Initial and variation margins on account of exchange settlements is mainly related to futures transactions on the CO2
emission allowances concluded on foreign exchange markets.

The asset resulting from a positive valuation of derivatives relates mainly to forward instruments on account of
transactions for which the underlying commodity is CO2 emission allowances.

Collaterals, deposits and transferred collaterals concern mainly the collaterals transferred within the framework of the
clearing guarantee system with the Warsaw Commodity Clearing House. As at 31 December 2019 the collateral
amounted to PLN 82 607 thousand and as at 31 December 2018 to PLN 44 538 thousand.

As at 31 December 2019 the shares held by the Group are mainly shares in the following entities:
e SCE Jaworzno Il Sp. z 0.0., in the amount of PLN 30 386 thousand;

e Przedsiebiorstwo Energetyki Cieplnej Sp. z 0.0., in the amount of PLN 23 801 thousand;

e PGEEJ 1 Sp. zo.0.,in the amount of PLN 14 402 thousand,;

e Energetyka Cieszynska Sp. z 0.0., in the amount of PLN 13 773 thousand;

e ElectroMobility Poland S.A., in the amount of PLN 11 847 thousand;

e ECC Magenta Sp. z 0.0. 2 ASI SKA, in the amount of PLN 10 950 thousand;

27. Other non-financial assets

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Other non-financial assets of the Group include prepayments as well as advance payments for fixed assets under construction,
intangible assets, inventories which as non-monetary items are not discounted and costs of acquiring new contracts and costs of
rebates. Costs of acquiring new contracts are capitalized if the Group expects them to be refunded. Such costs can be immediately
charged to expenses if the period of depreciation of the related asset is up to one year. The asset is depreciated over the period
when the goods are transferred or services provided. If the costs are related to more than one contract, depreciation should include
both current and projected contracts.

27 1. Other non-current non-financial assets

As at
31 December 2018

(restated figures)

As at

31 December 2019

Prepayments for assets under construction and intangible assets

. ; 79 296 101 755
including:
related to project realization: Construction of 910 MW Power Unit in 74 774 98 114
Jaworzno
Prepayments for debt charges 10 767 14 307
Contract acquisition costs and costs of discounts 3365 9 641
Other prepayments 58 860 42 348
Total 152 288 168 051
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27.2. Other current non-financial assets
As at As at

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

(restated figures)
Costs settled over time 87 416 50 421
IT, telecom and postal services 24 449 21 062
Property and tort insurance 45 222 8012
Contract acquisition costs and costs of discounts 8 399 7632
Prepayments for debt charges 3796 3414
Other prepayments 5550 10 301
Other current non-financial assets 12 859 5208
Advance payments for deliveries 3 521 3218
Other current assets 9 338 1990
Total 100 275 55 629

Social Benefit Fund

The Group entities offset the Fund assets with their liabilities to the Fund as the assets are not classified as separate
assets of the Group. As at 31 December 2019, the surplus of assets over liabilities to the Social Benefits Fund was PLN
825 thousand (presented in the following table under other current assets). Presented below is an analysis of the fund.

As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Loans granted to employees 25 251 28 181

Cash 20 861 17 364

Other Fund assets and liabilities (3511) (3209)

Social Fund liabilities (41 776) (42 333)
Net balance 825 3
Transfers made to the Social Fund during the period (59 217) (55 101)

28. Inventories

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. CO, emission allowances purchased for resale and
generation of profit in the short term due to volatility of market prices are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Inventory releases are measured using the weighted average method, except for energy certificates of origin and CO, emission
allowances, whose releases are measured using the FIFO method.

The Group's inventories include mainly the inventory of fuels.
PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

Measurement of inventories requires estimation of net realizable value. Net realizable value is the difference between the estimated
sale price in the ordinary course of business and the estimated costs of completion with the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. Fair value measurement of the CO, emission allowances held as described above is based on prices quoted on active markets.
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As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Gross value
Coal, of which: 557 472 377 119
Raw materials 253 514 188 876
Semi-finished goods and work-in-progress 295 471 184 833
CO, emission allowances - 2762
Other inventories 137 906 138 920
Total 695 378 518 801
Measurement to fair value
CO, emission allowances - 46
Measurement to net realisable value
Other inventories (11 226) (9 046)
Total (11 226) (9 000)
Fair value
CO, emission allowances - 2808
Net realisable value
Coal, of which: 557 472 377 119
Raw materials 253 514 188 876
Semi-finished goods and work-in-progress 295 471 184 833
Other inventories 126 680 129 874
Total 684 152 509 801
29. Receivables from buyers

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Receivables from buyers include amounts due which have been billed and those which have been recognized on account of revenue
but have not been measured and billed due to the buyer settlement system used. The accounting policy applicable to accrued
revenue has been presented in Note 11.

Receivables from buyers are measured at the originally billed amounts (including the effect of discounting, if material), less
allowances/write-downs.

Impairment allowances are recognized for both overdue and current receivables based on probability-weighted expected credit loss
to be incurred should any of the following events occur:

e  material payment delay;

e adebtoris put in liquidation, declared bankrupt or undergoes restructuring procedures;

e receivables are claimed at administrative or common court, or undergo enforcement.

Amounts receivable from buyers are divided into the portfolios of strategic and other counterparties.

For the portfolio of strategic counterparties, the risk of insolvency on the part of strategic counterparties is assessed based on ratings
assigned to the counterparties using an internal scoring model and appropriately restated to account for the probability of default.
The expected credit loss, in line with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, is calculated based on the estimated potential recoveries from
security interests.

It is expected that the historical performance information concerning receivables from other counterparties may reflect the credit risk
that will be faced in future periods. The expected credit losses for this group of counterparties have been estimated through an
analysis of ageing of receivables and percentage ratios assigned to individual ranges and groups (such as receivables claimed at
court, receivables from counterparties in bankruptcy) which help estimate the value of receivables from buyers which are not
expected to be paid.

In order to consider future factors, the Company adjusts the historical probability of default using the probability level implied by
quotings of annual Credit Default Swap (CDS) instruments for each rating.

Impairment of receivables is recognized in classes of expenses corresponding to each asset’s function, i.e. as operating or financial
expenses, depending on the related type of amount receivable.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

Under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the Group estimates impairment losses on receivables from buyers attributable to expected
credit losses. The allowance calculation methodology is presented above.
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As at As at

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Value of items before allowance/write-down
Receivables from buyers 1616 813 1 586 686
Receivables from buyers — additional assessment of revenue from sales

of electricity and distribution services CEEE 657 352

Receivables claimed at court 213 900 207 121
Total 2520 108 2 451 159
Allowance/write-down

Receivables from buyers (39 655) (38 833)

Receivables claimed at court (189 707) (182 926)
Total (229 362) (221 759)
Value of item net of allowance (carrying amount)

Receivables from buyers 1577 158 1547 853

Receivables from buyers — additional assessment of revenue from sales

of electricity and dist?/ibution services Gl el 657 352

Receivables claimed at court 24 193 24 195
Total, of which: 2290 746 2229 400

Current 2290 746 2229 363

According to the described above model the Group estimates allowances for expected credit losses.

Aging of receivables from buyers as at 31 December 2019

Past due

I3 ES3ET: <30days  30-90 days 90-180 days 180-360 days > 360 days ekl
Value of item before allowance/write-down 2 039 689 216 273 33 588 18 031 31981 180 546 2 520 108
Percentage of allowance/write-down 0% 3% 31% 85% 98% 87% -
Allowance/write-down (9 541) (6 252) (10 534) (15 329) (31.356) (156 350) (229 362)
Net Value 2030 148 210 021 23 054 2702 625 24 196 2290 746
Aging of receivables from buyers as at 31 December 2018
Past due
Bctpastans <30days  30-90 days 90-180 days 180-360 days > 360 days ekl
Value of item before allowance/write-down 2016 850 174 830 34120 17 093 24 989 183 277 2451159
Percentage of allowance/write-down 1% 3% 24% 76% 94% 87% -
Allowance/write-down (12 292) (5008) (8 255) (12.980) (23 564) (159 660) (221 759)
Net Value 2004 558 169 822 25 865 4113 1425 23 617 2229 400

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any material non-collectible items not covered with an
allowance.

Impairment allowances on receivables from buyers

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Opening balance (221 759) (193 367)
Effects of implementing IFRS 9 - (31 471)
Restated opening balance (221 759) (224 838)
Recognised (13 931) (3 815)
Utilized 5101 2 553
Reversed 1221 2539
Other movements 6 1802
Closing balance (229 362) (221 759)

30. Income tax receivables

Income tax receivables of PLN 255 702 thousand include mostly receivables of the Tax Capital Group in the amount of
PLN 255 459 thousand. The amount due relates entirely to 2019 and constitutes a surplus of advance income tax
payments of PLN 442 514 thousand over the tax charge of the Tax Capital Group in the amount of PLN 187 055
thousand.

The articles of association of the Tax Capital Group for the years 2018-2020 were registered on 30 October 2017.
Pursuant to the previous agreement, TGC was registered for the period of three fiscal years from 2015 to 2017.
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Since 1 January 2018 the Tax Capital Group has comprised the following companies: TAURON Polska Energia S.A.,
TAURON Wytwarzanie S.A., TAURON Dystrybucja S.A., TAURON Ciepto Sp. z 0.0., TAURON Sprzedaz Sp. z o.0.,
TAURON Sprzedaz GZE Sp. z o0.0., TAURON Obstuga Klienta Sp. z 0.0., TAURON Ekoenergia Sp. z 0.0., TAURON
Wydobycie S.A. and Kopalnia Wapienia Czatkowice Sp. z o0.0.

31. Receivables arising from other taxes and charges

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Settlements due to other taxes and charges presented in the statement of financial position comprise:
* VAT and excise duty settlements;
J PIT and social insurance;
O Environmental fees and other regulatory settlements.

As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
VAT receivables 362 745 165 310
Excise duty receivables 10 974 39764
Other 10 995 4672
Total 384 714 209 746

The increase in VAT amounts due relates mainly to companies in the Generation segment and results from the following:

e« amendments to the rules on taxation of the acquisition of CO2 emission allowances. Under the amended regulations,
as of November 2019, the purchase of CO2 emission allowances was subject to a 23% VAT rate, which resulted in an
increase in the tax payable in manufacturing companies,

e increased investment purchases and fuel purchases in connection with the test start-up of the 910 MW unit.
32. Cash and cash equivalents

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Cash and cash equivalents include in particular cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with original maturity of up to three
months.

Cash is recognized at face value. At the end of the reporting period, the face value of cash deposited in bank accounts includes also
accrued bank interest or interest calculated by the entity itself.

Unpaid overdraft facilities that constitute an integral part of cash management are classified as "Cash and cash equivalents" for the
purposes of statement of cash flows. In the statement of financial position, such facilities are presented in debt liabilities.

As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Cash at bank and in hand 1231112 602 592
Short-term deposits (up to 3 months) 4 898 178 132
Other 1942 43 000
Totfal cas_h and f:a_:sh equivallents presented in the statement 1237 952 823 724
of financial position, of which :

restricted cash, including: 729 450 231987

collateral of settlements with Izba Rozliczeniowa Gietd Towarowych S.A. 599 059 84 431

bank accounts related to subsidies received 71 606 80 060

cash on VAT bank accounts (split payment) 58 428 67 149
Bank overdraft (23 339) (767)
Cash pool (10 973) (14 690)
Foreign exchange (39) (295)
Total cash and cash equivalents presented 1203 601 807 972

in the statement of cash flows

The difference between the balance of cash presented in the statement of financial position and the one in the statement
of cash flows results from overdrafts, cash pool loans granted by entities not subject to consolidation due to the overall
immateriality and exchange gains and losses on measurement of cash on currency accounts.

53

This is a translation of the document originally issued and signed in Polish



TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU
(in PLN thousand)

33. Equity

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Issued capital

Issued capital is recognized at the amount determined in the articles of association of the Parent and recorded in the court register.
Reserve capital

Supplementary capital is created, to which at least 8% of profit for each financial year is appropriated in order to offset the loss of the
joint stock company, until its amount equals at least one-third of the share capital.

Revaluation reserve from valuation of hedging instruments

Revaluation reserve arising from hedging instruments is related to the measurement of Interest Rate Swaps hedging interest rate risk
of debt. Its amount is determined as the fair value of the effective portion of cash flow hedging instruments, including deferred tax.

Exchange differences from translation of a foreign entities

Individual items of the financial statements of foreign operations (TAURON Czech Energy s.r.o. and TAURON Sweden Energy AB
(publ) - until the date of acquasition by the Company Finanse Grupa TAURON Sp. z 0.0) have been translated to the presentation
currency in the following manner:

* assets and liabilities have been translated to the presentation currency at the average exchange rate published by the National
Bank of Poland as at the end of the reporting period;

* revenue and expenses have been translated at the average exchange rate of the National Bank of Poland published at the
transaction date or the average exchange rate for a given period, if no significant exchange rate fluctuations occurred in the
period;

Exchange differences from translation have been recognized in other comprehensive income.

Retained earnings / (accumulated losses)
Retained earnings / (accumulated losses) include:

* prior years' retained earnings/uncovered losses;

* reserve and supplementary capital of subsidiaries that occurred after the control assuming date;

* acquisition/business combination of entities being under common control, accounted for using the pooling of interests method;

* actuarial gains and losses regarding provisions for post-employment benefits recognized through other comprehensive income;

* Impact of adjustments related to the application of IFRS, such as, among others, differences from revaluation of fixed assets to
fair value as deemed cost at the date of adoption of IFRS or application of exemptions from IFRS 1 Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards for the first time.

Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interests are a separate equity item. Its initial value is determined as the corresponding fair value of net assets or as
fair value of non-controlling interests as at the control commencement date and increased/decreased by respective changes in net
assets of the subsidiaries. Decisions regarding initial measurement of non-controlling interests are made on a case-by-case basis.

33.1. Issued capital

Issued capital as at 31 December 2019

Nominal value of one Value of classl/issue at

Type of shares Number of shares share (in PLN) nominal value Method of payment
AA bearer shares 1589 438 762 5 7947 194 cash/in-kind
contribution
BB registered shares 163 110 632 D) 815553  in-kind contribution
Total 1 752 549 394 8762 747

Shareholding structure as at 31 December 2019 (to the best of the Company's knowledge)

Nominal value of Percentage of share  Percentage of total

Shareholder Number of shares .
shares capital vote

State Treasury 526 848 384 2 634 242 30.06% 30.06%

KGHM Polska Miedz S.A. 182 110 566 910 553 10.39% 10.39%

Nationale - Nederlanden Otwarty Fundusz 88 742 929 443715 5.06% 5.06%
Emerytalny

Other shareholders 954 847 515 4774 237 54.49% 54.49%

Total 1752 549 394 8762 747 100% 100%
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As at 31 December 2019, the value of issued capital, the number of shares, the nominal value of shares and the
shareholding  structure, to the best of the Company's knowledge, had not changed since
31 December 2018.

33.2. Shareholder rights

The voting rights of the shareholders holding more than 10% of the total votes in the Company have been limited in such
a manner that none of them is entitled to exercise the right to more than 10% of votes at the General Shareholders'
Meeting of the Company. The limitation mentioned above does not apply to the State Treasury and State Treasury
owned companies in the period when the State Treasury and State Treasury owned companies hold shares in the
Company entitling to not less than 25% of the total votes in the Company.

Detailed information regarding the voting right limitations is presented in Note 9.6. Management Board's reports on the
activities of TAURON Polska Energia S.A. and of the TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group for the financial year
2019.

33.3. Reserve capital

On 8 May 2019, the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company adopted a resolution on covering the
Company's net loss for the financial year 2018 in the amount of PLN 1 709 853 thousand from the Company's reserve
capital.

33.4. Retained earnings and accumulated losses and restrictions on dividend payment

Prior year profit/loss arising from settlement of business combinations with subsidiaries and actuarial gains and losses
related to provisions for post-employment benefits recognized through other comprehensive income are not distributable.

As at 31 December 2019 and as at the date of approving these consolidated financial statements for publication no other
dividend restriction occurred.

33.5. Revaluation reserve from valuation of hedging instruments
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Opening balance 3371 23 051

Remeasurement of hedging instruments 15074 (24 290)

Remeasurement of hedging instruments charged to profit or loss 105 (7)

Deferred income tax (2 884) 4617
Closing balance 15 666 3371

The revaluation reserve from valuation of hedging instruments results from valuation of Interest Rate Swaps (IRS)
hedging the interest rate risk arising from debt, which has been discussed in more detail in Note 47.3 hereto.

As at 31 December 2019 the Company recognized PLN 15 666 thousand of revaluation reserve from valuation of
hedging instruments. It represents an asset arising from valuation of interest rate swaps (IRS) as at the end of the
reporting period, totaling PLN 19 462 thousand, adjusted by a portion of valuation relating to interest accrued on debt as
at the end of the reporting period, including deferred tax.

33.6. Non-controlling interest
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Opening balance 132 657 31 367
Effects of implementing IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 - 397
Restated opening balance 132 657 31764
Shareholder contributions related to the assumption of shares 771157 100 000
Share in subsidiaries’ net profit or loss (775) 2165
Dividends for non-controlling interests (1932) (879)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests by the Group and mandatory squeeze-out (442) (353)
Share in actuarial gains/(losses) related to provisions for 231) (40)
post-employment benefits
Closing balance 900 434 132 657

During the year ended 31 December 2019 the value of non-controlling interests increased as a result of the acquisition
by Fundusz Inwestycji Infrastrukturalnych - Kapitalowy Fundusz Inwestycyjny Zamkniety Aktywdw Niepublicznych and
PFR Inwestycje Fundusz Inwestycji Zamknietych of shares in the increased issued capital of the subsidiary Nowe
Jaworzno Grupa TAURON Sp. z o.0. for the total amount of PLN 780 000 thousand, which is described in detail in Note
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2.2 hereto. Condensed financial information of the subsidiary Nowe Jaworzno Grupa TAURON Sp. z 0.0. is presented in
the table below:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Total assets 6219 329 4944 164
Total liabilities 525173 257 198
Net loss (22 670) (11 655)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 149 993 207 584

34. Dividends paid

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
(1 932) (817)

Dividends paid by subsidiaries

In the year ended 31 December 2019 and in the year ended 31 December 2018 the Parent did not pay dividends.

35. Debt

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Debt comprises bank loans, borrowings, debt securities and lease liabilities.
e  Bank loans, borrowings, bonds issued

Initially, bank loans, borrowings, bonds issued are measured at fair value less transaction costs and discounts or premiums. After
initial recognition it is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

. Leases

An agreement or part of a lease agreement, or other agreement or part of an agreement of a similar nature, under which the right to
control the use of an asset (an underlying asset) for a given period is transferred in exchange for remuneration, is classified as a
lease. The lease liability is measured at the present value of the outstanding lease payments, discounted at the lease interest rate
specified in the agreement (if determinable) or the marginal interest rate. Lease payments included in the valuation of the lease
liability include:

- fixed lease payments less any applicable lease incentives,

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, valued initially using that index or rate at their starting date,
- the amounts expected to be paid by the lessee under the underlying asset's residual value guarantee,

- the exercise price of the call option, if it can be assumed that the lessee will exercise it,

- fines for termination of the lease.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

When measuring liabilities at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, the Group estimates future cash flows
considering all contractual terms of a given financial instrument, including the early repayment option. As at the reporting period end,
early buy-back of bonds was included in the measurement of liabilities arising from issue of hybrid bonds under agreements
concluded with the European Investment Bank and Bank Gospodarstwa Krajowego, in relation to the intention to buy-back the bonds
after the end of the first financing period.

In the case of a loan agreement defining the maximum term of individual credit tranches up to 1 year, where the financing available
under the agreement is revolving and the term of availability exceeds 1 year, the Group classifies the tranches according to the
intention and possibility of maintaining financing under the agreement, i.e. as long-term or short-term liabilities.

The marginal interest rate of lease is estimated as a weighted average cost of TAURON Group's debt adjusted for the individual
rating of the companies taking into account the division into lease periods.

As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Loans and borrowings 7 050 651 886 285
Bonds issued 6 257 022 10 077 067
Lease 1 006 603 25
Total 14 314 276 10 963 377
Non-current 11 830 183 8488 210
Current 2484 093 2 475 167

56

This is a translation of the document originally issued and signed in Polish



TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU

(in PLN thousand)

35.1. Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings taken out as at 31 December 2019

Value of loans and
borrowings as at the

of which maturing within (after the balance sheet date):

Currency In::::st balance sheet date
currency PLN Iersnsotnhtzz 3 3-12 months 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5years over 5 years
PLN floating 6313 602 6313 602 1617 085 503 014 4135 3191792 99 806 897 770
fixed 690 834 690 834 34 590 122114 156 704 108 082 196 712 72 632
Total PLN 7 004 436 7 004 436 1651 675 625128 160 839 3299 874 296 518 970 402
EUR floating 5304 22 585 22 585 - - - - -
Total EUR 5 304 22 585 22 585 - - - = =
usb floating 198 754 754 - - - - -
Total USD 198 754 754 - - - - -
Total 7027 775 1675014 625128 160 839 3299 874 296 518 970 402
Interest increasing carrying amount 22 876
Total 7 050 651

Loans and borrowings taken out as at 31 December 2018

Value of loans and
borrowings as at the

of which maturing within (after the balance sheet date):

Currency In:z::st balance sheet date
currency PLN Iersnsot:tz'; 3 3-12 months 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5years over 5 years
PLN floating 34 832 34 832 19 159 3183 4243 4135 4112 -
fixed 845 983 845 983 53 557 102 298 140 678 140 678 233 495 175 277
Total PLN 880 815 880 815 72716 105 481 144 921 144 813 237 607 175 277
usSD floating 204 767 767 - - - - -
Total USD 204 767 767 - - - - -
Total 881 582 73 483 105 481 144 921 144 813 237 607 175 277
Interest increasing carrying amount 4703
Total 886 285

The major liabilities due to loans and borrowings have been presented in the table below:

Loans/ L . As at As at
bormowings Borrowing institution Purpose Interest rate Maturity date 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
28.06.2020 * 1839 159 -
02.09.2020 * 151 376 -
10.09.2020 * 302 555 -
Redemption of bonds, investment 01.10.2020 * 604 070 -
Loans Consortium of banks expenditures and general expenses of Floating 14.10.2020 * 301714 -
the Group 31.01.2020 502 358 -
30.04.2020 502 330 -
28.02.2020 501 195 -
13.01.2020 600 868 -
Loans Bank Gqspodarstwa Groyp s c.apltal exper?dltures and Floating 20.12.2033 998 458 )
Krajowego refinancing of a portion of debt
Construction of a boiler fired with
biomass at Jaworzno Il Power Plant Fixed 15.12.2021 40 047 59 116
and renovation of a steam turbine
Construction and start-up of a co- Fixed 15.12.2021 57 204 84 613
generation unit at EC Bielsko Biata T
Loans European Investment Bank Mod ¢ d ¢ Fixed 15.06.2024 175 298 212 219
. tensi
odernization an . oy Om OTPOWET T e 15002004 89 820 107 353
Fixed 15.09.2024 112 661 134 738
Modernization and extension of power
grid and improvement of hydropower Fixed 15.03.2027 219415 252 637
plants
financing of CO, emission allowance,
Overld.raft Bank Go.spodarstwa electricity and gas transactions on EU Floating 31.12.2020 20 456 -
facility Krajowego
stock exchanges
Regional Fund Construction of renewable power unit at
Borrowings  for Environmental Protection p Floating 15.12.2022 12 000 16 000
Jaworzno |l Power Plant
and Water Management
Other loans and borrowings 19 577 19 609
Total 7 050 651 886 285
* Tranche classified as a long-term liability
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Pursuant to the provisions of the loan agreement of 19 June 2019 concluded with the bank consortium, the maximum
period for drawing individual credit tranches is 12 months. However, the financing available under the agreement is
renewable and the deadline for its availability is end 2022. Some of the tranches contracted as at 31 December 2019
have a 12-month maturity, falling in 2020. Due to the intention and ability to maintain financing under the said agreement
for a period exceeding 12 months from the balance sheet date with respect to credit tranches with a 12-month repayment
term, this liability is presented as a long-term liability. The remaining tranches with an original maturity of less than 1 year
are classified as current liabilities, according to their contractual maturity.

Changes in the balance of bank loans and borrowings, excluding interest increasing their carrying amount, in the year
ended 31 December 2019 and in the comparative period, have been presented below.

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Opening balance 881 582 1185 231
Effects of implementing IFRS 9 - (33 055)
Restated opening balance 881 582 1152 176
Movement in bank overdrafts and cash pool loans received 21453 (96 683)
Movement in other loans: 6 124 740 (173 911)
Repaid (1 367 360) (168 874)
Taken* 5646 173 293
Replacing bond issue scheme with loan arrangement* 1837 822 -
Forgiveness - (11 138)
Change in valuation 8 105 5 808
Closing balance 7027 775 881 582

* Inclusive of the borrowing costs

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group carried out the following transactions relating to bank loans and
borrowings (in nominal value), excluding overdraft facilities:

Year ended 31 December 2019

Lender Description
Drawdown Repayment
. Tranche 1 - replacement of bond issue scheme with credit 1839 600
Consortium of banks agreement
Drawdown of tranches 2-12 4 650 000 (1200 000)
Bank Gospodarstwa Krajowego Drawdown of tranches 1-4 (all available funding) 1000 000
Europejski Bank Inwestycyjny Repayment of capital instalments according to schedule (162 318)
Other borrowings (5042)
Total, including: 7 489 600 (1 367 360)
Cash flows 5150 000 (867 360)
Net settlement (without cash flow) 2 339 600 (500 000)

Loan agreement with a bank consortium (replacement of the bond issue scheme)

On 19 June 2019, a credit agreement was concluded for the amount of PLN 6 070 000 thousand, to which the Company
as the borrower and Bank Handlowy w Warszawie S.A., Santander Bank Polska S.A., CaixaBank S.A. (Joint Stock
Company) Branch in Poland, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Europe) S.A. Branch in Poland, ING Bank Slgski
S.A., mBank S.A., MUFG Bank (Europe) N.V., MUFG Bank (Europe) N.V. S.A. Branch in Poland and Powszechna Kasa
Oszczednosci Bank Polski S.A. as lenders.

The credit agreement essentially replaces the bond issue scheme up to PLN 6 270 000 thousand concluded on
24 November 2015, as amended, with banks that are parties to the credit agreement concluded on 19 June 2019 and
with BNP Paribas Bank Polska S.A., which will continue to finance the Company under the bond issue scheme.

The key financing parameters specified in the loan agreement, including the level of margin, the duration of financing and
the level of financial exposure of individual lenders do not change with respect to the bond issue scheme. The Company
has available financing under the credit agreement:

e until 31 December 2021 in the amount of PLN 6 070 000 thousand,
e until 31 December 2022 in the amount of PLN 5 820 000 thousand.

According to the agreement, the funds in the first place, i.e. the funds from the first credit tranche disbursed on 28 June
2019 were allocated for the redemption of bonds with a nominal value of PLN 1 839 600 thousand issued so far under
the bond issue scheme. The settlement was made in net amounts, i.e. without physical transfer of cash. Moreover, the
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financing is earmarked, among others, for the implementation of activities resulting from the update of strategic
directions, which are complementary to the Strategy of the TAURON Group for the years 2016-2025, assuming an
increased share of renewable sources in the generation assets of the TAURON Group.

By the end of 2019, the Company has released further tranches. As at 31 December 2019, the balance of liability at par
value under the agreement in question outstanding totalled PLN 5 289 600 thousand.

After the reporting period end, TAURON Polska Energia S.A. took further tranches under the loan agreement with a
consortium of banks dated 19 June 2019 and repaid part of the funds released. As at the date of approval for publication
of these consolidated financial statements, the total debt of the Company under the agreement amounts to PLN
4 989 600 thousand.

Concluding a loan agreement with Intesa Sanpaolo S.P.A.

On 19 December 2019, TAURON Polska Energia S.A. concluded with the bank Intesa Sanpaolo S.P.A., acting through
Intesa Sanpaolo S.P.A. S.A. Branch in Poland, a loan agreement for the amount of PLN 750 000 thousand, from which
funds may be used to cover the Group's investment expenditure, including, in particular, for:

e broadly understood renewable energy,
e distribution of electricity, including extension and modernisation of the network,
e refinancing of the existing financial debt of the Company,
provided that the financing in question will not be used to finance or refinance coal asset projects.

The loan will be repaid after five years from the date of the agreement. The interest rate will be calculated on the basis of
a variable interest rate (WIBOR) increased by the bank's margin.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not incur any debt under the said agreement.

After the reporting period, in January and February 2020, the Company launched all available financing.

Concluding a loan agreement with SMBC BANK EU AG and syndicated loan agreements

After the reporting period end, on 16 March 2020 TAURON Polska Energia S.A. concluded with SMC BANK EU AG loan
agreement for the amount of PLN 500 000 thousand, and on 25 March 2020 syndicated loan agreements concluded
with Banca IMI S.P.A., London Branch, Banca IMI S.A.P., Intesa Sanpaolo S.P.A. acting through intermediation of Intesa
Sanpaolo S.P.A. S.A. Branch in Poland and China Construction Bank (Europe) S.A. acting through intermediation of
China Construction Bank (Europe) S.A. Branch in Poland, which have been discussed in detail in Note 56 hereto.

Bank overdrafts

As at 31 December 2019 the balance of overdraft facilities amounted to 23 339 thousand (as at 31 December 2018 PLN
767 thouand). Available financing and the balance of bank overdrafts of TAURON Polska Energia S.A. as at individual
loan agreements are presented in Note 48.2 hereto.
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35.2. Bonds issued
Bonds issued as at 31 December 2019

of which maturing within
Bonds at L9 EBEEEDECBE D (after the balance sheet date):

Tranche/ nominal

Issuer Interest  Currency

Bank Maturity date

value in Interest Principal at
currency accrued amortised cost

up to1year 1-2years 2-5 years Over 5 years

Unsubordinated bonds

Bank Gospodarstwa g'::;:j"g'n PLN 800000  2021-2028 856 798 695 - 99 906 299 568 399 221
Krajowego
TAURON Polsk jowed WIBOR 6M 630000  2021-2029 657 629 711 - 69 980 209 914 349 817
'olska N
EncrgiaSA,  BNP Paribas Bank 18N, 3100  25.03.2020 24 3099 3099
Polska S A" based on PLN 6300  9.11.2020 27 6296 6296 - - -
o WIBOR 6M 51000  29.12.2020 13 50 966 50 966 - - -
Eurobonds fixed EUR 500000  5.07.2027 24 870 2 115 830 = = - 2115830
Finanse Grupa German market
TAURON " fixed EUR 168000  3.12.2029 2127 710 424 - - - 710 424
investors
Sp.zo.0.
Subordinated hybrid bonds
floating,
Ba"kK?;jzcz’gZ’S“”a basedon  PLN 400000  20.03.2031° 761 399 362 . . - 399362
TAURON Polska WIBOR 6M
Energia S.A. . Ivestment EUR 190000  16.12.2034° 1630 769 531 5 > 769 531 5
UIOPEER e eSIMENt fixed? PLN 400000  17.12.2030° 1243 394 658 g - = e
PLN 350000  19.12.2030° 922 345 320 - - - 345 320
- 33130 6 223 892 60 361 169886 1279013 4714632

"Bond Issue Scheme dated 24 November 2015.

2In relation to hybrid (subordinate) financing - bonds taken over by European Investment Bank - two periods occur. In the first period the interest rate is
fixed, while in the second period the interest rate is variable based on the base rate (EURIBOR/WIBOR) plus a fixed margin.

3 In the case of subordinated bonds, the maturity date shall take into account two financing periods, as referred to below. The maturity dates presented in
the table above are the final maturity dates resulting from the contract, after two financing periods. The valuation of bonds as at the balance sheet date
includes earlier redemption, due to the intention to redeem the bonds after the end of the first financing period. Aging includes an estimate of repayment
after the first financing period.

Bonds issued as at 31 December 2018

of which maturing within
Bonds at ASSthaiancelbestcat (after the balance sheet date):

Tranche/ nominal
Issuer Interest  Currency )
value in

Bank Maturity date

Interest Principal at
currency accrued amortised cost

upto1year 1-2years 2-5years Over 5 years

Unsubordinated bonds

Bank Gospodarstwa g;a;?gh oLN 1,000 000 2019-2028 1070 998 281 99 935 99 891 299 519 498 936
Krajowego WIBOR 6M 700 000 2020-2029 730 699 635 - 69 975 209 901 419 759
Banks (issue scheme f108ting. 400000  14.03.2019 566 400 000 400 000 - - -
TAURON Polska underwriters)’ based on PLN 200 000 9.11.2020 854 199 764 - 199 764
Energia S.A. WIBOR 6M 1600000  29.12.2020 387 1598 100 - 1598 100
Domestic investors floating,
TPEA1119 based on PLN 1750 000 4.11.2019 7555 1749400 1749400 - -
WIBOR 6M
Eurobonds fixed EUR 500 000 5.07.2027 25 181 2 134 826 - - - 2134826
Finanse Grupa German market
TAURON ; fixed EUR 168 000 3.12.2029 2009 717 050 - - - 717 050
Sp. z0.0. investors
Subordinated hybrid bonds
EUR 190000  16.12.2034° 1646 790 136 - - - 790 136
T’::"zg?; z‘f_ka E”r°pea;;;'xes‘mem fixed? PLN 400000  17.12.2030° 1243 398 781 - - - 398781
PLN 350000  19.12.2030° 922 348 931 - - - 348 931
- 42163 10034904 2249335 1967 730 509 420 5308 419

"Bond Issue Scheme dated 24 November 2015.

2In relation to hybrid (subordinate) financing - bonds taken over by European Investment Bank - two periods occur. In the first period the interest rate is
fixed, while in the second period the interest rate is variable based on the base rate (EURIBOR/WIBOR) plus a fixed margin.

3 In the case of subordinated bonds, the maturity date shall take into account two financing periods, as referred to below. The maturity dates presented in
the table above are the final maturity dates resulting from the contract, after two financing periods. The valuation of bonds as at the balance sheet date
includes earlier redemption, due to the intention to redeem the bonds after the end of the first financing period. Aging includes an estimate of repayment
after the first financing period.

The bonds issued by the Company are unsecured, coupon bonds. They were issued at the nominal value, except for
Eurobonds which were issued at the issue price accounting for 99.438% of the nominal value.

The Eurobonds have been admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange. They were rated “BBB” by the Fitch rating
agency.

Bonds subscribed for by the European Investment Bank are subordinated, which means that they have priority interest
only over the liabilities to the Company’s shareholders in the event of the issuer’s bankruptcy or liquidation. This in turn
has a positive effect on the Company’s financial stability, since the bonds are excluded from the net debt / EBITDA
calculation, a covenant underlying domestic funding arrangements concluded by the Company. Additionally, 50% of
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the subordinated bond amount has been classified by the rating agency as equity in the rating model, which has had
a positive effect on the rating of the TAURON Group.

Two financing periods for bonds subscribed for by the European Investment Bank. In the first period early redemption of
bonds by the Company (non-call) and early sales of bonds by EIB to third parties are not possible (in both cases, unless
so provided in the subscription agreement). In this period, the interest rate is fixed, while after the non-call period, it is
floating and is linked to the base rate (WIBOR for bonds issued in PLN and EURIBOR for bonds issued in EUR)
increased by an agreed margin. The redemption date for bonds issued in PLN is 12 years of the issue date, i.e. 17 and
19 December 2030 and, pursuant to the rules of hybrid financing, the first financing period is 7 years and the next —
5 years. The redemption date for bonds issued in EUR is 18 years of the issue date, i.e. 16 December 2034 and,
pursuant to the rules of hybrid financing, the first financing period is eight years and the next — 10 years.

Bonds issued under the arrangement of 6 September 2017 concluded with Bank Gospodarstwa Krajowego with the par
value of PLN 400 000 thousand are also subordinated. In this case also two period are distinguished. In the first period
of seven years early redemption of bonds by the Company (non-call) and early sales of bonds by BGK to third parties are
not possible (in both cases, unless so provided in the documentation). The interest rate is floating and is linked to 6M
WIBOR increased by an agreed margin and in the period following the 7 years the margin is additionally increased.

Changes in the balance of bonds, excluding interest which increase their carrying amount

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Opening balance 10 034 904 8 599 655
Issue* 499 312 1347 943
Redemption (2 420 000) -
Replacing bond issue scheme with loan arrangement (1 839 600) -
Change in valuation (50 724) 87 306
Closing balance 6 223 892 10 034 904

* Costs of issue have been included.

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company carried out the following bond issue and redemption transactions:

Year ended
31D ber 2019
Date of issue Agreement/ Scheme Description SECMBEL
Par value of .

. Redemption

issue
14.03.2019 Bond Issue Scheme dated Redemption of bonds according to the maturity date - (400 000)
25.03.2019 24 November 2015 Issue of bonds maturing on 25 March 2020 100 000 =
29032019 Subordinated bonds, contract with | .\ o ¢, 0046 maturing on 29 March 2031 400 000 -

BGK dated 6 September 2017

Premature redemption of bonds with the following par value:
- PLN 100 000 thousand and initial maturity date of 20 December
2019;
- PLN 100 000 thousand and initial maturity date of 20 December

Agreement concluded with BGK  2020;

21.06.2019 on 31 July 2013 - PLN 70 000 thousand and initial maturity date of 20 December 2020. . (L)

The redemption was financed with funds originating from the loan
contracted on 21 June 2019 from Bank Gospodarstwa Krajowego
pursuant to an arrangement of 19 December 2018.

Bond Issue Scheme dated Redemption of bonds assumed by bondholders being a party to the :
28.06.2019 24 November 2015 loan agreement (offset). (] )
04.11.2019 Market Scheme TPEA1119 Redemption of bonds according to the maturity date (1 750 000)
Total 500 000 (4 259 600)

Replacement of the bond issue scheme by credit agreement

On 19 June 2019, aloan arrangement was concluded for PLN 6 070 000 thousand, described in detail in Note 35.1
hereto.

This arrangement has replaced the bond issue scheme up to PLN 6 270 000 thousand, concluded on 24 November 2015
(with subsequent amendments) with banks being a party to a loan arrangement concluded on 19 June 2019 and with
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BNP Paribas Bank Polska S.A., which shall continue the provision of funding for the Company under the bond scheme,
maintaining its exposure arising from the bonds assumed to date, with the redemption date as set in the issue terms
falling at the end of 2020 at the latest.

Under the arrangement, the first portion of the funds, i.e. the first loan tranche of 28 June 2019, was used to redeem
the bonds with the par value of PLN 1 839 600 thousand, issued to date under the bond issue scheme and assumed by
the banks acting as a party to the loan arrangement. The settlement was performed in net amounts, i.e. without actual
cash transfer.

Following the conclusion of theloan arrangement, the obligation of the banks to assume the bonds issued by
the Company was canceled. Thus, the Company shall not issue any new bonds under the scheme.

Establishment of bond issue scheme

After the reporting period end, on 6 February 2020, TAURON Polska Energia S.A. concluded a programme agreement
with Santander Bank Polska S.A. under which a bond issue scheme was established (the “Scheme"), as described in
detail in Note 56 hereto.

35.3. Debt agreement covenants

The agreements signed by the Company with the banks include legal and financial covenants which are commonly used
in such transactions. The key covenant is the net debt to EBITDA ratio (for domestic long-term loans agreements and
domestic bond issue schemes) which sets the debt less cash in relation to generated EBITDA. The maximum
permissible value of the net debt/EBITDA ratio is 3.5 Net debt/EBITDA ratio is calculated on the basis of consolidated
data.

As at 31 December 2019, the net debt/EBITDA ratio, being a covenant in the national long-term loan agreements and
national bond issue schemes in force as at 31 December 2019, was 2.81 thus, the covenant was not exceeded.

In November 2019, the Company redeemed TPEA1119 bonds, whose terms of issue defined an acceptable net
debt/EBITDA ratio of 3.0x with a slightly different definition of this covenant. The main difference compared to the
definitions contained in the applicable financing agreements, the terms and conditions of issue of TPEA1119 included a
definition of the ratio including in the Group's debt the liabilities resulting from subordinated bonds issued and the impact
of IFRS 16 Leases.

In November 2019, the Company redeemed TPEA1119 bonds, whose terms of issue defined an acceptable net
debt/EBITDA ratio of 3.0x with a slightly different definition of this covenant. The main difference compared to the
definitions contained in the applicable financing agreements, the terms and conditions of issue of TPEA1119 included a
definition of the ratio including in the Group's debt the liabilities resulting from subordinated bonds issued and the impact
of IFRS 16 Leases.

As at 30 June 2019, the net debt/EBITDA ratio calculated in line with the definition included in the issue terms regarding
TPEA1119 series bearer bonds issued on 4 November 2014 for the total amount of PLN 1 750 000 thousand reached
the level of 3.04, thus exceeding the maximum permissible level of 3.0 as determined in the issue terms regarding
TPEA1119 series. This event could provide the basis to demand early buyback of the TPEA1119 series bonds, provided
the bondholders’ meeting approves such an action. Until the redemption date of TPEA1119 series bonds, which took
place on 4 November 2019, there was no demand for early redemption of the bonds by the bondholders. The fact that
the net debt/EBITDA ratio (calculated in line with the definition included in the TPEA1119 series issue terms) exceeded
3.0 did not resulted and does not result in a breach of other financing agreements concluded by the Company, nor does
it bring any other adverse effects related to these agreements.

Other terms and conditions of financing agreements also does not result in breach.

35.4. Lease liabilities

In connection with the come into force of IFRS 16 Leases, as at 1 January 2019, the Company recognised a lease
liability in the amount of PLN 918 115 thousand, as described in detail in Note 8.1 hereto.

As at 31 December 2019 the Company had a lease liability in the amount of PLN 1 006 603 thousand. The liability
concerns primarily to the right of perpetual usufruct of land, agreements for the occupation of the road lane, agreements
for the lease and tenancy of land, easement of transmission and lease of office and warehouse premises.
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Ageing of the lease liability as at 31 December 2019

As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Within 1 year 110 893 2

Within 1 to 5 years 309 789 8

Within 5 to 10 years 298 093 10

Within 10 to 20 years 500 368 8

More than 20 years 708 324 -
Gross lease liabilities 1927 467 28

Discount (920 864) (3)
Present value of lease payments 1006 603 25

Lease agreements that do not meet the conditions for recognition as a finance lease as

defined in the financing agreements ILEIGES )
Lease contracts included in the covenant calculation (as defined in financing contracts) - 25

The undiscounted and present value of lease payments in the table above was presented as at 31 December 2019 in
accordance with IFRS 16 Leases and as at 31 December 2018 in accordance with IAS 17 Leases.

The Group decided to apply IFRS 16 Leases with effect from 1 January 2019. The Group decided not to restate the
comparative information, as permitted by the Standard. The data as at 31 December 2018 have been presented based
on IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease and SIC 15 Operating Lease -
Incentives.

36. Provisions for employee benefits

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
In accordance with compensation policies, employees of the Group companies are entitled to the following post-employment benefits:

* retirement and disability benefits - paid on a one-off basis, when an employee retires or is vested with the right to receive disability
benefits;

* death benefits;

¢ cash equivalent resulting from special tariff for energy sector employees;

* benefits from the Company's Social Benefit Fund.

The above provisions are included in the post-employment defined benefit plans.

Jubilee bonuses are paid to employees of Group companies after a specified number of years of service.

At the end of the reporting period the present value of provisions for post-employment benefits and provisions for jubilee benefits is
calculated by an independent actuary using actuarial methods. The provisions are calculated on a case-by-case basis for each
employee. The accrued liabilities are equal to discounted future payments, including employee turnover, and pertain to the time
remaining until the end of the reporting period. Demographic and employee turnover data are based on historical information.

Actuarial gains and losses on measurement of liabilities arising from post-employment benefits are recognized in whole in other
comprehensive income (with the accumulated amount recognized in retained earnings), while actuarial gains and losses on jubilee
bonuses are recognized in profit or loss.

Other increases and decreases in provisions are charged to operating expenses in the case of employees, to other operating
expenses/revenue in the case of pensioners and individuals entitled to disability allowances and to finance costs in the portion
pertaining to interest that constitutes the unwinding of discount.

In accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits the Group also recognizes provisions for termination benefits under voluntary
redundancy schemes. The benefits are measured based on the expected number of employees willing to accept the employment
termination offer and the estimated benefit amount.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

Provisions for post-employment benefits and jubilee bonuses have been estimated using actuarial methods. Key actuarial
assumptions made as at the end of the reporting period for provision calculation purposes:

Discount rate (%) 2.10% 3.00%
Estimated inflation rate (%) 2.50% 2.50%
Employee rotation rate (%) 0.93% - 8.98% 1.13% - 8.69%
Estimated salary increase rate (%) 2.50%* 2.50%
Estimated electricity price increase rate (%) 3.50% 3.50%
Estimated increase rate for contribution to the Social Fund (%) 3.50% 3.50%
Remaining average employment period 12.18 - 22.67 11.06 — 20.67

* Remuneration growth rate 2.5% since 2021. In 2020, the adopted remuneration growth rate for some companies differs from that adopted for the following years.
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As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Provision for post-employment benefits and jubilee 1397 489 1188 829
bonuses
Provision for em.ployment termination benefits and other provisions for 34 409 42 649
employee benefits

Total 1431 898 1231478
Non-current 1313 480 1114 191
Current 118 418 117 287

36.1. Provisions for post-employment benefits and jubilee bonuses

Change in provisions for employee benefits for the year ended 31 December 2019

Provision for

retirement, disability Em'p!oyee Social Fund Jubilee bonuses Provisions,

and similar benefits electricity rates total
Opening balance 331 270 370 267 91720 395 572 1188 829
Current service costs 16 501 9 066 2736 22734 51037
Actuarial gains and losses, of which: 42 973 71633 25714 66 773 207 093
arising from changes in financial assumptions 40 623 60 007 16 016 37 262 153 908
arising from changes in demographic assumptions 4843 7 097 1892 4983 18 815
arising from other changes (2 493) 4529 7 806 24 528 34 370
Benefits paid (21 299) (11 524) (3 325) (46 070) (82 218)
Past service costs 56 - - - 56
Interest expense 8 922 10 712 2 565 10 493 32692
Closing balance 378 423 450 154 119 410 449 502 1397 489
Non-current 338410 436 769 115928 403 437 1294 544
Current 40013 13 385 3482 46 065 102 945

Change in provisions for employee benefits for the year ended 31 December 2018

Provision for

Em.pl.oyee Social Fund Jubilee bonuses ALCHE RN
electricity rates total

retirement, disability
and similar benefits

Opening balance 321 894 530 215 106 321 510 678 1469 108
Current service costs 16 273 9207 2735 22 342 50 557
Actuarial gains and losses, of which: 5961 8 297 572 19 068 33898

arising from changes in financial assumptions 13 - - 10 23

arising from other changes 5948 8 297 572 19 058 33875
Benefits paid (21 867) (12 242) (3237) (45 486) (82 832)
Past service costs 217 (176 322) (17 332) (121 859) (315 296)
Interest expense 8 792 11112 2661 10 829 33 394
Closing balance 331270 370 267 91720 395 572 1188 829
Non-current 297 363 357 052 88 587 349732 1092 734
Current 33907 13215 3133 45 840 96 095

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group noted a significant increase in actuarial provisions due to a change
in actuarial assumptions in the amount of PLN 207 093 thousand, mainly due to a decrease in the discount rate used in
the calculation, of which PLN 66 773 thousand caused an increase in the Group’s operating expenses, and PLN 140 320
thousand was presented in other comprehensive income.

The past service costs, which decreased provisions in the year ended 31 December 2018 in the amount of PLN 315 296
thousand, relate mainly to the release of provisions for employee tariffs and the Company Social Benefits Fund in the
total amount of PLN 194 209 thousand and provisions for jubilee bonuses in the amount of PLN 121 172 thousand (at
the same time, compensation of PLN 79 316 thousand was paid to employees, which increased the Group's operating
costs).

Sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2019 the Group analyzed sensitivity of measurement results to changes in the financial discounting
rates and changes in the planned increases in the base amounts in the range of -0.5 p.p./+0.5 p.p.
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The table below presents the carrying amounts of individual provisions and provisions calculated based on the changed
assumptions and how these carrying amounts would change with different assumptions applied:

Carrying amount Financial discount rate Planned base increases

Provision title as at

31 December 2018 AU [P +0.5 p.p. -0.5 p.p. +0.5 p.p.

balance deviation balance deviation balance deviation balance deviation

Provision for retirement, disability and similar benefits 378 423 396 532 18 109 361623 (16 800) 362 327 (16 096) 395 566

Employee electricity rates 450 154 489 805 39 651 415 200 (34 954) 415 453 (34 701) 489 069 38915

Costs of appropriation to Social Benefits Fund 119 410 130 001 10 591 110 079 (9331) 110 147 (9 263) 129 804 10 394

Jubilee bonuses 449 502 466 184 16 682 433 832 (15 670) 437 449 (12 053) 462 194 12 692
Total 1482 522 85033 1320734 (76 755) 1325376 (72113) 1476 633 79 144

effect on profit/loss 16 682 (15 670) (12 053) 12 692

effect on other comprehensive income 68 351 (61 085) (60 060) 66 452

The Group classifies provisions as current and non-current based on estimates regarding distribution of payments over
time, prepared with the use of actuarial methods.

Provisions for employee benefits by maturity

Retirement, disability and

o Employee electricity rates Social Fund Jubilee bonuses Provisions, total
similar benefits
2019 40013 13 385 3482 46 065 102 945
2020 22 597 14 208 3767 41 379 81951
2021 25823 14 355 3828 37 349 81 355
2022 20932 14 542 3905 35 391 74770
2023 20 675 14 742 3979 33278 72 674
Other years 248 383 378 922 100 449 256 040 983 794
Total 378 423 450 154 119 410 449 502 1 397 489
36.2. Provisions for employment termination benefits and other provisions for employee benefits
Year ended 31 December 2019 Year ended 31 December 2018
Volunt:gl::‘i::dancy Other Voluntary redundancy schemes Other
Segment Segment provisions Segment Segment Other provisions
Generation Distribution Generation Distribution

Opening balance 26 891 5100 10 658 42 649 29 567 10 542 5706 - 45815
Recognition 23 044 - 10 877 33 921 10 198 5100 - 18 619 33917
Reversal (9 602) (4 087) - (13 689) (2 245) (7917) - (338) (10 500)
Utilization (5979) (1013) (8158) (15 150) (10 629) (2 625) (5 706) (7623) (26 583)
Other changes (13 322) - - (13322) - - - - -
Closing balance 21 032 - 13377 34409 26 891 5100 - 10 658 42 649
Non-current 13128 - 5808 18 936 21457 - - - 21457
Current 7 904 - 7 569 15 473 5434 5100 - 10 658 21192

37. Provisions for dismantling fixed assets, restoration of land and other provisions

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Provision for mine decommissioning costs

The provision for costs of dismantling fixed assets and restoration of land includes mainly the provision for costs of decommissioning
mines for which it is required that the assets be removed and the land restored to its original condition.

The provision is determined based on future decommissioning costs and costs of land restoration estimated by independent experts
taking into account the discounting effect and the amount determined in line with separate regulations of the Mine Decommissioning
Fund. The provision is estimated based on an analysis prepared using deposit exploitation projections (for mines) and a technical
and business analysis.

For coal mines a corresponding entry is made in line with IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment as a fixed asset of a mine and
changes in estimates are disclosed in line with IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities, i.e.
as adjustments to the provision and capitalized future mine decommissioning costs. The unwinding of discount is recognized in profit
or loss.

Provision for restoration of land and dismantling and removal of fixed assets

Based on estimates of future costs of dismantling prepared by independent experts, taking into account the discounting effect, the
Group establishes a provision for estimated costs of dismantling, to include those related to wind farms, but also for removing fixed
assets and restoring the land where the fixed assets were located if it has an obligation arising from the acquisition or use of
property, plant and equipment items.
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PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

The Group estimates the amount of provisions recognized based on assumptions, methodology and calculations appropriate for a
given type of provisions, evaluating the probability of spending funds that incorporate economic benefits and determining the reliable
level of funds necessary to perform the obligation. Provisions are recognized if probability of spending funds that incorporate
economic benefits is higher than 50%.

Year ended 31 December 2019 Year ended 31 December 2018
Provision for Provision for

Provision for mine  restoration of land . Provision for mine  restoration of land o

decommissioning and dismantling and AR S, decommissioning and dismantling and O,
costs removal of fixed et costs removal of fixed ot
assets assets
Opening balance 202 599 135 878 338 477 191 975 124 091 316 066
Business acquisition - 60 817 60 817 - - -
Interest cost (discounting) 6078 3651 9729 5759 3711 9470
Discount rate change 97 042 11 303 108 345 - - -
Recognition/(reversal), net 166 (25 522) (25 356) 4 865 10 232 15097
Utilisation - (5 367) (5 367) - (2 156) (2 156)
Other changes - 13 322 13 322 - - -
Closing balance 305 885 194 082 499 967 202 599 135 878 338 477
Non-current 305 493 164 142 469 635 202 599 102 378 304 977
Current 392 29 940 30 332 - 33 500 33 500
Other provisions, long-term portion 193 495 91 536
Total 663 130 396 513
371. Provision for mine decommissioning costs

The provision is recognized for mines included in the Group based on estimated costs of liquidating buildings and
reclaiming land after completion of the exploitation process. The provision for mine decommissioning costs includes the
balance of the Mine Decommissioning Fund ("MDF"), which is created under the Geological and Mining Law and the
related implementing provisions, by the Group's mining companies as a pre-determined ratio of the tax depreciation
charge on fixed assets or, for the exploitation fee, the equivalent of the charge transferred to a separate bank account.
Financial assets of the Fund are presented in the statement of financial position under non-current and current financial
assets, while the balance of the Fund is recognized under the provision for future costs of mine decommissioning.

The provision balance as at 31 December 2019 was PLN 305 885 thousand. As at 31 December 2019, as a result of a
change in the discount rate, the provision was updated, increasing it by PLN 97 042 thousand.

The following tables present the amount of appropriation to the Fund, the Fund's assets and the balance of liabilities
arising from future costs of mine decommissioning.

Mine Decommissioning Fund financial assets

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Assets as at 1 January 47 126 42 475
Contributions made 4 046 4150
Interest 888 2133
Use (1832) (1632)
Assets as at 31 December 50 228 47 126
Transfers made to the MDF in the period (4 193) (4 037)
Provision for mine decommissioning costs
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Mine Decommissioning Fund 53 962 50 931
Surplus of discounted estimated decommissioning costs 251923 151 668
Total 305 885 202 599
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37.2. Provision for restoration of land and dismantling and removal of fixed assets

Year ended 31 December 2019 Year ended 31 December 2018

Total provision Total provision

Provisions for Provisions for

Provision for . ) Provisions for for restoration, Provision for . L Provisions for for restoration,
. dismantling of . . dismantling of .
restoration of wind farm removal of disassembly and restoration of wind farm removal of disassembly and
ash landfill fixed assets removal of fixed ash landfill fixed assets removal of fixed
assets assets
assets assets
Opening balance 42 150 60 033 33 695 135 878 40 990 57 887 25214 124 091
Business acquisition - 60 817 - 60 817 - - - -
Interest cost (discounting) 942 1801 908 3651 1228 1736 747 3711
Discount rate adjustment - 10 209 1094 11 303 - - -
Recognition/(reversal), net (12 116) - (13 406) (25 522) (68) 410 9890 10 232
Utilisation - - (5 367) (5 367) - - (2 156) (2 156)
Other changes - - 13 322 13 322 - - - -
Closing balance 30 976 132 860 30 246 194 082 42 150 60 033 33 695 135878
Non-current 14 209 132 860 17 073 164 142 29208 60 033 13137 102 378
Current 16 767 - 13173 29 940 12 942 - 20 558 33500

The provision for restoration of land and dismantling and removal of fixed assets comprises the costs of liquidation of a
chimney in Elektrownia Jaworzno as well as cooling towers and a unit in Elektrownia tagisza.

38. Provisions for liabilities due to CO2 emission allowances and energy certificates

The table below presents the provision for liabilities due to CO2 emission allowances, described in detail in Note 38.1
hereto and the provision for obligation to submit energy certyficates, described in detail in Note 38.2 hereto.

Year ended 31 December 2019 Year ended 31 December 2018
Provisions for Provision for Provisions for Provision for
liabilities due to obligation to Provisions, liabilities due to obligation to Provisions,
CO, emission submit energy total CO, emission submit energy total
allowances certificates allowances certificates
Opening balance 111 406 384 066 495 472 324 937 624 009 948 946
Recognition 774 614 599 113 1373727 611668 676 682 1288 350
Reversal (75) (3 841) (3916) (81) (8 984) (9 065)
Utilisation (113 646) (373 404) (487 050) (825 118) (907 641) (1 732 759)
Closing balance 772 299 605 934 1378 233 111 406 384 066 495 472
38.1. Provision for CO2 emission liabilities

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The Group creates a provision for the cost of surrending the CO, emission allowances. The provision for liabilities arising from
emission of CO, covered by the emissions system is recognized only when the actual emission level in a given year indicates a
shortage of CO; emission allowances awarded to the Group free of charge, including allocation of free-of-charge CO, emission
allowances to facilities belonging to individual Generation companies. The Group companies included in the EU ETS are obliged to
surrender CO, emission allowances for each emitted ton of carbon dioxide by 30 April in the following year.

The provision is charged to operating expenses (taxes and charges) in the following amount:

* in the portion covered by allowances held at the end of the reporting period:
- nil - for allowances received free of charge;
- at cost - for allowances acquired;

* in the portion not covered by allowances held at the end of the reporting period:
- first, at the amount resulting from futures and forwards for the purchase of emission allowances with the intention to fulfil the
obligation for the current year;
- then at the market value of allowances necessary to fulfil the obligation at the end of the reporting period or in the amount of a
possible fine - in accordance with the intention concerning the method of fulfilling the obligation.

The condition for granting free CO, emission allowances to plants generating electricity between 2013 and 2020 is that they bear the
financial outlay for the implementation of the investment tasks submitted in the National Investment Plan (NIP).

At the surrendering date, CO, emission allowances classified as current intangible assets are derecognized in correspondence with
the provision for CO, emission liabilities.
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A change in provision for liability arising from gas emissions in the year ended 31 December 2019 allocated to
obligations pertaining to 2019 and 2018 is presented in the following table.

Fulfill the obligation to Fulfill the obligation to v
surrender fogr 2019 surrender f:’r 2018 He sl ke bk
Opening balance - 111 406 111 406
Recognition 772299 2315 774 614
Reversal - (75) (75)
Utilisation - (113 646) (113 646)
Closing balance 772 299 - 772 299
TAURON Wytwarzanie S.A.'s systems 668 343 - 668 343
TAURON Ciepto Sp. z 0.0.'s systems 103 956 - 103 956

The increase in the cost of creating a provision for CO2 emission liabilities in the year ended 31 December 2019 versus
comparable period is described in detail in Note 13 hereto.

38.2. Provision for the obligation to surrender energy certificates

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Energy companies trading in and selling electricity to end buyers are obliged to acquire property rights resulting from energy
certificates and to surrender them or to pay a substitution fee. If in a given financial year the volume share of electricity specified in
the energy certificates in the total annual sales of electricity to end buyers complies with limits provided for in regulations of the
Minister of Economy - it is considered that the obligation has been satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period the Group recognizes a provision for costs of surrendering energy certificates or paying the
substitution fee so as to fulfil the obligation.

The provision for the obligation to surrender energy certificates is recognized:

* in the portion corresponding to energy certificates held at the end of the reporting period - in the value of certificates held;

* in the portion not covered by energy certificates held at the end of the reporting period - first, at the amount resulting from futures
and forwards for the purchase of certificates with the intention to fulfil the obligation for the current year; then at the market value
of certificates necessary to fulfil the obligation at the end of the reporting period or at the amount of the substitution fee - in
accordance with the Group's intention concerning the method of fulfilling the obligation.

The provision is charged to operating expenses.

The provision is settled and the certificates are surrendered when the President of the Energy Regulatory Office redeems the
certificates or when the substitution fee has been paid.

As at 31 December 2019, the short-term provision for the obligation to surrender energy certificates for 2019 was
estimated at PLN 605 934 thousand, including: PLN 594 968 thousand is covered by certificates held as at the end of the
reporting period, PLN 10 966 thousand planned to be covered by the purchase of property rights.

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group fulfilled the obligation to surrender certificates of electricity generated
using renewable sources, in CHP units and energy efficiency certificates for 2018. Therefore, a provision of PLN 373 404
thousand was used.

The decrease in the cost of recognition the provision for the obligation to surrender energy certificates in period ended
on 31 December 2019 versus comparable period is mainly related to the fact that on the basis of the amended legal
regulations there was no obligation to create provisions for certificates of origin of energy from cogeneration (red, yellow
and violet certificates) in the current period. In the comparable period there was an obligation in this respect.

39. Other provisions

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Other provisions include:

* A provision for use of real estate without contract
The Group recognizes provisions for all claims filed by owners of real estate on which power or technology facilities, distribution
systems and heat installations are located in amounts of probable cost of claims due to land owners until the end of the reporting
period (with accrued interest, if it can be reliably estimated). The Group does not establish a provision for possible claims of
owners of land with unregulated status, which have not been lodged, including real and transmission easement. Recognition
and reversal of the provision is charged to other operating revenue or other operating expenses and interest accrued is charged
to finance income or finance costs.
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*  Provision for onerous contracts
If the Group is a party to a contract pursuant to which unavoidable costs of fulfilling the contractual obligations exceed the
expected contractual benefits, the present contractual obligation is recognized and measured as a provision. Unavoidable
contractual costs include at least the net cost of contract closing, corresponding to the lower of the contract performance cost
and the cost of all damages arising from a failure to perform the contract. Unavoidable obligation fulfilling costs are increased by
due interest if it can be reliably estimated.

* Other provisions relate to court cases, counterparty claims or other claims, possible fines resulting from administrative
proceedings carried out by the Energy Regulatory Office and the Office of Competition and Consumer Protection and tax
settlements.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

The Group estimates the amount of provisions recognized based on assumptions, methodology and calculations appropriate for a
given type of provisions, evaluating the probability of spending funds that incorporate economic benefits and determining the reliable
level of funds necessary to perform the obligation. Provisions are recognized if probability of spending funds that incorporate
economic benefits is higher than 50%.

Year ended 31 December 2019 Year ended 31 December 2018
Provision for Provision for
Provision for use  Provision for counterparty Provision for use  Provision for counterparty

; Provisions q
of real estate onerous claims, court total ‘ of real estate onerous claims, court

without contract contracts dispute and other without contract contracts dispute and other
provisions provisions

Provisions,
total

Opening balance 92110 213 996 311 295 617 401 - 296 313 388 343
Unwinding of discount - - 2425 2425 - - 3213 3213
Recognition/(reversal), net (3611) 298 057 82 305 376 751 937 213996 25880 240 813
Utilisation (429) (270 257) (11 608) (282 294) (857) - (14 111) (14 968)
Other movements - - 12 633 12 633 - - - -

Closing balance 88 070 241 796 397 050 726 916 92 110 213 996 311 295 617 401

Non-current - 48 815 144 680 193 495 - 11759 79777 91 536

Current 88 070 192 981 252 370 533 421 92 110 202 237 231518 525 865

Current portion of provisions for the costs of

disassembly of fixed assets and land 30 332 33 500

restoration and other provisions

Total 563 753 559 365

39.1. Provision for use of real estate without contract

The Group companies recognize provisions for all claims filed by the owners of the real estate on which distribution
systems and heat installations are located. As at 31 December 2019, the relevant provision amounted to PLN 88 070
thousand and was related to the following segments:

e Generation - PLN 50 702 thousand;
e Distribution - PLN 37 368 thousand.

In 2012, a third party lodged a claim against TAURON Ciepto S.A. (currently: TAURON Ciepto Sp. z 0.0.) related to
clarification of the legal status of the transmission equipment located on its property. The company has questioned both
the legitimacy of the claims and of the basis for offsetting their amounts against the current liabilities to the company
arising from heat supplies. Consequently, the company went to court to recover its current receivables from the debtor.
The amount of the potential claims of the aforesaid entity in respect of clarification of the legal status of the company's
transmission equipment will be reviewed in the course of the proceedings. With regard to the dispute, in light of the
adopted accounting policy, a provision has been recognized for the estimated cost of the above claim. Bearing in mind
the pending litigation, in accordance with IAS 37.92, the Group does not disclose all information regarding the above
issue as required by IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

39.2. Provisions for onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts related to the Act Amending the Excise Duty Act and Certain Other Acts
coming into effect

The Act on the amendment to the act on the excise tax and some other acts (“Act”) came into force on 28 December
2018. In accordance with the Act, in its version applicable as of 31 December 2018, energy companies (electric utilities)
dealing with electricity trading were obligated to apply in 2019 gross prices and fee rates not higher than the gross prices
and fee rates included in the tariff or electricity price list in force on 30 June 2018, taking into account the reduction of the
excise tax rate for electricity.
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Due to the Act coming into force the Group recognized a provision for onerous contracts in the consolidated financial
statements prepared as at 31 December 2018 in the amount of PLN 213 756 thousand. In particular, the reserve was
estimated with respect to the G tariff group customers, i.e. the difference between the sales price resulting from the tariff
in force for 2019 and the estimated electricity purchase price based on the expected volume for 2019.

As a result of applying the tariff from the previous year, in 2019, the TAURON Group fully realised a loss in connection
with energy supplies to the customers of tariff group G, therefore as at 31 December 2019 it fully used the provision for
onerous contracts created as at 31 December 2018 for this customer segment.

In addition, in connection with the come into force of the amended Act, as more described in detail in Note 12 hereto, in
2019, the Group created a provision for onerous contracts in amount of PLN 68 260 thousand in relation to the expected
volume of energy to be delivered in the period from July to December 2019 for end users belonging to the group: micro-
enterprises, small entrepreneurs, hospitals, public finance sector entities or other state organisational units without legal
personality, for which the price of 30 June 2018 applied in the second half of 2019, provided that a statement is made. As
at 31 December 2019, as a result of the realisation of sales losses for this group of recipients, this provision was also
fully utilized.

Provisions for onerous contracts in connection with the approval by the President of the Energy Regulatory
Office ("ERO President") tariffs for the sale of electricity

As at 31 December 2019 the Group created the provision for onerous contracts in amount of PLN 237 445 thousand (of
which PLN 225 686 thousand was charged to the costs of 2019). This provision relates primarily to households, including
customers using tariff prices approved by the President of the Energy Regulatory Office ("G ERO tariff") in the amount of
PLN 130 287 thousand and individual customers who have used the product price lists offered by the Company ("GD
price lists") in the amount of PLN 99 570 thousand.

The need to create the above reserve for the G URE tariff results from the adoption of the parameters specified in the
invitation of the President of the ERO to calculate the sales price for these customers for 2020, the approval of which in
December 2019 results in the impossibility of obtaining revenue from the sale of electricity in a value covering the costs
of conducting business in this respect.

The price level approved by the President of the ERO for tariff group G for 2020 was also an important reason for the
losses incurred on GD price lists for which the provision was created. Some product agreements in the household
segment tie the electricity rates to the price of the ERO G tariff, thus making it impossible to obtain revenue from sales in
an amount ensuring coverage of full variable costs of the business.

At the same time, on 7 January 2020, the subsidiary TAURON Sp. z 0.0. Sprzedaz submitted an application for the
approval of the change of the electricity tariff for the consumers of tariff G-groups for 2020, which is to transfer all justified
costs that were not accepted in the application approved in December 2019. As at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements for publication, the proceedings pending before the President of ERO in connection
with this application have not been completed.

Other provisions for onerous contracts

As at 31 December 2019, a provision was created for onerous contracts in the amount of PLN 4 213 thousand in
connection with the partial acceptance by the Court of Appeal in Warsaw of the request for security by ordering the
subsidiary Polska Energia - Pierwsza Kompania Handlowa Sp. z 0.0. to execute in full the provisions of the contracts
under the existing terms and conditions, in accordance with their contents, until the legal conclusion of the proceedings in
the action brought by Pekanino Wind Invest Sp. z 0.0. vs. Polska Energia - Pierwsza Kompania Handlowa Sp. z 0.0., as
further described in Note 50 hereto.

39.3. Provisions for counterparty claims, court disputes and other provisions

Material provisions recognized as other provisions have been discussed below:
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Operating As at As at
segment 31 Decembe 31 December 2018

The provision concerned the risk of ensuring the sustainability of projects required
under the contracts for co-financing the construction of a biomass-fired boiler in
Jaworzno Il Power Plant and the construction of an electricity generation installation

penalties fixed by Generation in the Renewable Energy Sources in Stalowa Wola. In the year ended 31 December ; 58 493

Provisions for

2019 the required shelf life for the installation expired and the final settlement and
closing of co-financing agreements took place. As a consequence, the established
collateral for due performance of contracts was released and the provision was fully
released.

the contracts

The provision relates to claims raised by contractors relating to the construction of
910 MW Block in Jaworzno. For additional, increased costs related toongoing
Generation contracts, in the year ended 31 December 2019 the company from the Generation 93 539 -
segment created a provision in the amount of PLN 93 539 thousand. The cost of
creating the provision was recognized for capital expenditures.

Provision for
counterparty claims

Provision for The provision relates to the risk of increased periodical fees for transmission

increased - easement for energy infrastructure located in the areas of forest districts of the

transmission Distribution Regional Directorate of State Forests in Wroctaw in connection with the change in the Cge28 68 900
easement charges nature of land from forest areas to land related to business activities.

Provision for a fine The provision was recognized due to the risk of violation of the Energy Law of 10 April

to the Energy Distribution 1997 by misleading the President of the Energy Regulatory Office, following his 6 000 6 000
Regulatory Office demand for information.

Provision for real Distribution Provision for the business risk regarding tax on real property classified as power grid 39 356 39356
estate tax assets.

The provision was created in connection with the ongoing control proceedings initiated
by the Director of the Tax Control Office in Warsaw ("Director of UKS") with respect to
value added tax. The duration of control proceedings was repeatedly extended by the
Director of UKS, and then by the Head of the Mazovian Customs and Tax Office. The
Provision for VAT Sales current new deadlines for completion of the proceedings were set for 24 and 28 April 77 094 72 894

2020 and 22 May 2020.

In the year ended 31 December 2019 the provision was increased by accrued interest
of PLN 4 200 thousand.

40. Accruals, deferred income and government grants

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Deferred income and government grants

The Group's deferred income and government grants include mainly grants and subsidies received to acquire property, plant and
equipment, as well as subsidies to R&D activities.

Grants and subsidies received to acquire property, plant and equipment are recognized at the value of cash received as other
operating revenue matching the corresponding depreciation expense related to items of property, plant and equipment. This regards
in particular partly canceled debt and accounting treatment of preferential loans measurement.

Accrued expenses

Accruals are liabilities regarding goods / services received / performed but not paid for, billed and amounts payable to employees, in
particular for bonuses and unused holidays. Although sometimes the amount or maturity of accruals must be estimated, usually the
uncertainty level is much lower than that regarding provisions.
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40.1. Deferred income and government grants
As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Deferred income 48 623 56 822

Donations, subsidies received for the purchase or fixed assets received free-of- 44 521 52 431

charge

Other 4102 4 391
Government grants 443 433 415 162

Subsidies obtained from EU funds 349 335 311 285

Forgiven loans from environmental funds 32764 37 464

Measurement of preferential loans 32 567 34 053

Other 28 767 32 360
Total 492 056 471 984

Non-current 460 003 440 206

Current 32 053 31778

40.2. Accrued expenses
As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Bonuses 59 827 60 524

Unused holidays 46 612 51445

Environmental protection charges 25600 33113

Other accrued expenses 21452 23 340
Total 153 491 168 422

Non-current - 103

Current 153 491 168 319

41. Liabilities to suppliers

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The Group measures financial liabilities with simplified methods, usually at amortized cost, if this does not result in a misstatement of
data presented in the financial statements, in particular if the time remaining to the date of payment is short. Liabilities to which the
simplified approach is applied are measured upon initial recognition and in subsequent periods, including at the end of the reporting
period, at amount due. Liabilities to suppliers, investment liabilities (Note 42) and selected other financial liabilities (Note 44) are
therefore measured at amount due since the effect of discount is insignificant.

Current liabilities to suppliers as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are presented in the table below:

As at
As at

Operating segment 31 December 2018

31 December 2019 (restated figures)
Sales 287 827 432 321
Distribution, including: 223173 309 233
Polskie Sieci Elektroenergetyczne S.A. 172 790 227 095
Mining 122 602 168 076
Generation 137 609 150 731
Other 76 015 67 377
Total 847 226 1127 738

42, Capital commitments

Short-term capital commitments as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are presented in the table below:
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As at
Operating segment AS at 31 December 2018
31 December 2019

(restated figures)
Distribution 182 150 452 047
Generation 429 007 219 849
Mining 62 059 88 001
Sales and other 84 727 35020
Total 757 943 794 917

Long-term capital commitments have been presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within other
financial liabilities. As at 31 December 2019, the related liability was PLN 7 414 thousand. As at 31 December 2018, the
related liability was PLN 59 thousand.

Commitments to incur capital expenditure

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Group committed to incur expenditure on property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets of PLN 3 981 923 thousand and PLN 3 403 880 thousand, respectively, with the key
items presented below:

Operating segment Agreement/investment project ASat ASat
P 9 seg 9 proj 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Construction of 910 MW Power Unit in Jaworzno 598 758 1593 273
Generation Project of adjusti ti its to the BAT (Best Available Techni
roject of adjusting generation units to the (Best Available Techniques) 388 282 1398
conclusions
Construction of new electrical connections 1227 019 497 276
Distribution
Modernization and reconstruction of existing networks 918 317 671 960
Constru.ctlon of the "Grzegorz" shaft with the accompanying infrastructure and 146 380 210 314
excavations
Mining Construction of the 800 m drift at "Janina" Mining Plant 30 681 102 134
Investment Program in "Brzeszcze" Mining Plant 51 606 32781
43. Liabilities arising from other taxes and charges
As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
VAT 297 343 81227
Personal Income Tax 53 974 58 898
Excise 12 063 44 693
Social security 215 340 210 940
Other 10 281 9 896
Total 589 001 405 654

Regulations concerning VAT, corporate income tax and social insurance charges are frequently amended. The
applicable regulations may also contain ambiguous issues, which lead to differences in opinions concerning the legal
interpretation of tax legislation both among the tax authorities and between such authorities and enterprises.

Tax reports and other matters (e.g. customs or foreign currency transactions) may be audited by authorities competent to
impose substantial penalties and fines, whereas any additional tax liabilities assessed during such audits have to be paid
together with interest.

Consequently, the figures presented and disclosed in these consolidated financial statements may change in the future if
a final decision is issued by tax inspection authorities.

44. Other financial liabilities

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Other financial liabilities classified as measured at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value adjusted by transaction costs.
Following initial recognition, other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using an effective interest rate. If the discount
effect is insignificant, they are measured at amount due.

73

This is a translation of the document originally issued and signed in Polish



TAURON Polska Energia S.A. Capital Group
Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in accordance with IFRS approved by the EU
(in PLN thousand)

Derivatives are financial liabilities measured at fair value.
PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

As at each reporting period end, the Group estimates fair value of liabilities measured at fair value. The fair value calculation
methodology is presented in Note 47.1 hereto.

As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Liabilities due to obligation to repay overpaid amounts to customers due to

come into force of the amended Act* Ay )

Wages, salaries 124 527 240 922

Bid bonds, deposits and collateral received 104 248 480

Derivative instruments 223 679 225 829

Margin deposits arising from stock exchange transactions 94 340 81492

Other 155 502 84 618
Total 639 872 881 341

Non-current 79 417 107 770

Current 560 455 773 571

*The Act on the amendment to the Excise Duty Act and some other acts of 28 December 2018.

The obligation to return overpaid amounts to customers relates to adjustments recognised by the Group reducing
revenues from customers relating to 2019, resulting from the need to adjust prices in that period to the provisions of the
amended Act of 28 December 2018 on the amendment of the Excise Duty Act and certain other acts, which is discussed
in detail in Note 12 of this consolidated financial statements.

The liability on account of negative valuation of derivatives relates mainly to forward instruments on account of
transactions for which the underlying commodity is CO2 emission allowances.

Margin deposits states as cash received by the Company arising from current stock exchange transitions, due to change
in valuation of futures contracts, open as at the end of reported period. The decrease in the value of variation margins in
the amount of PLN 248 376 thousand relates mainly to transactions concluded on foreign exchange markets for the
delivery of CO2 emission allowances and results mainly from the settlement of CO2 emission allowances futures
contracts in December 2019 and the decrease in allowance prices compared to the comparable period.

45. Other current non-financial liabilities

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Other non-financial liabilities include in particular overpayments received from clients and liabilities arising from advance payments
received, which shall be offset with deliveries of goods, services or tangible assets. Other non-financial liabilities are recognized at
amount due.

As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Payments from customers relating to future periods 360 602 335483
Amounts overpaid by customers 299 558 279 205
Prepayments for connection fees 21085 17 583
Other 39 959 38 695
Other current non-financial liabilities 3774 1565
Total 364 376 337 048

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

46. Significant items of the consolidated statement of cash flows

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The statement of cash flows is prepared in line with the indirect method.
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46.1. Cash flows from operating activities

Changes in working capital

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Change in receivables (298 156) (402 821)
Change in receivables from buyers in statement of financial position (61 346) (196 587)
Change in other financial receivables (243 715) (174 993)
Adjustment due to change in receivables due to disposal of property, plant and equipment and
financial assets 1092 (3153)
Adju§tment acc?ounting for impairment aIIowancgs re.cognized in correspondence with retained } (31 471)
earnings following the endorsement of IFRS 9 Finanical Instruments
Adjustment by the opening balance of the acquired business 3802 -
Other adjustments 2011 3383
Change in inventories (175 408) (222 443)
Change in inventories in statement of financial position (174 351) (214 338)
Adjustment by the opening balance of the acquired business 10 579 -
Adjustment related to transfer of invetories to/from property, plant and equipment (11 636) (8 105)
Change in payables excluding loans and borrowings (213 341) 387 953
Change in liabilities to suppliers in statement of financial position (277 110) 85311
Change in payroll, social security and other financial liabilities (135 831) 279 451
Change in non-financial liabilities in statement of financial position 27 597 36 117
Change in liabilities arising from taxes excluding income tax 183 347 (6 060)
Adjustment by the opening balance of the acquired business 7472 -
Adjustment of VAT change related to capital commitments (8732) (2 563)
Other adjustments (10 084) (4 303)
Change in other non-current and current assets (1121 021) 95 920
Change in other current and non-current non-financial assets in statement of financial position (28 883) 14 036
Change in receivables arising from taxes excluding income tax (174 968) 32 252
Change in non-current and current gas emission allowances (287 787) (32 143)
Change in non-current and current energy certificates (602 337) 124 267
Change in advance payments for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (22 460) (62 394)
Adjustment accounting for costs of acquiring new contracts and bonuses capitalized in
correspondence with retained earnings as a result of endorsement of IFRS 15 Revenue from - 26 355
Contracts with Customers
Adjustment by impairment losses on other non-financial assets (5 577) (6 847)
Adjustment by the opening balance of the acquired business 7 089 -
Other adjustments (6 098) 394
Change in deferred income, government grants and accruals (70 938) (130 315)
Change in deferred income, government grants and accruals in statement of financial position 5141 (197 488)
Adju§tmet related to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (19 460) (26 351)
received free of charge
Adjustment related to subsidies received (56 069) (91 003)
Adju§tment acc_ounting for recognizing deferred income from connection fet.es in retained B 195 666
earnings following the endorsement of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Other adjustments (550) (11 139)
Change in provisions 955 263 (512 139)
Change of short term and long term provisions in statement of financial position 1354 186 (489 893)
e s o (020 (420
Adjustment for the char?ge in provisions for land reclamation and dismantling recognized under (196 823) (5 199)
property, plant and equipment
Adjustment by the opening balance of the acquired business (60 875) -
Other adjustments (905) (2217)
Total (923 601) (783 845)

Income tax paid

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the income tax paid was PLN 423 736 thousand. The Capital Group paid PLN
424 096 thousand of income tax, which results from the payment of income tax advances for 2019 in the amount of PLN
442 525 thousand and income tax settlements for previous years resulting in a net income of PLN 18 429 thousand.

In the year ended 31 December 2018, the income taxes paid totaled PLN 392 184 thousand and included PLN 389 078
thousand relating to the Tax Capital Group and resulting from payment by the Tax Capital Group income tax advance
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payments of PLN 342 734 thousand as well as the TGC's final settlement of income tax for 2017 in the amount of PLN
46 344 thousand.

The fact that in 2019 the Tax Capital Group has paid tax advances on a monthly basis, while in 2018 it had paid them on
a quarterly basis resulted in a material increase of the income tax paid in the year 2019 versus the comparative period.

46.2. Cash from/used in investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3 436 312) (3 409 956)
Purchase of intangible assets (120 034) (123 047)
Change in the balance of VAT-adjusted capital commitments (20 887) (10 431)
Change in the balance of advance payments 22 460 62 394
Costs of overhaul and internal manufacturing (478 006) (269 280)
Other (2 353) 8754
Total (4 035 132) (3 741 566)

Cash transfer as part of wind farm acquisition (net of cash acquired)

The transfer of cash related to the wind farms acquisition (after the deduction of the acquired cash balance) in the
amount of PLN 543 079 thousand is related to the acquisition of five wind farms from the in.ventus group, along with the
debt owed by their operators to Hamburg Commercial Bank AG, as described in detail in Note 2.1 hereto. The cash
transferred by the Group in this transaction amounted to PLN 579 661 thousand, and cash balance acquired as part of
net assets amounted to PLN 36 582 thousand.

Loans granted

Payments to grant loans result from the loan disbursed by the Company to Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A., a
jointly-controlled entity, in the total amount of PLN 23 225 thousand.

46.3. Cash from/used in financing activities

Redemption of debt securities

Expenses related to the redemption of bonds in the amount of PLN 2 420 000 thousand, as described in detail in Note
35.2 hereto, included:

e bonds with par value of PLN 1 750 000 thousand, redeemed within the deadline determined in the TPEA 1119
scheme bonds;

e bonds with a nominal value of PLN 400 000 thousand, redeemed within the deadline determined in the bond issue
scheme of 24 November 2015;
e premature redemption of three series of bonds subscribed by BGK, with the total par value of PLN 270 000 thousand.

Repayment of borrowings and loans

Expenses related to the repayment of loans and borrowings, as presented in the consolidated statement of cash flows in
the amount of PLN 867 360 thousand, result mainly from the Parent’s repayment during the year ended 31 December
2019 of the following:

o two credit tranches under the agreement concluded with the Consortium of Banks in the amount of PLN 700 000
thousand;

¢ instalments of the loan to the European Investment Bank in the amount of PLN 162 318 thousand.
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Interest paid
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Interest paid in relation to debt securities (315 954) (258 358)
Interest paid in relation to loans and borrowings (75 685) (30 355)
Interest paid in relation to the finance lease (5 129) (196)
Total (396 768) (288 909)
investment expenditure (184 212) (128 739)
financial expenditure (212 556) (160 170)

The Group's consolidated statement of cash flows presents incurred borrowing costs which were capitalized in the
current period in the value of assets as payments to acquire property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in cash
flows from investing activities. In the year ended 31 December 2019, interest representing borrowing costs capitalized in
the value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets amounted to PLN 184 212 thousand.

Repayment of lease liabilities

The repayment of lease liabilities recognized by the Group in line with IFRS 16 Leases amounted to PLN 75 047
thousand. The total total cash outflow from leases (including short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, to which
the Group applied a practical solution without recognizing them as at 1 January 2019 in line with IFRS 16 Leases)
amounted to PLN 96 601 thousand.

Issue of debt securities

Proceeds related to the issue of debt securities in the amount of PLN 500 000 thousand, which is described in detail in
Note 35.2 hereto, included:

e issue of subordinated bonds subscribed by BGK in the amount of PLN 400 000 thousand;

e issue bonds in the amount of PLN 100 000 thousand under the bond issue scheme of 24 November 2015.

Loans taken

Proceeds arising from contracted loans totaling PLN 5 150 000 thousand, as described in detail in Note 35.1 hereto,
concerned;

e providing loan tranches of PLN 1 000 000 thousand based on the arrangement concluded with Bank Gospodarstwa
Krajowego;

e providing loan tranches of PLN 4 150 000 thousand based on the arrangement concluded with the consortium of
banks.

Proceeds from non-controlling interests

Proceeds from non-controlling interests of PLN 780 000 thousand are related to cash contribution paid by Fundusz
Inwestycji Infrastrukturalnych — Kapitatowy Fundusz Inwestycyjny Zamkniety Aktywow Niepublicznych and PFR
Inwestycje Fundusz Inwestycji Zamknietych to assume shares in the increased capital of Nowe Jaworzno Grupa
TAURON Sp. zo.0.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

47. Financial instruments

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Financial assets held by the Group in line with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are divided into the following classes of financial
instruments:

. financial assets measured at amortized cost;
. financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.
As at the reporting period end, the Group had no financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Pursuant to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, financial assets are classified upon initial recognition based on cash flow
characteristics (SPPI test) and a business model underlying the management of a given financial asset.
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The equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss in line with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
Classes of financial liabilities in the TAURON Group:

. financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss;
. other financial liabilities measured as at each subsequent reporting period end at amortized cost.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

The Group makes judgments regarding classification of financial instruments.

As at each reporting period end, the Group measures the fair value of assets and liabilities classified as measured at fair value
and discloses the fair value of other financial instruments. The methodology underlying fair value measurement is presented
below.

The Group recognizes an impairment loss upon initial recognition of a financial asset and then remeasures the loss amount as at
each reporting period end. The recognized allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost
includes mostly receivables from buyers and originated loans. The measurement methodology is presented in Notes 29 and
48.1.4 hereof.

47.1. Carrying amount and fair value of financial instrument classes and categories
As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018
Categories and classes of financial assets . Fair Carrying Fair
Carrying amount
value amount value
1 Financial assets measured at amortized cost 2 582 793 2337 094
Receivables from buyers 2290 746 2290 746 2229 400 2229 400
Deposits 50 228 50 228 47 126 47 126
Loans granted 39 467 39 467 28 296 28 296
Other financial receivables 202 352 202 352 32272 32272
2 Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 2004 034 1626 932
(FVTPL)
Derivative instruments 86 067 86 067 216 165 216 165
Shares (non-current) 140 508 140 508 138 492 138 492
Loans granted 216 018 216 018 199 256 199 256
Other financial receivables 296 867 296 867 223 232 223 232
Investment fund units 26 622 26 622 26 063 26 063
Cash and cash equivalents 1237 952 1237 952 823724 823724
3 Derivative hedging instruments 19 462 19 462 4178 4178
4 Financial assets excluded from the scope of IFRS 9 559 144 543 913
Investments in joint ventures 559 144 543 913

Total financial assets,

of which in the statement of financial position: Dilpass 4512117
Non-current assets 1032 701 1015992
Investments in joint ventures 559 144 543 913
Loans granted to joint ventures 238 035 217 402
Other financial assets 235 522 254 677
Current assets 4132732 3496 125
Receivables from buyers 2290 746 2229 363
Loans granted to joint ventures 4999 5
Other financial assets 599 035 443 033
Cash and cash equivalents 1237 952 823 724

Following an analysis, transferred collateral, amounting to PLN 296 867 thousand as at 31 December 2019, was
classified as other financial receivables measured at fair value through profit or loss, since the classification provides the
best reflection of the nature of these financial assets. The remaining other financial receivables are classified as
measured at amortized cost.

The Group classifies a loan granted to Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A. under an agreement of 28 February 2018 to
assets measured at fair value though profit or loss, as discussed in detail in Note 25 to these consolidated financial
statements.
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As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2017
Categories and classes of financial liabilities . Fair Carrying Fair
Carrying amount
value amount value
1 Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 15 428 187 13 526 426 -
Preferential loans 12 488 12 488 17 521 17 521
Arm's length loans 7014 824 7 030 597 867 997 892 832
Bank overdrafts 23 339 23 339 767 767
Bonds issued 6 257 022 6 537 537 10 077 067 10 204 721
Liabilities to suppliers 850 628 850 628 1127 738 1127 738
Other financial liabilities 223 920 223 920 406 151 406 151
Capital commitments 765 357 765 357 794 976 794 976
Salaries and wages 223 679 223 679 225 829 225 829
Insurance contracts 56 930 56 930 8 380 8 380
2 Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) 124 527 240 922
Derivative instruments 124 527 124 527 240 922 240 922
3 Financial liabilities excluded from the scope of IFRS 9 1 006 603 25
Leases liabilities 1 006 603 25
Total financial liabilities,
of which in the statement of financial position: B a 13767 373
Non-current liabilities 11 909 600 8 595 980
Debt 11 830 183 8488 210
Other financial liabilities 79 417 107 770
Current liabilities 4649 717 5171 393
Debt 2484 093 2475167
Liabilities to suppliers 847 226 1127 738
Capital commitments 757 943 794 917
Other financial liabilities 560 455 773 571

The fair value measurement methodology applied to financial instruments and fair value hierarchy levels assigned to
these instruments are presented in the following tables.

Fair value
measurement level
Financial assets/liability measured at fair value

Fair value measurement methodology

Financial asset/liability classes

Derivatives, including:

IR IR 2

S and CCIRS Derivatives have been measured in line with the methodology presented in Note 47.3 hereto.
Currency forwards 2
Commodity forwards and futures 1

The Group estimated the fair value of shares held in not listed companies using the adjusted
net assets method, considering its share in the net assets and adjusting the value by relevant
factors affecting the measurement, such as the non-controlling interest discount and the

Shares 3 discount for the limited liquidity of the above instruments or the discounted dividend method. As
the key factors affecting the value of the assumed shares had not changed at a given end of
the reporting period compared to the initial recognition, in the case of other instruments the
Group assumes that the historical cost is an acceptable approximation of the fair value.

Fair value measurement of the loan had the form of the current value of future cash flows,

Loans granted 3 including borrower’s credit risk.

Units in investment funds 1 Fair value measurement of units is referred to current quotings of the units.
Financial liabilities whose fair value is disclosed

Liabilities arising from fixed interest debt, i.e. loans contracted from the European Investment
Bank, issued subordinated bonds taken by the European Investment Bank and eurobonds, as

Loans, borrowings and bonds issued 2 well as bonds issued by a subsidiary are measured at fair value. The fair value measurement
was carried out based on the present value of future cash flows discounted using an interest
rate applicable to given bonds or loans, i.e. applying market interest rates.

The fair value of other financial instruments as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 (except from those
excluded from the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments) did not differ considerably from the amounts presented in the
financial statements for the following reasons:

- the potential discounting effect relating to short-term instruments is not significant;
- the instruments are related to arm's length transactions.

Shares in jointly-controlled entities excluded from the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are measured using the
equity method.
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Change in the balance of financial assets whose measurement is classified on the 3rd level of the fair value
hierarchy

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Not quoted shares  Loans granted  Not quoted shares  Loans granted

Opening balance 138 492 199 256 141 698 -
Effects of implementing IFRS 9 Financial instruments - - (26 031) 150 960
Restated opening balance 138 492 199 256 115 667 150 960
Gains/(losses) for the period recognized in financial revenue/expenses (10 044) 16 762 1754 (11 581)
Purchased/contracted 12 072 - 21083 -
Sold/repaid (12) - (12) (299 100)
Settlement of the debt consolidation arrangement - - - 358 977
Closing balance 140 508 216 018 138 492 199 256

In the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 no reclassification occurred between level 1 and 2 of the
fair value hierarchy; nor did such reclassification occur from or to level 3 of that hierarchy.

47.2. Revenue, expenses, gain and loss items included in the statement of comprehensive
income by category of financial instruments

Year ended 31 December 2019

Assets/ liabilities . 0 Financial
at fair value Financial assets at . Hedging assets/liabilities
through profit or amortized cost . instruments excluded from the
loss ETDCTHELE] Cek scope of IFRS 9

Dividends and shares in profits 4264 o - - - 4 264
Interest income / (expense) 7 444 21880 (204 794) 743 (44 800) (219 527)
Currency translation differences 4007 (3128) 29 204 - - 30 083
Impairment / revaluation (27 827) (637) (3271) 34 - (31701)
Comrrl?ssion relating to borrowings and debt _ - (20 338) o - (20 338)
securities

Gain/(loss) on disposal of investments 17 (1974) - - - (1957)
Qain/(loss) ?n exercised derivative (18 144) R ) R ; (18 144)
instruments’

Net financial income (costs) (30 239) 16 141 (199 199) 777 (44 800) (257 320)
Revaluation 21 386 (27 818) - - - (6 432)
Qain/(loss) ?n exercised derivative (34 054) ; ) ; : (34 054)
instruments’

Net operating income/(costs) (12 668) (27 818) - - - (40 486)
Remeasurement - o - 15179 - 15179
Other comprehensive income - - - 15179 - 15179

*The Group recognizes revenue and expenses related to commodity instruments in operating activities. Revenue and expenses regarding other derivatives
are recognized under financial revenue/expenses.

Year ended 31 December 2018

Assets/ liabilities Financial Financial
at fair value Financial assets at L Hedging assets/liabilities
) . liabilities at n
through profit or amortized cost . instruments excluded from the
amortized cost
loss scope of IFRS 9

Dividends and shares in profits 7 348 - - - - 7 348
Interest income / (expense) 5554 21675 (147 521) 1202 (196) (119 286)
Currency translation differences (7 416) 1406 (77 445) - - (83 455)
Impairment / revaluation (7 815) 7170 (11 994) - - (12 639)
Comr'nllssmn relating to borrowings and debt ~ R (22 945) R R (22 945)
securities

Gain/(loss) on disposal of investments (25) (1243) - - - (1 268)
Qaln/(loss) ?n exercised derivative 6078) B R ; } (6 078)
instruments

Net financial income (costs) (8 432) 29 008 (259 905) 1202 (196) (238 323)
Revaluation (17 534) (20 079) - - - (37 613)
§a|n/(loss) ?n exercised derivative 16 910 ; R : } 16 910
instruments

Net operating income/(costs) (624) (20 079) - - - (20 703)
Remeasurement - - - (24 297) - (24 297)
Other comprehensive income - - - (24 297) - (24 297)

The Group recognizes revenue and expenses related to commodity instruments in operating activities. Revenue and expenses regarding other derivatives
are recognized under financial revenue/expenses.
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47.3. Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

SELECTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Derivative financial instruments within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are classified as financial assets/financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss, except derivatives constituting hedging which instruments and subject to hedge
accounting. Derivative instruments for purchase and sales of non-financial assets acquired and held to secure own needs as
excluded from IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are not measured at the end of the reporting period. Derivatives covered by the scope of
IFRS 9 Financial instruments are classified as assets when their value is positive and as liabilities - when their value is negative.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group held the following derivative instruments included in IFRS 9 Financial instruments:

Recognition in consolidated statment of comprehensive income

Classification Instruments type

Derivatives subject to hedge
accounting

Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) concluded to hedge against interest rate risk
related to borrowings.
Subject to hedge accounting.

- measurement (effective portion of the hedge) in other comprehensive
income, reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or
loss for the period;

- measurement (non-effective portion of the hedge) in profit or loss for the

period

« forward contracts concluded in order to hedge against risk related to
foreign exchange rate fluctuations;

« forwards and futures for purchase and sales of CO, emission
allowances, energy and other commaodities, concluded and maintained
for speculation purposes;

« Coupon Only Cross Currency Swap (fixed-fixed-CCIRS) entered into in
order to hedge against currency risk.

- finance income/ (costs)

Derivatives not subject to hedge
accounting, classified as
“assets/liabilities measured at fair
value through profit or loss”

- operating income/ (costs)

- finance income/ (costs)

Hedge accounting

In order to hedge the interest rate risk the Group uses Interest Rate Swaps (IRS). These instruments hedge cash flows related to
debt. Such transactions are subject to hedge accounting.

At the time of the hedge the hedging relationship is designated and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the
hedge are documented formally.

A cash flow hedge is accounted for in the following manner:

» the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognized directly in
other comprehensive income; and

» the ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized in profit or loss for the period.

Gain or loss from revaluation of the hedging instrument disclosed in other comprehensive income is recognized directly in profit or
loss in the same period during which the hedged item affects profit or loss for the period. For IRS, interest costs arising from debt are
adjusted accordingly.

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

As at each reporting period end, the Group carries out fair value estimation. The methodology is presented below.

Derivative instrument Methodology of determining fair value hierarchy

Difference between the discounted interest cash flows based on the floating and fixed interest rates. Reuters' interest rate curve is the

IR input data.

Difference between the discounted interest cash flows of the payable and receivables streams, in two various currencies, denominated in

CCIRS the measurement currency. Reuters' interest rate curve, basis spreads and NBP fixing for relevant currencies are the input data.

Difference between the discounted future cash flows between the future price as at the valuation date and the transaction price multiplied
by the par value of the FX contract. Reuter's NBP fixing and the interest rate curve implied from fx swap transaction for a relevant
currency is the input data.

The fair value of forwards for the purchase and sale of CO, emission allowances, electricity and other commodities is based on prices
quoted on an active market or based on cash flows being the difference between the price reference index (forward curve) and the
contract price.

Forward currency
contracts

Commodity (forwards,
futures)

As at each reporting period end, the Group checks the hedge effectiveness.

Measurement of derivatives as at each reporting period end is presented in the following table.

As at 31 December 2018

As at 31 December 2019

Charged to Charged to ot_her Total Charged to Charged to otlher Total
profitorloss  COMPrenensive Assets Liabilities  profitorloss  COMPrENENSve ot Liabilities
iIncome income
CCIRS (12 885) - - (12 885) (5 140) - - (5 140)
IRS 121 19 341 19 462 - 16 4162 4178 -
Commodity forwards/futures 4248 . 86 067 (81819) (17 138) N 216 165 (233 303)
Currency forwards (29 823) - - (29 823) (2 479) - - (2 479)
Total 105 529 (124 527) 220 343 (240 922)
Non-current 20 352 (16 848) 43 844 (37 930)
Current 85177 (107 679) 176 499 (202 992)
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The fair value hierarchy for derivative financial instruments was as follows:

As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2

Assets

Derivative instruments - commodity 86 067 - 216 165 -
Derivative instruments-IRS - 19 462 - 4178
Total 86 067 19 462 216 165 4178
Liabilities

Derivative instruments - commodity 81819 - 233 303 -
Derivative instruments - currency - 29 823 - 2479
Derivative instruments-CCIRS - 12 885 - 5140
Total 81 819 42 708 233 303 7 619

Derivative instruments (subject to hedge accounting)

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company hedged a part of the interest rate risk in relation to the cash flows
related to the exposure to WIBOR 6M determined under the dynamic risk management strategy, i.e:

e interest on bonds with a par value of PLN 490 000 thousand by concluding interest rate swap hedging transactions
(IRS) for periods starting from 20 December 2019, expiring in turn from 2023 to 2028;

e interest on a loan with a nominal value of PLN 1 000 000 thousand by concluding interest rate swap hedging
transactions (IRS) for periods starting from 20 December 2019, expiring on 20 June 2024 and until 20 June 2029.

The aforementioned transactions are subject to hedge accounting.

In 2016 the Company hedged a portion of its interest rate risk for cash flows relating to the exposure to WIBOR 6M,
designated under the dynamic risk management strategy, i.e. interest on debt securities with the par value of PLN
2100 000 thousand, through the entry into interest rate swap (IRS) transactions for a term of 4 to 5 years. The
aforementioned transactions are subject to hedge accounting.

Effects of hedge accounting on revaluation reserve regarding hedging instruments are presented in Note 33.5 hereto.

In the year ended 31 December 2019, revaluation resulted in an increase by PLN 15 179 thousand in other
comprehensive incomethe, and PLN 777 thousand was recognized in the current period's financial result.

Derivative instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

As at 31 December 2019, derivative instruments which did not fall within the scope of hedge accounting and were
classified as financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss comprised:

¢ CCIRSs that hedge foreign currency cash flows resulting from the payment of interest on the issued eurobonds;

e commodity derivatives (futures, forward) including CO2 emission allowances and other commodity purchase and sale
transactions;

e FXforward transactions hedging foreign currency cash flows resulting from the Company's operations.

The CCIRSs have been used with respect to the Company's Coupon Only Cross Currency Swap fixed-fixed transactions
concluded in 2017 and in January 2018 and involve an exchange of interest payments on the total par value of EUR 500
000 thousand. They mature in July 2027. In accordance with the terms and conditions, the Company pays interest at a
fixed rate in PLN and receives fixed interest-rate payments in EUR. Hedge accounting principles do not apply to the
transaction in question.

48. Principles and objectives of financial risk management

Risks related to financial instruments which the TAURON Group is exposed to, including a description of the exposure
and the risk management method:
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Risk exposure

Risk management
Credit risk

Regulation

Possible loss resulting from the
counterparty default on contractual
obligations. The credit exposure involves
a default risk (the amount that may be
lost if a counterparty defaults on its
obligations) and a replacement risk (the
amount that may be lost if a delivery is
not made or a service is not provided).

Credit risk is managed through the control of the credit exposure at the time when companies in
the TAURON Group sign contracts. As a rule, before a contract is signed, every entity is
examined in terms of their financial position and is assigned a limit which determines the
maximum exposure allowed. The credit exposure in this case is understood as the amount
which may be lost, if the counterparty defaults on their obligations at a given time (considering
the value of security they have lodged). The credit exposure is calculated at a given day and
comprises a default risk and replacement risk.

The TAURON Group has a decentralized credit risk management system in place, however,
the control, mitigation and reporting are managed centrally at a Company-wide level. The
TAURON Group’s Credit Risk Management Policy sets out the credit risk management
procedures for the entire Group with the view to reduce the impact of the risk on the Group’s
objectives.

Based on the value of exposure and assessment of financial standing of each client, the value
of credit risk to which the TAURON Group is exposed is calculated using statistical methods to
determine value at risk based on the total loss probability distribution.

Credit risk
management
policy

for the
TAURON
Group

Liquidity risk

Possible loss or limitation of the ability to
make payments on a day-to-day basis
due to an inappropriate volume or
structure of liquid assets as compared to
current liabilities or an insufficient level of
the actual net proceeds from operating
activities.

The TAURON Group’s liquidity is reviewed on an ongoing basis to detect any deviation from
plans and the availability of external sources of funds, in the case of which the amount
materially exceeds the expected short-term demand, mitigates the liquidity risk.

To this end the Company applies the rules of determining the liquidity position both of individual
companies and the entire TAURON Group which helps ensure funds that would cover any
potential liquidity gaps by allocating funds between companies (cash-pooling) as well as using
external financing, including overdraft facilities.

The Company manages the financing risk, understood as no capability to obtain new funding,
an increase in funding costs and the risk of terminating the existing funding agreements. To
minimize the financing risk, the Company’s policy assumes obtaining funding for the Group in
advance of the planned time of use, i.e. up to 24 months prior to the planned demand. The key
objective of the policy is to ensure flexible selection of funding source, use favorable market
conditions and reduce the risk related to the necessity to contract new debt on adverse terms.

Liquidity
management
policy for the
TAURON
Group

Market risk - interest rate and currency risks

The possibility of an adverse effect on
the Group’s performance through
fluctuations in the fair value of financial
instruments or the related future cash
flows, driven by changes in interest rates
or foreign exchange rates.

The TAURON Group manages the currency and interest rate risk based on the developed and
approved Financial Risk Management Policy in the TAURON Group. The key objective of such
risk management is to minimize the cash flow sensitivity of the TAURON Group to financial
risks and to minimize finance cost and costs of hedging with the use of derivative instruments.
Wherever possible and commercially viable, derivative instruments are used, whose nature
allows for the application of hedge accounting.

The financial risk management policy of the TAURON Group has also introduced hedge
accounting principles which set out the terms and conditions and types of hedge accounting,
along with the accounting treatment of hedging instruments and hedged items, to be applied as
part of hedge accounting under IFRS.

Financial risk
management
policy for the
TAURON
Group

Market risk - price risk

Unplanned volatility of the operating
profit/loss of the TAURON Group
resulting from fluctuations of prices in the
commodity markets in individual areas of
commercial activities of the TAURON
Group.

Effective management is ensured by a commercial risk management system linked in terms of
organization and information with the TAURON Group’s strategy of hedging trading positions.
The policy has introduced an early-warning system and risk-exposure limiting system in various
trading areas. The basic operational measure of the market risk at the TAURON Group is the
Value at Risk measure which determines the maximum allowed change in the value of the
position over a given time period and with a given probability.

Commercial
risk
management
policy for the
TAURON
Group

48.1. Credit risk

Key classes of financial instruments that give rise to credit risk exposure have been presented in the table below. The
maximum credit risk exposure related to financial assets of the TAURON Group equals their carrying amounts.
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Classes of financial instruments ASat ASat
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Receivables from buyers 2290 746 2 229 400
Cash and cash equivalents 1237 952 823 724
Loans granted 255 485 227 552
Derivative instruments 105 529 220 343
Deposits 50 228 47 126
Other financial receivables 499 219 255 504
48.1.1 Credit risk related to receivables from buyers

The Group has receivables from two groups of buyers: institutional and individual clients. The percentage share of
individual groups in the total amount of receivables from buyers has been presented below:

As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Institutional clients 76.65% 70.88%
Individual clients 23.35% 29.12%
Total 100% 100%

No material concentration of credit risk related to the core activity occurs in the Group. Amounts due from PSE S.A.
constitute the largest item of receivables from buyers with a share of 6.69% and 6.55% as at 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018, respectively.

The Group monitors credit risk related to its operations on an ongoing basis, in line with the Credit Risk Management
Policy adopted by the TAURON Group. As a result of the analysis of the credit standing of counterparties with material
credit exposure, the conclusion of trading transactions resulting in an increase in credit exposure above the allocated
exposure limit generally requires appropriate collateral.

The aging analysis of receivables from buyers as well as information on allowances/write-downs on receivables from
buyers have been presented in Note 29 hereto.

48.1.2 Credit risk related to other financial receivables

Other financial receivables of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and as at 31 December 2018 relate mainly to
institutional clients (share of 99.64% and 99.89%, respectively). As at 31 December 2019, the main item of other
financial receivables are margin deposits resulting from collaterals provided in respect of transactions entered into on
stock exchange markets. Stock exchange trading mechanisms and applied hedge in the assessment of the Company
basically eliminate the credit risk. In addition to stock exchange collaterals, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk associated with other financial receivables.

Regarding other financial receivables measured at amortized cost as at the balance sheet date, the Group estimates an
impairment loss.

Aging analysis of other financial receivables measured at amortized cost as at 31 December 2019

Not past due B el Total
< 30 days 30-90 days 90-180 days 180-360 days > 360 days
Value of item before allowance/write-down 206 721 5526 5055 1428 2124 97 633 318 487
Percentage of allowance/write-down 5% 60% 51% 97% 99% 100% -
Allowance/write-down (9 330) (3.317) (2 576) (1.391) (2113) (97 408) (116 135)
Net Value 197 391 2209 2479 37 11 225 202 352

Aging analysis of other financial receivables measured at amortized cost as at 31 December 2018

Past due

RESEEDCE <30days  30-90 days 90-180 days 180-360 days > 360 days ezl
Value of item before allowance/write-down 42 580 780 1292 23103 5813 78 006 151 574
Percentage of allowance/write-down 25% 67% 98% 100% 100% 100% -
Allowance/write-down (10 668) (522) (1.262) (23 064) (5 808) (77 978) (119 302)
Net Value 31912 258 30 39 5 28 32272
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Change in allowances/write-downs on other financial receivables measured at amortized cost

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Opening balance (119 302) (114 786)

Recognised (3 143) (8 705)

Utilized 560 511

Reversed 5750 1860

Other movements - 1818
Closing balance (116 135) (119 302)

48.1.3 Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and derivatives instruments

Credit risk management related to cash is carried out by the Group through the diversification of banks in which
surpluses of cash are deposited. These banks receive investment rating. The share of three banks in which the Group
has the largest cash balances as at 31 December 2019 amounted to 86%.

The entities the Company concludes derivative transactions with in order to hedge against interest rate and currency risk
operate in the financial sector. These banks receive investment rating. The Company diversifies banks with whom
derivative transactions are concluded.

Derivatives for which the basic assets are non-financial assets, which are in the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments,
apply to futures (exchage market) and forwards (OTC market). Exchange markets apply appropriate mechanisms to
protect, in the form of margin and supplementary deposits. Under supplementary deposits, the Company provides and
receives cash arising from changes in the measurement of the underlying instruments on an ongoing basis, which means
that as at the end of the reporting period, credit risk does not occur in relation to futures transactions.

In the case of OTC instruments there is a credit risk related to the possibility of insolvency of the other party to the
contract. Therefore, commercial transactions of material value are preceded by the assessment of the counterparty's
creditworthiness, including the economic and financial analysis of the entity. On the basis of the assessment, the
counterparty is granted a credit limit, which is a limit of the maximum credit exposure. Execution of trade transactions
resulting in an increase in credit exposure above the allocated exposure limit generally requires the establishment of
collateral in accordance with the Credit Risk Management Policy in the TAURON Group.

48.1.4 Credit risk related to loans granted
Loans measured at amortised cost

As far as originated loans measured at amortized cost are concerned, the Company assesses the risk of insolvency on
the part of the borrowers based on the ratings assigned to the counterparties using an internal scoring model,
appropriately restated to account for the probability of default. The expected credit loss is calculated based on the time
value of money.

For the purposes of determining the calculation horizon for expected credit losses, material credit risk increases related
to certain financial assets are analyzed beginning from the initial recognition of a given asset.

When analyzing a significant increase in credit risk related to such assets, the Group considers the following indications:

e counterparty's internal or external rating as at the reporting period end having deteriorated by more than two rating
levels compared to its rating upon initial recognition;

e counterparty's probability of insolvency projected within one-year horizon as at the reporting period end being at least
twice higher than as at the initial recognition date;

e receivables related to a given asset being overdue by more than 30 days.

If a given counterparty's receivables are overdue by more than 90 days, they are classified as bad debt, i.e. the 100%
probability of insolvency is assigned to that counterparty. The loans granted by the Group as at 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018 were not overdue.

The Group did not originate loans for which impairment losses are calculated over the entire life cycle of a financial
instrument and which as at 31 December 2019 were impaired due to credit risk.
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Loans measured at fair value

Measurement of the loan granted to Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A., a joint venture classified as non-financial
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss, with the carrying amount of PLN 216 018 thousand, includes credit
risk effects. The loan is collateralized with a blank promissory note with a promissory note agreement.

48.2. Liquidity risk

The Group maintains a balance between continuity, flexibility and cost of financing by using various sources of funding,
which enable management of liquidity risk and effective mitigation of risk consequences. The Company pursues a policy
of diversification of financing instruments, but first of all, it seeks to secure financing and maintain the ability of the
TAURON Group companies to meet current and future liabilities in the short and long term. Liquidity risk management is
connected with planning and monitoring cash flows in the short and long term and taking actions to ensure funds for the
operations of the Group companies.

The TAURON Group carries out a centralized finance management policy, allowing effective management in this respect
on the Group level. Among others, the Group has adopted Liquidity Management Policy for the TAURON Group, which
facilitates optimization of liquidity management in the Group, reduces the risk of liquidity loss in the Group and in each
Group company as well as reduces financial expenses. Having implemented appropriate projection standards, the
TAURON Group can precisely determine its liquidity position and optimize the time of obtaining funding, maturity and
types of deposit instruments, as well as an appropriate level of the liquidity provision.

Additionally, in order to minimize the possibility of cash flow disruption and liquidity risk, the TAURON Group, uses the
cash pooling mechanism. The cash pooling structure enables the Group companies that experience short-term shortage
of funds to use cash provided by companies with cash surplus, without the need to obtain borrowings from third parties.

The Company also has available financing under the concluded overdraft agreements. The balance of use of overdratts
by the Company as at each balance sheet date is presented in the table below.

Bank overdrafts

Currency R t As at As at
Purpose Currency  financing 5";‘;’:"" 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
available currency PLN currency PLN
intraday limit ~ PKO BP intraday limit PLN 300 000 17.12.2020
PKO BP financing of ongoing operations PLN 300 000 29.12.2020
financing of CO, emission allowance,
overdraft facility BGK electricity and gas transactions on EU stock ~ EUR 45000 31.12.2020 4 804 20 456
exchanges
mBank financing of security deposits and usD 200 31.03.2020 198 754 204 767
commodity transactions
Total 21210 767

The use of foreign currency loans is to mitigate forex risk related to commercial transactions denominated in foreign
currencies.

In addition to overdrafts, the Company has primarily available financing under the syndicated loan agreement, which is
used for general corporate purposes, including securing the Group's current liquidity position and financing under the
Intesa Credit Agreement.

After the period end date, the Company concluded new financing agreements (described in detail in Note 56
hereto).

e a credit agreement concluded with SMBC Bank EU AG;

e a programme agreement concluded with Santander Bank Polska S.A. enabling financing to be obtained through a
bond issue on the domestic market;

e a syndicated loan agreements concluded with Banca IMI S.P.A., London Branch, Banca IMI S.A.P., Intesa Sanpaolo
S.P.A. acting through intermediation of Intesa Sanpaolo S.P.A. S.A. Branch in Poland and China Construction Bank
(Europe) S.A. acting through intermediation of China Construction Bank (Europe) S.A. Branch in Poland.
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The adopted financing policy provides for increased access to funding sources, reduction of borrowing costs and
collateral established on the Group's assets, covenants required by financial institutions and allows a decrease in
administrative expenses. The centralized financing model allows access to funding sources inaccessible for individual
companies.

As at 31 December 2019, TAURON Group had a significant number of forward contracts concluded on the exchange for
the purchase of CO2 emission allowances, mainly for surrender by the Group's generating units. A position within the
scope of CO2 emission allowances entered into on the exchange generates a risk related to the necessity to provide
funds for variation margins, the volume of which is closely related to the volume maintained on the exchange market and
current market prices of CO2 emission allowances. The risk in this case is the reduction of market prices below the
average portfolio price. Therefore, taking into account the significant price volatility in 2018 and 2019 and potential
significant price changes in the future, the Group identifies the liquidity risk related to the necessity to deposit cash for
variation margins. The change of price by 1 EUR/Mg is a change of the variation margin by about PLN 56 000 thousand
with the volume of about 13 million Mg.

Due to the strong positive correlation between CO2 emission allowances prices and electricity prices on the Polish
market, a drop in CO2 emission allowances prices may also cause a reduction in electricity prices. The Group naturally
has a long position for electricity on the Polish Power Exchange, mainly for the purpose of securing sales to TAURON
Group customers. A price change by PLN 1/MWh means a possible change of the variation margin depending on the
position held by about PLN 23 000 - 50 000 thousand with a net annual position of about 23 TWh. The sharp drop in CO2
emission allowances prices and, as a consequence, electricity prices may cause a significant increase in the required
margins on ICE and POLPX exchanges, which, as a consequence, may require the engagement of cash and have a
negative impact on the liquidity ratios of the TAURON Group.

In 2019, the Group was fully able to pay its liabilities at maturity.

The following tables present the Group's financial liabilities based on non-discounted contractual payments by maturity
as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

Financial laibilities as at 31 December 2019

of which non-discounted contractual payments maturing within

eee] iz (after the balance sheet date)

Carrying contractual

Classes of financial instruments

amount less than 3 3-12 more than 5

payments 1-2years 2-3years 3-5years

months months years

Financial liabilities other than derivative
instruments
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings and

issued bonds 13 307 673 (15536 815) (1693 417) (977 598) (650 705) (3882401) (1981047) (6351647)

Liabilities to suppliers 850 628 (850 628) (847 226) - (1 706) (1696)

Capital commitments 765 357 (765 357) (757 850) (93) (3 708) (3 706) = =

Other financial liabilities 504 529 (504 529) (362 412) (90 370) (32 194) (5081) (7 376) (7 096)

Obligations under finance leases 1006 603 (1 927 467) (66 996) (43 897) (94 969) (77 448) (137 372) (1506 785)
Derivative financial liabilities

Derivate instruments - commodity 81819 (29 676) (24 602) (4 950) (124) -

Derivative instruments - currency 29 823 (29 823) (2 505) (19 911) (7 407) - - -

Derivate instruments - CCIRS 12 885 (49 267) - (6 207) (6 188) (6 120) (12 326) (18 426)
Total 16 559 317 (19 693 562) (3 755 008) (1 143 026) (797 001) (3976452) (2138121) (7 883 954)
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Financial laibilities as at 31 December 2018

Non-discounted of which non-discounted contractual payments maturing within
(after the balance sheet date)
contractual
amount less than 3 3-12 more than 5

ayments - - o
paym T D 1-2years 2-3years 3-5years years

Carrying

Classes of financial instruments

Financial liabilities other than derivative
instruments
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings and

issued bonds 10 963 352 (13 829 604) (464 622) (2324 303) (2438 943) (582418) (1027 403) (6991915)

Liabilities to suppliers 1127 738 (1127 738) (1 122894) (4 844) -

Capital commitments 794 976 (794 976) (784 326) (10 590) (59) (1) - -

Other financial liabilities 640 360 (640 360) (557 019) (13 562) (45 268) (4 973) (10 502) (9 036)

Obligations under finance leases 25 (28) (1) (1) (2) (2) (4) (18)
Derivative financial liabilities

Derivate instruments - commodity 233 303 (124 112) (76 640) (16 490) (30 982)

Derivative instruments - currency 2479 (2 479) 86 (2 565) - - - -

Derivate instruments - CCIRS 5140 (50 950) - (5 627) (5713) (5 695) (11 253) (22 662)
Total 13 767 373 (16 570 247) (3 005416) (2377 982) (2520 967) (593 089) (1049 162) (7 023 631)

48.3. Market risk
The Group identifies the following types of market risk it is exposed to:
. interest rate risk;
. currency risk;

. raw material and commodity price risk related to commodity derivative instruments and price risk related to units
held by the Group.

48.3.1 Interest rate risk

Due to floating-rate items the Group is exposed to cash flow changes resulting from interest rate fluctuations. As a result
of fixed-rate items the Group is exposed to changes in the fair value of items measured at fair value. The risk of fair value
changes resulting from interest rate changes relates to IRS and CCIRS contracts as well as the loan granted to
Elektrocieptownia Stalowa Wola S.A The Group is also exposed to the risk of lost benefits related to a decrease in
interest rates in the case of fixed-rate debt or to an increase in interest rates in the case of fixed-rate assets, although the
changes are not disclosed in the financial statements.

The purpose of interest rate risk management is to limit negative effects of market interest rate fluctuations on the
Group's cash flows to an acceptable level and to minimize finance costs. In order to hedge interest rate risk related to
floating-rate debt, the Group entered into interest rate swap (IRS) contracts, described in detail in Note 47.3 hereto.

The carrying amounts of financial instruments of the Group exposed to the interest rate risk have been presented in the
tables below. As the Company has adopted a dynamic financial risk management strategy where the hedged item is
cash flows relating to the exposure to the floating WIBOR 6M interest rate, the interest rate risk for a portion of interest
cash flows has been reduced by the hedging IRS transactions. Thus, a portion of the carrying amount of debt with
floating interest cash flow fluctuations hedged with interest rate swaps has been presented in the tables below together
with valuation of these hedging instruments as fixed-rate items.
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Financial instruments by type of interest rate

Financial instruments As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018

Fixed Floating Fixed Floating
interest rate interest rate interest rate interest rate

Financial assets

Deposits 50 228 - 50 228 47 126 - 47 126
Loans granted 246 243 9242 255 485 222756 4796 227 552
Cash and cash equivalents - 1143 598 1143 598 - 724 078 724 078
Derivative instruments-IRS 19 462 - 19 462 4178 - 4178
Financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts - 23 339 23 339 - 767 767
Preferential loans - 12488 12 488 - 17 521 17 521
Arm's length loans 2892708 4122 116 7014 824 850 675 17 322 867 997
Bonds issued 5756 491 500 531 6 257 022 6519 439 3557 628 10 077 067
Obligations under finance leases 1006 603 - 1006 603 25 - 25
Derivative instruments-CCIRS 12 885 - 12 885 5140 - 5140

Other financial instruments of the Group, which are not included in the above tables, are not interest-bearing and
therefore they are not subject to interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The analysis of sensitivity to changes in market risk factors is conducted by means of a scenario analysis. The Group
relies on expert scenarios reflecting its judgment concerning the behavior of individual market risk factors in the future.
The scope of the analysis includes only those items which meet the IFRS definition of financial instruments.

The interest rate risk sensitivity analysis is conducted by the Group using the parallel shift in the yield curve by the
potential change in reference interest rates within a horizon until the date of the next financial statements. The interest
rate risk sensitivity analysis has been carried out based on average reference interest rates in the year. The scale of
potential changes in interest rates has been estimated on the basis of implied volatility for interest rate options quoted on
the interbank market for currencies which expose the Group to the interest rate risk as at the end of the reporting period.

The Group identifies its exposure to the risk of changes in WIBOR, EURIBOR and LIBOR USD interest rates. As at 31
December 2019 and as at 31 December 2018, its exposure to the risk of changes in EURIBOR and LIBOR USD was
immaterial.

The tables below present sensitivity of the gross profit/loss as well as other comprehensive income (gross) of the Group
to reasonably possible changes in interest rates within a horizon until the date of the next financial statements, assuming
that all other risk factors remain unchanged.

Year ended 31 December 2019

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk as at
31 December 2019

31 December 2019

Classes of finacial instruments WIBOR +38 bp WIBOR -38 bp
Carrying amount Valueatrisk Profit or loss / other comprehensive income
Loans granted 255 485 225 260 (9 883) 10398
Cash and cash equivalents 1237 952 1143 598 4237 (4 237)
Derivatives (assets) 105 529 19 462 37 204 (37 204)
Preferential loans 12 488 12 488 (47) 47
Arm's length loans 7014 824 6 320 285 (24 017) 24017
Issued bonds 6 257 022 1890 467 (7 184) 7184
Derivatives (liabilities) 124 527 12 885 6 098 (6 098)
Total 6 408 (5 893)

The exposure to risk as at 31 December 2019 is representative for the Group's exposure to risk during the annual period
preceding the aforementioned date.
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Year ended 31 December 2018

31 December 2018

Classes of finacial instruments

Carrying amount

Value at risk

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk as at
31 December 2018

WIBOR +34 bp WIBOR -34 bp

Profit or loss / other comprehensive income

Loans granted 227 552 204 052 (8 788) 9225
Cash and cash equivalents 823724 724 078 1728 (1728)
Derivatives (assets) 220 343 4178 10 315 (10 315)
Preferential loans 17 521 17 521 (60) 60
Arm's length loans 867 997 17 322 (59) 59
Issued bonds 10 077 067 5656 342 (19 232) 19 232
Derivatives (liabilities) 240 922 5140 6618 (6 618)
Total (9 478) 9915

The exposure to risk as at 31 December 2018 is representative for the Group's exposure to risk during the annual period

preceding the aforementioned date.

48.3.2 Currency risk

The TAURON Group companies are exposed to transaction and translation currency risk. The Group companies are
exposed mainly to the risk of EUR/PLN, CZK/PLN, USD/PLN and GBP/PLN exchange rate changes in relation to their
operating and financing activities. The Group's exposure to currency risk by financial instrument class in 2019 and in
2018 has been presented below. A material exposure involves changes in EUR/PLN and CZK/PLN exchange rates.

Group's exposure to other currencies is immaterial.

Currency position as at 31 December 2019

: o Total carrying EUR (074 ¢
Classes of financial instruments :
amountin PLN incurrency inPLN incurrency inPLN
Financial assets

Receivables from buyers 2290 746 2170 9 251 50 029 8 384
Other financial receivables 499 219 49 784 212 005 20 346 3410
Cash and cash equivalents 1237 952 4187 17 832 48 443 8119
Derivatives (assets) 105 529 14 214 60 531 - -
Total 70 355 299 619 118 818 19 913

Financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts 23 339 5304 22 585 - -
Issued bonds 6 257 022 851 101 3624 412 - -
Liabilities to suppliers 850 628 5770 24 572 8 884 1489
Other financial liabilities 223 920 2530 10 774 - -
Derivatives (liabilities) 124 527 13 206 56 238 - -
Total 877 911 3738 581 8 884 1489
Net currency position (807 556) (3 438 962) 109 934 18 424

Currency position as at 31 December 2018

. o Total carrying EUR
Classes of financial instruments .
amount in PLN incurrency inPLN  incurrency inPLN
Financial assets

Receivables from buyers 2229 400 1815 7 805 55 582 9299
Other financial receivables 255 504 38 733 166 552 20 292 3395
Cash and cash equivalents 823 724 51173 220 044 31544 5277
Derivatives (assets) 220 343 35511 152 697 - -
Total 127 232 547 098 107 418 17 971

Financial liabilities
Issued bonds 10 077 067 853 686 3670 848 - -
Liabilities to suppliers 1127 738 2 436 10 475 4579 766
Other financial liabilities 406 151 57 866 248 824 - -
Derivatives (liabilities) 240 922 39 493 169 820 - -
Total 953 481 4 099 967 4 579 766
Net currency position (826 249) (3 552 869) 102 839 17 205
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TAURON Group uses forward contracts to manage its foreign exchange risk. Transactions concluded in 2019 were
intended to protect the Group from forex risk, related to its commercial operations, mostly to purchases of CO2 emission
allowances and from currency exposure generated by interest payments on borrowings denominated in EUR.

Fair value measurement of forward foreign exchange contracts (as at 31 December 2019, a liability for a negative
valuation of PLN 29 823 thousand) and CCIRS (as at 31 December 2019, a liability for a negative valuation of PLN
12 885 thousand) is exposed to the risk of changes in the EUR/PLN exchange rate. Transactions concluded to hedge
against currency risk are not subject to hedge accounting.

Sensitivity analysis

The analysis of sensitivity to changes in market risk factors is conducted by means of a scenario analysis. The Group
relies on expert scenarios reflecting its judgment concerning the behavior of individual market risk factors in the future.
The scope of the analysis includes only those items which meet the IFRS definition of financial instruments.

The potential changes in foreign exchange rates have been determined within a horizon until the date of the next
financial statements and calculated on the basis of annual implied volatility for FX options quoted on the interbank market
for a given currency pair as at the end of the reporting period or, in the absence of quoted market prices, on the basis of
historical volatility for a period of one year preceding the end of the reporting period.

The Group identifies its exposure to currency risk related to EUR/PLN, CZK/PLN, USD/PLN, GBP/PLN exchange rates.
Significant risk exposure regards EUR, mainly due to external financing contracted in EUR. Other currencies do not
generate material risk for the Group. The tables below present sensitivity of the gross profit/loss as well as other
comprehensive income (gross) of the Group to reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rate EUR/PLN within a
horizon until the date of the next financial statements, assuming that all other risk factors remain unchanged.

Year ended 31 December 2019

Sensitivity analysis for currency risk
as at 31 December 2019
EUR/PLN

Carrying Value at exchange rate exchange rate

amount risk EUR/PLN EUR/PLN

+4.24% -4.24%

31 December 2019

Classes of finacial instruments

Receivables from buyers 2290 746 9 251 392 (392)
Other financial receivables 499 219 212 005 8989 (8 989)
Cash and cash equivalents 1237 952 17 832 756 (756)
Derivatives (assets) 105 529 60 531 2 567 (2 567)
Bank overdrafts 23 339 22 585 (958) 958
Bonds issued 6 257 022 3624 412 (153 675) 153 675
Liabilities to suppliers 850 628 24 572 (1.042) 1042
Other financial liabilities 223920 10774 (457) 457
Derivatives (liabilities) 124 527 98 946 79 408 (79 408)
Total (64 020) 64 020

The exposure to risk as at 31 December 2019 is representative for the Group's exposure to risk during the annual period
preceding the aforementioned date.

Year ended 31 December 2018

Sensitivity analysis for currency risk
as at 31 December 2018

31 December 2018

Classes of finacial instruments
Carrying
amount

Value at

EUR/PLN
exchange rate
EUR/PLN

sk +5.85%

exchange rate
EUR/PLN
-5.85%

Receivables from buyers 2229400 7 805 456 (456)
Other financial receivables 255 504 166 552 9743 (9 743)
Cash and cash equivalents 823724 220 044 12 872 (12 872)
Derivatives (assets) 220 343 152 697 8933 (8 933)
Bonds issued 10 077 067 3670848 (214 745) 214 745
Liabilities to suppliers 1127738 10 475 (613) 613
Other financial liabilities 406 151 248 824 (14 556) 14 556
Derivatives (liabilities) 240 922 177 439 38 838 (38 838)
Total (159 072) 159 072

The exposure to risk as at 31 December 2018 is representative for the Group's exposure to risk during the annual period

preceding the aforementioned date.
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48.3.3 Raw material and commodity price risk related to commodity derivative instruments and price
risk related to units

Commodity derivatives

The Group concludes derivative contracts, with underlying instruments being commodities and raw materials. The
Group's exposure to price risk inherent in commodity derivative instruments is related to a risk of changes in the fair
value of the said instruments, driven by fluctuations of prices of the underlying raw materials/commodities. The Group
limits price risk related to commodity derivatives concluding offsetting transactions. The risk is limited to open long and
short positions concerning a given commodity or raw material i.e. an unbalanced position in the portfolio.

As at 31 December 2019, the portfolio of concluded contracts is fully balanced. This minimizes market risk related to the
commodity derivatives portfolio, as confirmed by a sensitivity analysis, which indicated immaterial effects of potential
changes in the prices of emission allowances on Group's gross profit/loss.

Participation units

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held units in investment funds with the carrying amount of PLN 26 622 thousand. As
they are measured at fair value through profit or loss at the end of the reporting period, they are exposed to the price risk.

A performed analysis indicated immaterial effects of potential quotation changes on Group's gross profit/loss.
49. Operational risk

The commercial operational risk is managed at the level of the TAURON Group, as described in Note 3.3.4.
Management Board's reports on the activities of TAURON Polska Energia S.A. and of TAURON Capital Group for the
financial year 2019. The Group manages its commercial risk following the Commercial risk management policy
developed and adopted in the TAURON Group, which has introduced an early warning system in addition to a system of
limiting the exposure to risk in various commercial areas.

The TAURON Group companies are exposed to adverse effects of risks related to changes in cash flows and financial
performance in the domestic currency due to changes in commaodity prices. The Group's exposure to commaodity price
risk is reflected by the volume of the key raw materials and commodities purchased, including coal, gas and electricity.
The volume and cost of the key raw materials purchased from third-party suppliers have been presented in the table
below.

. 2019 2018
Fuel type Unit

Volume Purchase cost Volume Purchase cost

Coal tonne 3809 329 1002 443 4 452 901 1115 294
Gas MWh 3498 481 345742 3075513 290 574
Electricity MWh 32 326 975 7 906 677 30757 412 5665514
Heat energy GJ 5718 634 226 430 5776785 222 076
Total 9 481 292 7 293 458
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OTHER INFORMATION

50. Contingent liabilities

Claims related to termination of long-term contracts

Claims relating to termination of long-term contracts against subsidiary Polska Energia-Pierwsza Kompania Handlowa Sp. z o.o.

In 2015 companies of the following capital groups: in.ventus, Polenergia and Wind Invest filed a case against Polska Energia-Pierwsza Kompania
Handlowa Sp. z 0.0. to declare notices of termination of agreements submitted by Polska Energia-Pierwsza Kompania Handlowa Sp. z o0.0. with regard to
power purchase and property rights concluded with these companies ineffective. In the course of court proceedings, plaintiffs extend their scope raising
new contract termination and contractual penalties related claims. On 2 September 2019, Amon Sp. z o.0. (the Polenergia Group company) filed a
number of a new cases regarding claims in total amount of PLN 29 009 thousand. After the balance sheet day, on 24 February 2020, Polska Energia-
Pierwsza Kompania Handlowa Sp. z o.0. received changing letter of case filed by Dobiestaw Wind Inwest Sp. z 0.0. which except the primary demand,
company also filed a case in total amount of PLN 34 464 thousand, which have been discussed in detail in Note 56 to these consolidated financial
statements.

As of the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements for publication, the amount of damages claimed is: companies of the in.ventus group
companies- EUR 20 397 thousand, the Polenergia group companies- PLN 115 566 thousand (including Amon Sp. z 0.0. - PLN 69 488 thousand, Talia
Sp. z 0.0. - PLN 46 078 thousand, Wind Invest group companies - PLN 322 313 thousand.

In the case filed by Amon Sp. z 0.0., on 25 July 2019, a partial and preliminary judgment was issued in the case, in which the court determined that the
statements of Polska Energia-Pierwsza Kompania Handlowa Sp. z o0.0. on termination of long-term contracts concluded between Polska Energia-
Pierwsza Kompania Handlowa Sp. z 0.0. and Amon Sp. z o.0. for the purchase of electricity and property rights arising from certificates of origin are
ineffective and do not have legal effect in the form of termination of both agreements, as a result of which the agreements, after the notice period, i.e. after
30 April 2015 remain in force for all provisions and are binding on the parties. Moreover, the Court recognized Amon Sp. z 0.0.'s claim for payment of
compensation as justified in principle, without prejudging the amount of possible compensation. The judgement is not final. Polska Energia-Pierwsza
Kompania Handlowa Sp. z o.o. disagrees with the judgement and on 25 October 2019, Polska Energia-Pierwsza Kompania Handlowa Sp. z o.o.
appealed against the judgement.

After the period end date, on 6 March 2020 District Court in Gda